
BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
Wednesday, May 20, 2020 

Special Electronic Public Meeting 
 
 

The Boca Raton Airport Authority Agenda will be considered by the Chair and Authority 
Members Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 6 p.m.  All requests to be placed on the agenda 
by the public must be submitted to the Executive Director, in writing, via the Agenda 
Request Form, at least twenty (20) days before the Authority meeting.  Such written 
requests must be in sufficient detail to identify the subject matter as well as the contact 
person who will represent the matter before the Authority.  The Boca Raton Airport 
Authority reserves the right to not consider matters over which the Authority has no 
jurisdiction. 
 
This meeting will be televised on Comcast channel 20 in the City of Boca Raton, and on 
AT&T U-Verse channel 99 throughout Palm Beach County and will be videotaped for 
broadcast at a later date.  The meeting will also be streamed live to the Boca Raton Airport 
Authority Website, www.bocaairport.com and may also be heard on the radio on 1650 
AM. 
 
I. ROLL CALL 
 
  MELVIN POLLACK  CHAIR 
  RANDY NOBLES  VICE-CHAIR 

JAMES R. NAU  SECRETARY/TREASURER 
CHERYL BUDD  BOARD MEMBER 
MITCHELL FOGEL  BOARD MEMBER 
GENE FOLDEN  BOARD MEMBER 

  BOB TUCKER  BOARD MEMBER 
   
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
 Consider approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of April 15, 2020. 
 
III. AGENDA CHANGES 
 
IV. PUBLIC REQUESTS 
 

If any member of the public wishes to provide comment on any item, please provide 
written comments (1) to be read during the meeting or (2) to be entered into record 
without being read during the meeting. To do this, email your comments to 
publiccomment@bocaairport.com by 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 19, 2020. Please 

http://www.bocaairport.com/
mailto:publiccomment@bocaairport.com


include the title, “Written Comments, May 20, 2020 Meeting” and provide your 
name (required), address and email address. If you desire for your written 
comments to be read into the record during the meeting, please indicate so and 
limit your written comment to 300 words. Only written comments of 300 or fewer 
words will be read into the record during the meeting. All other written comments 
received by the deadline will be entered into the meeting record and distributed to 
the Boca Raton Airport Authority and the appropriate staff before the start of the 
meeting. 
 
Members of the public who opt to comment during the electronic meeting - rather 
than providing written comments before the meeting - may do so provided they 
register in advance. To register in advance, please visit 
https://www.gotomeeting.com/webinar/join-webinar and enter the Webinar ID: 
654-691-659.   You will receive an email from the City of Boca Raton with additional 
information on how to join the meeting. Members of the public may indicate their 
desire to provide public comment by electronically raising their hand during the 
meeting. Each member of the public wishing to comment will be provided with five 
(5) minutes to do so.  The Chair reserves the right to move the public comment 
opportunity on a specific agenda item to the point in the agenda when that item is 
to be considered and /or to extend the allotted time per speaker. 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
VI. FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL INPUT 
 
VII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
  
 A.  Presentation of the April 2020 Financial Report. 
 

Consider a Motion for approval of the Financial Report for April 2020. 
 
B.  Presentation of the Financial Report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 

2019 as prepared by the Authority’s Independent Auditor, Grau and Associates. 
 

Consider Resolution No. 05-14-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
adopting the Boca Raton Airport Authority’s Financial Statements, Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Projects 
and the Independent Auditor’s Reports for the fiscal year ending September 
30, 2019.  

 
 C.  Presentation of the 2020 Investment Report. 
 
 
VIII. TENANT REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
  

https://www.gotomeeting.com/webinar/join-webinar


IX. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Noise Abatement/Operations Summary for the month of April 2020. 
 

B. CARES Act Grant Acceptance. 
 

Consider a Motion granting Airport Management approval to accept CARES 
Act grant funds and to execute the FAA grant agreement, in accordance 
with FAA requirements. 

 
C. Request to approve Public Transportation Grant Agreement for Financial 

Project No. 445961-1-94-01 with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for BCT Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access 
Improvements at the Boca Raton Airport. 

 
Consider Resolution No. 05-15-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
accepting the Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of 
Florida Department of Transportation for BCT Landside Beautification and 
Pedestrian Access Improvements at the Boca Raton Airport. 

 
D. Request to approve Public Transportation Grant Agreement for Financial 

Project No. 423957-3-94-01 with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for Transportation/Access Road Development – Phase 2 at the 
Boca Raton Airport. 

 
Consider Resolution No. 05-16-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
accepting the Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of 
Florida Department of Transportation for Transportation/Access Road 
Development – Phase 2 at the Boca Raton Airport. 

 
E. Request to approve Public Transportation Grant Agreement for Financial 

Project No. 437978-2-94-01 with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor – Phase 2 at the 
Boca Raton Airport. 

 
Consider Resolution No. 05-17-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
accepting the Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of 
Florida Department of Transportation for Expand Airport Road and Utility 
Corridor – Phase 2 at the Boca Raton Airport. 

 
F. Discussion on Customs and Border Protection Fees. 

 
 
X. AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBER REQUESTS AND REPORTS 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 



 
XII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for June 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. Due to COVID-19, 
information on the location of the meeting and how to participate will be announced at a 
later date via the meeting notice.  

 
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Clara Bennett 
Executive Director 



Boca Raton Airport Authority 
Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2020 
Electronically via Webinar 

 
Ms. Landers welcomed everyone to the April 15, 2020 electronic Boca Raton Airport 
Authority Board Meeting and provided details regarding the meeting. 
 
Chair Melvin Pollack welcomed attendees to the meeting and covered basic rules for how 
the meeting would be conducted, including public comment. 
 
Mr. Pollack called the meeting to order at 6:05 P.M. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS 
   Melvin Pollack Chair 
   Randy Nobles Vice-Chair 
   James R. Nau Secretary/Treasurer  
   Cheryl Budd  Board Member   
   Mitchell Fogel Board Member 
   Gene Folden  Board Member 
   Bob Tucker  Board Member 
    
 
COUNSEL  Amy Petrick, Esquire – Lewis Longman Walker 
 
STAFF  Clara Bennett, Executive Director 
   Scott Kohut, Deputy Director 
   Ariadna Camilo, Finance and Administration Manager 
   Travis Bryan, Operations Manager 
   Christine Landers, Business Manager 
   Robert Abbott, Operations and Finance Analyst 
   William Urbanek, Operations Coordinator 
   Robert Pratt, Operations and Administration Coordinator 
    
The meeting was televised live and videotaped for broadcast at a later date.  The meeting 
was also streamed live to the Boca Raton Airport Authority Website, 
www.bocaairport.com and aired on the radio at 1650 AM.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A MOTION to approve the minutes of the February 19, 2020 Regular Meeting was 
made by Ms. Budd and seconded by Mr. Nobles. The Motion was carried 
unanimously. 
 

http://www.bocaairport.com/


A MOTION to approve the minutes of the Strategic Business Plan Workshop, held 
on March 12, 2020 was made by Mr. Folden and seconded by Mr. Fogel.  The Motion 
was carried unanimously. 
 
AGENDA CHANGES 
 
There were no agenda changes. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
There were no items on the consent agenda. 
 
FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL INPUT 
 
There was no Federal, State or Municipal Input. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS 
 
There were no public requests. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Ms. Camilo presented the Financial Report for February 2020. 
        
A MOTION to approve the Financial Report for February 2020 was made by Mr. Nau 
and seconded by Mr. Nobles.  The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Camilo presented the Financial Report for March 2020. 
        
A MOTION to approve the Financial Report for March 2020 was made by Mr. Folden 
and seconded by Mr. Fogel.  The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
TENANT REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
Mr. Pollack stated that the Atlantic Aviation Special Event item, which was postponed 
from the March 18, 2020 meeting, was removed by the tenant. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND STAFF REPORTS 
 
Mr. Abbott presented the Noise Abatement/Operations Summary for the month of 
February 2020. 
 
Mr. Abbott presented the Noise Abatement/Operations Summary for the month of March 
2020. 
 



Mr. Pollack noted that the Airport Project Update item, which was postponed from the 
March 18, 2020 meeting, was removed by Airport Management. 
 
Mr. Kohut presented a Supplemental Joint Participation Agreement for Financial Project 
No. 437967-1-94-01 with the State of Florida Department of Transportation for Storm 
Drainage System Upgrades at the Boca Raton Airport. 
 
A MOTION to approve Resolution No. 04-09-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
accepting the Supplemental Joint Participation Agreement with the State of Florida 
Department of Transportation for Storm Drainage System Upgrades at the Boca 
Raton Airport was made by Mr. Tucker and seconded by Ms. Budd.  The Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kohut provided details on the Stormwater Drainage System Improvements Invitation 
to Bid process and the recommendation.  Airport Management recommended awarding 
the Stormwater Drainage System Improvements contract to Anzco, Inc. 
 
Mr. Folden invited Mr. John Zak, President Anzco, Inc. to provide some information on 
his business. 
 
Mr. Zak provided a brief background on his business and stated that they have locations 
in Boca Raton and Pompano Beach. 
 
A MOTION to approve Resolution No. 04-10-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
awarding a contract to Anzco, Inc. pursuant to the terms specified in the Invitation 
to Bid 2020-BRAA-01 for Stormwater Drainage System Improvements was made by 
Ms. Budd and seconded by Mr. Folden.  The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kohut presented a request from Florida Atlantic University for a Facility Use 
Agreement in conjunction with the Stormwater Drainage System Improvements project. 
 
A MOTION to approve Resolution No. 04-11-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
entering into a Facility Use Agreement with Florida Atlantic University was made 
by Mr. Tucker and seconded by Mr. Fogel.  The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kohut reminded the Board that, in February, the Airport Authority entered into an IT 
services contract with Simplitfy, LLC. Certain issues with the accounting software and the 
Authority’s server occurred in March, which resulted in the purchase of a physical, 
standalone accounting server.  The original contract was not written to allow for the 
additional hardware.  Airport Management recommended approval to ratify the current IT 
services contract with Simplitfy, LLC.   
 
Mr. Nau asked if Airport Management could have anticipated this prior to the contact 
being awarded in February.   
 



Mr. Kohut explained the need arose due to an issue with the Authority’s server that 
occurred after the contract was awarded. 
 
Ms. Budd asked if the server was provided through the IT contract.  Mr. Kohut stated that 
the Authority’s server was owned by the Airport Authority and was purchased in 
conjunction with the new Administration Building. 
 
A MOTION to approve Resolution No. 04-12-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
ratifying an amendment to the IT Services Contract with Simplitfy, LLC for services 
related to an accounting server was made by Mr. Nau and seconded by Mr. Fogel.  
The Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ms. Bennett provided background information on the proposed COVID-19 Rent Relief.  
Ms. Bennett advised the Board that the Airport Authority had received requests from 
certain tenants asking for some form of rent relief.  Airport Management along with Legal 
Counsel investigated possible opportunities to provide temporary rent relief, taking into 
account federal, state and grant requirements.  Ms. Bennett summarized the policy option 
being proposed.   
 
Ms. Budd stated that she agreed with the option being proposed and would like to have 
additional discussion on the projected budget and additional financial scenarios that may 
affect the Airport. 
 
Ms. Bennett advised the Board that revenue as of the end of March was very strong.  
Airport Management looked at what would happen if all tenants took advantage of the 
opportunity being proposed for the three-month deferral, resumed regular rent payment 
in June and began repayment of the deferred amount in September, and determined that 
the impact to the bottom line would be $910,000. This would reduce the Airport Authority’s 
net operating income for the current budget year to $1.4 million. 
 
Mr. Tucker suggested that the next step is to find out what other airports are doing in this 
situation. 
 
Ms. Bennett advised that as of this date, all but two tenants were current on their rent.  
This policy recommendation was modeled based on what other airports have proposed 
to the FAA as a potential approach and the effort was to do something that had already 
been vetted through the FAA.   
 
Ms. Budd recommended that Airport Management take a longer look and anticipate what 
may happen if this situation should arise again.   
 
A discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Nobles inquired as to how much the $11.5 million listed on the balance sheet was 
restricted towards projects and grants and how much of it would be available to help with 
revenue shortfalls. 



 
Ms. Bennett provided an overview of funding grant projects and the timing of those 
projects.   
 
Ms. Camilo advised the Board that the Airport Authority has currently committed $1.5 
million to match existing grants.  
 
Mr. Jose Cabrera, General Manager, Signature Flight Support stated that he appreciated 
the Airport Authority looking into this and wanted the Board to know that Signature Flight 
Support has been doing a lot of planning and believes the Airport Authority is doing good 
work.  
 
A MOTION to approve Resolution No. 04-13-20 of the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
providing rent relief related to COVID-19 was made by Mr. Nobles and seconded by 
Mr. Nau. The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORITY MEMBERS REQUESTS AND REPORTS 
 
Mr. Tucker thanked the Chair and Airport Management for their efforts during this unusual 
time.   
 
PUBLIC INPUT 
 
Mr. Jose Cabrera, General Manager, Signature Flight Support thanked the Airport 
Authority again for the teamwork and commitment shown to assist everyone at the Airport.  
He added that Signature Flight Support would like to request that the Airport Authority 
temporarily amend the minimum standards to allow onsite, staffed operating hours to be 
reduced to 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 
 
Ms. Bennett reminded the Board that the this would be a minimum standards issue and 
the Board would have the opportunity to approve the request, however, this must be 
offered to both FBO’s.   
 
Mr. Cabrera advised that Signature would provide staffing and an on call number should 
the need for service arise. 
 
Ms. Petrick advised the Board that on April 4th the FAA issued guidance on these issues.  
It is required that the FAA address these requests in advance to these accommodations 
being approved.   
 
Ms. Budd asked how long it would take to get an answer from the FAA should we make 
this request.   
 
Ms. Bennett noted the FAA has been responsive.  Ms. Bennett clarified that the request 
from Signature is not to close, but the hours of service with onsite staff would change.  



Those flights that would arrive during those hours would have the ability to contact 
Signature to arrange for onsite service. 
 
Mr. Cabrera confirmed that Signature would not close operations, and that if service was 
needed, the onsite staffing would be extended.  If no flights were scheduled, Signature 
would provide signage and a contact number for on call services.   
 
A MOTION to direct the Boca Raton Airport Executive Director to implement a 
temporary change to overnight FBO services, subject to FAA review, was made by 
Mr. Folden and seconded by Mr. Nobles.  The Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was no other business. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. Due to 
COVID-19, information on the location of the meeting and how to participate will be 
announced at a later date via the meeting notice.  
 
Mr. Jose Cabrera, General Manager, Signature Flight Support once again thanked the 
Board and Airport Management and stated his appreciation for what is being done. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________    ____________    
Melvin Pollack, Chair    Date 



 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Ariadna Camilo, Finance and Administration Manager 

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE:     Financial Report – April 2020 

 
AGENDA ITEM – VII – A 
 
Airport Management and the Secretary/Treasurer will provide an overview of the Financial 
Report for the seven months ending April 30, 2020.  
 
Total Operating Revenues as of April 30, 2020 were $3,745,734 an increase of $450,192 
or 13.7% to budget. This increase in revenue is primarily due to a partial insurance 
settlement received for the EMAS repairs related to an aircraft incident which occurred last 
fiscal year.  
 
As of April 30, 2020, one tenant was in arrears for April rent. 
 
Total Non-Operating Revenues and Capital Contributions as of April 30, 2020 were 
$35,220. 
 
Total Operating Expenses as of April 30, 2020 were $1,958,844 a decrease of $236,239 
or 10.8% compared to budget. Significant variances in expenses compared to budget for 
the seven months ending April 30, 2020 are as follows:  

 
• Office Operating expenditures are up $28,434 or 15.4% to budget, primarily due to 

various Administration office maintenance projects completed in the first quarter. 
Actual expenses for Office Operations do not exceed the annual budget.    

 
• ATCT Facility expenditures are up $16,004 or 34.1% to budget, primarily due to 

one-time expenses for the replacement of FIDO equipment. Actual expenses for 
the equipment replacement do not exceed the annual budget.  



 
• Project expenditures are down $245,763 or 55.7% to budget, primarily due to the 

ATCT rehabilitation project.  
 

• Professional Services are down $21,092 or 20.0% to budget, primarily due to 
expenses related to audit services which are in progress. Year to date legal 
expenditures are detailed below, including a breakdown of costs for board member 
related matters and capital projects.   

  
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG  SEPT TOTAL 

GENERAL $       
5,980 

$      
10,699 

$        
8,008 

$        
7,072 

$              
2,184 

$     
5,694          

$              
10,004 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$              
- 

 $         
49,641  

BOARD $          
676 

$              
- 

$              
- 

$           
208 

$              
- 

$              
- 

$              
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$              
- 

 $              
884  

TASK 59 $     
14,170 

$      
15,743 

$      
15,782 

$        
8,424 

$              
- 

$              
- 

$              
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$            
- 

$              
- 

 $         
54,119  

 
 
Total Capital Expenditures as of April 30, 2020 were $237,511. The majority of Capital 
Expenditures were attributable to Task 59 – Storm Drainage System Upgrades and Task 
47 - Access Road Improvement.  Of the total $237,511 in Capital Expenditures, $54,119 
were attributable to project-related legal fees, while $43,090 were attributable to Capital 
Outlay. 
 
 



FY 2020 FY 2020 FY 2020
Annual April April FY 2020 Actual vs. Budget
Budget Actual Budget Dollars Percent

Operating Revenues 5,649,500$     3,745,734$   3,295,542$     450,192$         13.7%

Operating Expenses 3,763,000$     1,958,844$   2,195,083$     (236,239)$       -10.8%

Operating Income/(Loss) 1,886,500$     1,786,890$   1,100,458$     686,431$         62.4%
     before Depreciation

Depreciation 1,955,000$     1,140,417$   1,140,417$     -$                 0.0%

Net Operating Income/(Loss) (68,500)$         646,473$      (39,958)$         686,431$         -1717.9%

Non-Operating Revenues 605,200$        35,220$         

Income/(Loss) 536,700$        681,693$      
     before Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions 3,675,000$     21,087$         
     from State and Federal Grants

Change in Net Position 4,211,700$     702,780$      

Boca Raton Airport Authority
Income Statement: Budget Variance Summary

For the Seven Months Ending April 30, 2020
(unaudited)

Summary Results

Variance

Prepared on 5/13/2020 Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only Page |1



FY 2020 FY 2020 FY 2020
Annual April April
Budget Actual Budget Dollars Percent

Rent Revenue 4,112,300$        2,443,395$   2,398,842$     44,553$          1.9%

Fuel Flowage Fees 800,000$           480,894$      466,667$        14,228$          3.0%

Customs Facility Revenue 480,000$           302,215$      280,000$        22,215$          7.9%

Interest Income 210,000$           131,374$      122,500$        8,874$            7.2%

Other Revenue 47,200$              387,856$      27,533$           360,322$       1308.7%

Total Operating Revenues 5,649,500$        3,745,734$   3,295,542$     450,192$       13.7%

FDOT Grants 605,200$           35,220$         

Non-Operating Revenues 605,200$           35,220$         

FDOT Grants 1,425,000$        21,087$         

FAA Grants 2,250,000$        -$               

Capital Contributions 3,675,000$        21,087$         
from State and Federal Grants

Boca Raton Airport Authority
Income Statement: Budget Variance Summary

For the Seven Months Ending April 30, 2020
(unaudited)

Revenue Summary

Variance
FY 2020 Actual vs. Budget

Prepared on 5/13/2020 Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only Page |2 



FY 2020 FY 2020 FY 2020
Annual April April
Budget Actual Budget Dollars Percent

Personnel Expenses 1,213,900$     716,418$      708,108$       8,309$              1.2%

Professional Services 180,500$         84,199$        105,292$       (21,092)$           -20.0%

Office Operating Expenses 316,200$         212,884$      184,450$       28,434$            15.4%

Airport Operations 530,100$         289,793$      309,225$       (19,432)$           -6.3%

Insurance Expense 171,300$         99,383$        99,925$         (542)$                -0.5%

ATCT Facility 80,500$           62,962$        46,958$         16,004$            34.1%

Customs Facility 323,000$         187,827$      188,417$       (590)$                -0.3%

Marketing & Special Events 191,000$         109,850$      111,417$       (1,567)$             -1.4%

Projects 756,500$         195,529$      441,292$       (245,763)$        -55.7%

Total Operating Expenses 3,763,000$     1,958,844$   2,195,083$   (236,239)$        -10.8%

Capital Outlay 44,000$           43,090$        

Capital Improvement Program 4,125,000$     194,421$      

Total Capital Expenditures 4,169,000$     237,511$      

Boca Raton Airport Authority
Income Statement: Budget Variance Summary
For the  Seven Months Ending April 30, 2020

(unaudited)

Expense Summary

Variance
FY 2020 Actual vs. Budget

Prepared on 5/13/2020 Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only Page |3 



ASSETS LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Assets Current Liabilities
Cash and Cash Equivalents 742,058$           Accounts Payable 90,919$            
Receivables 261,604$           Due to Other Governments -$                   
Due From Other Governments 180,549$           Compensated Absences, short-term 54,387$            
Money Markets 2,435,595$       Deferred Rent Income 160,158$          
Certificates of Deposit 8,583,921$       
Certificates of Deposit, Restricted 186,310$           Total Current Liabilities 305,464$            
Other Assets 96,864$             

Non-Current Liabilities
Total Current Assets 12,486,901$      Security Deposits 167,879$          

Compensated Absences, long-term -$                   
Non-Current Assets
Rent Receivable 414,541$           Total Non-Current Liabilities 167,879$            
Capital Assets
  Land 1,791,886$       Total Liabilities 473,344$            
  Avigation Easements 4,835,961$       
  Project in Progress 1,560,811$       Capital
  Buildings 11,526,229$     Florida Operations Trust Fund 267,950$          
  Land Procurement 955,070$           Retained Earnings 40,464,137$     
  Leasehold Improvements 9,311,308$       Contributed Capital - Federal 317,029$          
  Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 2,032,831$       Contributed Capital - State 6,430,281$       
  Infrastructure 26,088,620$     Net Income 702,780$          

  Less Accumulated Depreciation (22,348,638)$   

Total Non-Current Assets 36,168,619$      Total Capital 48,182,177$      

Total Assets 48,655,520$      Total Liabilities & Capital 48,655,520$      

Summary Results

Boca Raton Airport Authority
Balance Sheet Summary

April 30, 2020
(unaudited)

Prepared on 5/13/2020 Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only Page |4 



2020 Budget Scenarios



2020 Budget Scenarios
• Airport Management, with direction from the 

Secretary/Treasurer and the Vice Chair, explored 
various financial scenarios:
– Base Budget Projection

• Based on the approved budget
• Reflects the financial position of the Airport prior to COVID-19
• Used as a baseline comparison to various scenarios 

– Worst Case Scenario
– Moderate Scenario



Base Budget Projection

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Revenue Expense



Base Budget Projection

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $9,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Capital Revenues and Expenses

Revenue Expense



Base Budget Projection

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Fund Balance



Worst Case Scenario
• Key Assumptions: 

– Long-term recovery period for market driven 
revenues, such as Fuel Flowage and Customs 

– Default of two non-aeronautical tenants, with 3 
year redevelopment period

– Major hurricane expense of $500,000
– No changes to expenditures



Worst Case Scenario

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Revenue Expense Budget Revenue Budget Expense



Worst Case Scenario

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Fund Balance

Fund Balance Budget Fund Balance



Moderate Scenario
• Key Assumptions: 

– 1.5 year recovery period for market driven 
revenues, such as Fuel Flowage and Customs 

– Recovery of deferred rents 
– No changes to expenditures



Moderate Scenario

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Revenue Expense Budget Revenue Budget Expense



Moderate Scenario

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Fund Balance

Fund Balance Budget Fund Balance



Management Response
Potential strategies Airport Management would 
implement to manage expenditures:

– Tier 1: Reduction of discretionary expenditures (deferral of 
salary adjustments, travel, training, sponsorships, non-
mandatory maintenance)

– Tier 2: Deferral of non-safety related capital expenditures
– Tier 3: Reduction in service levels (security, personnel, 

community outreach)





 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Ariadna Camilo, Finance and Administration Manager 

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE:  Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Report 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM – VII – B 
 
The Authority’s External Auditor, Grau & Associates has prepared the Financial Report 
for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2019. The report contains no findings.  
 
On behalf of Airport Management and the Secretary/Treasurer, we recommend approval 
of Resolution Number 05-14-20 adopting the Boca Raton Airport Authority’s Financial 
Statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
Projects, and the Independent Auditor’s Reports for the Fiscal Year ending September 
30, 2019. 
 

 



BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 05-14-20 
 

A Resolution of the Boca Raton Airport Authority adopting the Boca Raton Airport Authority’s Financial 
Statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Projects and the 

Independent Auditor’s Reports for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. 
 

WHEREAS, The Boca Raton Airport Authority Act, Laws of Florida, provides that the Boca Raton Airport Authority 
(the “Authority”) shall have jurisdiction over the operation, maintenance of, and improvements to the Boca Raton 
Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority has prepared the Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2019; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s Independent Auditor, Grau & Associates (the “Independent Auditor”), has reviewed 
the Financial Statements and prepared an Auditor’s Report in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Independent Auditor performed these audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Financial Statements are free of material misstatements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s financial statements referred to and herein set forth, present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Boca Raton Airport Authority as of September 30, 2019. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY, BOCA RATON, 
FLORIDA, IN PUBLIC MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, THIS 20TH DAY OF MAY 2020, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and set forth the legislative intent of the 
Resolution. 

 
2. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, the Authority hereby adopts the Boca 

Raton Airport Authority’s Financial Statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance Projects, and the Independent Auditor's Reports for the fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2019, a copy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit A”. 

 
3. The Executive Director, with assistance from Airport Legal Counsel, is hereby authorized to 

do all things necessary to effectuate the intent of this Resolution Number 05-14-20.  
 

4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Boca Raton Airport Authority is hereby authorized to execute 
Resolution Number 05-14-20. 

 
5. Resolution Number 05-14-20 shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
ADOPTED by the Boca Raton Airport Authority, this 20TH day of May 2020. 
 

ATTEST:       BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

           
James R. Nau                                                                                Melvin Pollack  
Secretary & Treasurer                                                                  Chair 

 







 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Ariadna Camilo, Finance and Administration Manager 

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE:  2020 Investment Report 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM – VII – C 
 
Airport Management and the Secretary/Treasurer will report on the Authority’s 2020 
Investment Report pursuant to the Authority’s Accounting Policy and Procedure Manual 
regarding investments, as governed by Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.  
 

 



INVESTMENT
REPORT

B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  A U T H O R I T Y

FISCAL YEAR

2020



TAB LE  OF

CONTENTS

1 About the Boca Raton 
Airport Authority

2 Understanding Our 
Investment Policy

3 2020 Investment  
Highlights

5 Investment Schedule

6 Unrestricted Net  
Asset Balance

7 Looking Ahead

7 Investment Report 
Presentation



ABOUT THE BOCA RATON  
AIRPORT AUTHORITY

SECTION ONE:

he Boca Raton Airport is publicly-
owned by the State of Florida and 

is designated as a general aviation 
transport facility, serving the corporate, 
recreational, and flight training needs of the 
region. It is located on 220 acres in Boca Raton 
off of I-95 between Spanish River Boulevard 
and Glades Road. The Airport’s one runway 
5/23 is 6,276 feet long and 150 feet wide.

The Airport is operated by the Boca Raton 
Airport Authority, a seven-member Board 
established by the Florida Legislature as an 
Independent Special District of the State of 
Florida.  Five members are appointed by the 
Boca Raton City Council and two are appointed 
by the Palm Beach County Commission. Each 
Board member serves a term of two years.    

The Airport Authority was established in order 
to operate, maintain, and develop the Boca 
Raton Airport in a safe, professional manner; 
enhance services and facilities available to 
the Airport’s tenants and users; improve the 
Airport’s relationship with the surrounding 
community; eliminate financial subsidies by 
local taxpayers and the Board of Trustees; and 
limit the potential for operational liability by the 
State and the local community.

In October 2011, the Airport Authority 
developed a Strategic Business Plan that 
identified the Airport’s mission to be a  
world class Public Use General Aviation  
facility that benefits our growing business  
and regional communities.

T

The Airport Authority sustains the Airport’s 
operations by generating revenue from land 
leases and fuel fees. Operating surpluses 
are reinvested in infrastructure improvements 
included in the Airport Capital Improvement 

Program and used to match FAA Airport 
Improvement Program and Florida  
Department of Transportation Aviation  
Work Program grants.

1. Strengthen Community Relations
2. Mitigate Noise Impacts
3. Enhance Financial Performance
4. Effectively Operate in a Changing Government Environment
5. Explore Land Opportunities

THE AIRPORT’S STRATEGIC GOALS ARE TO:

1I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0



2I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0

Management is responsible for ensuring 
proper compliance with both Florida Statutes 
and the established investment strategy. The 
Authority’s compliance with the requirements 
of Florida Statute, Section 218.415 is 

examined by the Independent Auditor and 
any opinion on the Authority’s compliance is 
reported to the Board in conjunction with the 
Annual Financial Audit Report.

UNDERSTANDING OUR  
INVESTMENT POLICY

SECTION TWO:

• The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, or any intergovernmental 
investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act 
of 1969, as provided in s. 163.01.

• Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the 
highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

• Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public 
depositories, as defined in s. 280.02.

• Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

Further, the Authority has established key objectives with regard to its  
investment strategy:

• Safety – The primary objective of the Authority’s investment activities is the 
protection of investment capital.

• Liquidity – The Authority’s investment strategy will provide sufficient liquidity 
such that cash flow requirements are met through the utilization of investments 
with structured maturities.

• Investment Income – The Authority will strive to maximize the return on the 
portfolio while minimizing investment risk.

he Boca Raton Airport Authority’s 
Accounting Policy and Procedure 

Manual dictates that Authority funds 
should be properly invested to safeguard 
against physical loss or misuse. Invested  
funds are funds not presently needed for 
airport operations or capital projects.

The Authority’s investment policy mirrors 
Florida Statute, Section 218.415(17),  
which states that units of local government 
may invest or reinvest any public funds in 
their control or possession in:

T



2020 INVESTMENT  
HIGHLIGHTS 

SECTION THREE:

s of April 30, 2020, the Airport’s 
invested funds total $11,270,395, an 
increase of 38.3% over prior year. 

This increase in invested funds is attributable 
to operating surplus as a result of certain lease 
reversions, and the replenishment of Airport 
funds through grant reimbursements for capital 
improvement projects, such as the Airfield 
Pavement Rejuvenator. Of the $11,270,395 
in invested funds, $194,051 are restricted 
funds, held as security deposits for the Premier 
Aviation and City Furniture leaseholds. The 
total invested funds balance available for the 
Airport’s operational and capital needs is 
$11,076,344.

Additionally, the Airport had a CD mature 
in late April, which due to the timing of the 
maturity was reinvested on May 1st. In order to 
accurately reflect the balance of the Airport’s 
portfolio, these funds, which were in transit as 
of April 30, 2020, are included in the analysis 
found in this report. 

A

BRAA  INVESTED FUNDS

3I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0

$13,000,000

$11,000,000 

$9,000,000 

$7,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

$-

$7,206,041
$6,738,225

$3,969,118
$4,808,489

$5,448,808
$5,474,139

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$4,296,275

$3,447,082

$8,149,235

$11,270,395



I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0

$200,000

$160,000 

$120,000 

$80,000 

$40,000

$- 

$77,354

$180,339

$34,612 $33,990

$54,046 $52,115

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

he Airport’s funds are invested in 
Certificates of Deposit (C.D.), the 

Certificate of Deposit Account Registry 
Service (CDARS), and Money Market Accounts 
at various Qualified Public Depositories. These 
funds are 100% protected in a combination 
of coverage provided by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation and Florida’s Public 
Deposits Program.

As of April 30, 2020, approximately 78% of 
Airport funds are invested in Certificates of 
Deposit and Certificate of Deposit Account 
Registry Service (CDARS) and 22% are invested 
in liquid accounts such as Money Markets. 
The Airport’s investments are yielding an 
average annual rate of return of 1.7%, a 0.7% 
decrease over prior year. Consequently, interest 

income is $131,374 year-to-date, an increase 
of 7.2% to budget. Based on the current 
investment schedule and additional investments 
contemplated subsequent to April 30, 2020, 
interest income is projected to be $185,260 
for Fiscal Year 2020, a decrease of 11.8% to 
budget. This anticipated decrease in interest 
income is as a result of the economic impacts 
of COVID-19, which include declining interest 
rates and a lower projected fund balance, 
resulting from declining fuel flowage and 
customs revenue.

T

S E C T I O N  T H R E E :  2 0 2 0  I N V E S T M E N T  H I G H L I G H T S

INTEREST INCOME

4

2019 2020

$185,260

$26,678



INVESTMENT
SCHEDULE

SECTION FOUR:

TERM
Liquid

MATURITY DATE
-

APY
0.10%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 100

CITIBANK - MONEY MARKET

TERM
Liquid

MATURITY DATE
-

APY
0.12%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 2,435,446

BANK UNITED - MONEY MARKET

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
8/5/2020

APY
2.42%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 1,710,301

US CENTURY BANK- CD

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
10/10/2020

APY
2.20%

CURRENT BALANCE

$2,024,600

AMERANT BANK -  CD

   $ 2,435,546

   $ 8,640,798

   $    194,051

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

UNRESTRICTED CDS

RESTRICTED CDS

TOTAL INVESTED FUNDS    $11,270,395

TERM
6 Months

MATURITY DATE
10/30/2020

APY
0.65%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 680,000

ANTHEM BANK -  CDVANTAGE

BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY INVESTMENT SCHEDULE - April 30, 2020 (Unaudited)

5I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
5/30/2020

APY
2.55%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 2,598,412

CITY NATIONAL BANK - CD

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
2/20/2021

APY
1.90%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 1,627,485

FLAGER BANK- CD

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
7/15/2020

APY
2.41%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 118,894

FLAGER BANK- CITY FURNITURE RESRICTED CD SECURITY DEPOSIT

TERM
1 Year

MATURITY DATE
3/24/2021

APY
1.24%

CURRENT BALANCE

$ 75,157

US CENTURY BANK- PREMIER RESTRICTED CD SECURITY DEPOSIT



UNRESTRICTED NET  
ASSET BALANCE 

SECTION FIVE:

The Authority’s share of funds committed to 
the Airport’s Capital Improvement Plan for is 
$1,663,005.

As of April 30, 2020, the Authority’s 
unrestricted net asset balance is $12,428,099, 

while the current commitments to operating 
expenses, capital outlay, and the capital 
improvement plan total $5,995,505 including 
depreciation. 

I

In addition, the Airport has established a robust Capital Improvement Plan consisting of:
• Access Road Development
• Electrical Vault, Airfield Signage, and Lighting Improvements
• Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor
• Landside Access Pavement Rehabilitation
• Taxiways Papa 4, Charlie & Foxtrot Widening - Design & Construction
• Storm Drainage System Upgrades
• Landside Lighting and Signage Replacement
• Taxiways Papa 5, Charlie, Papa 9, and Papa 10 Widening – Design & Construction
• Security Enhancements - Phase 4
• Observation Area
• Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements
• Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor - Phase 2
• Access Road Development - Phase 2

6I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0

n accordance with the Authority’s 
emergency reserves policy, sound 

financial management principles 
require that sufficient funds be retained 

by the Authority to provide a stable financial 
base at all times. In order to retain this stable 
financial base, the Authority is committed 
to maintaining a surplus fund balance 
sufficient to provide financial resources for 
unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue 
shortfalls of an emergency nature.  As 
such, the unrestricted net asset balance, or 

the difference between current assets and 
current liabilities, shall not fall below 75% 
of budgeted operating expenses, including 
depreciation.

For the Fiscal Year 2020 operating budget, 
the threshold of 75% of budgeted operating 
expenses including depreciation is equal to 
$4,288,500. The Airport has also committed 
to capital outlays of $44,000 for airfield 
equipment. 



Total Current and Other Assets
Rent Receivable
Current Assets
ASSETS

$ 12,901,442
$ 414,541

$12,486,901

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 12,428,099

Total Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

$ 473,344
$ 167,879
$ 305,464

LIABILITIES

BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY UNRESTRICTED NET ASSET BALANCE
April 30, 2020 (Unaudited)

7I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0



LOOKING  
AHEAD

SECTION SIX:

ith the use of a financial forecasting 
model, Airport Management is able 

to closely monitor fund balances. Based 
on the approved Fiscal Year 2020 Operating, 
Capital Outlay, and Capital Improvement 
Plan Budgets, the Airport’s invested funds 
balance was expected to increase by an 
additional $1.4 million by the end of Fiscal 
Year 2020. Due to the economic conditions 
as a result of COVID-19, current projections 
estimate an increase of $1.1 million by the 

end of the Fiscal Year. As the situation with 
COVID-19 continues to evolve, and Airport 
Management starts to develop the Fiscal Year 
2021 Operating, Capital Outlay, and Capital 
Improvement Plan Budgets, it will continue to 
analyze Airport fund balances and ensure 
sufficient liquidity to meet future commitments.

On behalf of the Secretary/Treasurer and Airport Mangement, I respectfully present the Fiscal 
Year 2020 Investment Report to the Airport Authority.  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
APRIL 30, 2020

Clara Bennett 

W

INVESTMENT REPORT PRESENTATION 

8I N V E S T M E N T  R E P O R T  ·  F I S C A L  Y E A R  2 0 2 0



 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Authority Members    

From: Robert Abbott, Operations and Finance Analyst        

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE: Operations and Noise Abatement Report, April 2020    

 

AGENDA ITEM – IX - A 
 

Airport Management provides an overview of the Noise Abatement/Operations Summary 
for the month of April. This report is derived from the Air Traffic Control Tower operations 
report. 
 
During the month of April 2020, there were 3,505 operations reported by the Tower, which 
is a 56% decrease from the operations reported in April 2019. 
   
Deliveries of Jet A fuel were 78% less than in April of the previous year. Avgas deliveries 
were down 100% compared to April 2019.  
 
There were 186 noise calls made by 11 different households received on the Airport 
Authority Noise Hotline and Online Noise Reporting Form.  
 
During the month, 19 aircraft cleared Customs from 11 different countries and there were 
no vessel clearings.  There were eight afterhours clearings. Of these flights, four cleared 
on Tuesdays and Wednesdays, when the facility is normally closed.  
 
Airport management will provide an analysis of historic operational trends compared to 
operations during the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
 
  



OPERATIONS  
AND NOISE  
ABATEMENT
REPORT

B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  A U T H O R I T Y

APRIL

2020



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
APRIL 2020

APRIL 2019
7,9307,930

APRIL 2020
3,5053,505

 -56%

TOWER OPERATIONS
1 PLANE = 600 OPERATIONS

OPERATIONS BREAKDOWN

47%
TRAINING

32%
VFR

21%
IFR

Chart 1: Breakdown of last month’s operations based on type of operation (ex. Training, Instrument Flight Rules, Visual 
Flight Rules). An operation is counted as an arrival or a departure, a touch-and-go operation counts as two operations.

Chart 2: April 2019 operations compared to April 2020 tower operations. 

IFR (Instrument Flight Rules): Planes flying on an instrument flight plan - Primarily jets. VFR (Visual Flight Rules): - Primarily propeller aircraft.  
TFR (Temporary Flight Restriction): Airspace flight restriction imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) when there is a government VIP or special event in the area. 

ABBREVIATIONS:



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

FUEL FUEL FUELFUELFUELFUELFUEL FUEL FUELFUELFUELFUEL

FUEL FUEL FUELFUELFUELFUELFUEL FUEL FUELFUELFUELFUEL

OPERATIONS REPORT
APRIL 2020

00
GALLONS

APRIL 2020

8,5018,501
GALLONS
APRIL 2019

-100%

AVGAS  FUEL REPORT

727,462727,462

GALLONS
APRIL 2019

-78%

JET A  FUEL REPORT

GALLONS
APRIL 2020

158,375158,375

Chart 3: Month of April 2019 deliveries of Jet A in gallons compared to April 2020 deliveries of Jet A.                  

Chart 4: Month of April 2019 deliveries of Avgas in gallons compared to April 2020 deliveries of Avgas.

Jet A: Aviation fuel designed for use in aircraft powered by gas-turbine engines (jet aircraft).

Avgas: Aviation gasoline designed for use in piston-engine aircraft.



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  N O I S E  A B A T E M E N T  R E P O R T

NOISE ABATEMENT REPORT
APRIL 2020

0

9

2

0

NOISE CONCERNS BY HOUSEHOLD PER QUADRANT

AA

CC

BB

DD

Chart 5: Noise concerns submitted via telephone, email, or on our website are tracked by quadrant where the noise concern occurred in relation to the airport. 

Chart 6: List of callers who submitted noise concerns via telephone, email, or on our website during the month of April. 

          NAME                                  COMMUNITY             QUADRANT    A/D/O/T         RUNWAY                CONCERN                # CALLS 

Ross Rosenberg Wimbledon Villas C N/A N/A Low and Loud 53

Wolf Lehmkuhl Wimbledon Villas C N/A N/A Low and Loud 43

Michael Cybulski Timbercreek C T 5 Low and Loud 30

Alison Bolah Wimbledon Villas C N/A N/A Low and Loud 29

Adam Cogly Wimbledon Villas C N/A N/A Low and Loud 24

Lorna Johnson Wimbledon Villas C N/A N/A Low and Loud 2

Zachary Gainer N/A C A 5 Loud 1

Betsy Landon Boca Hills B D 5 Low and Loud 1

Talia Tesona N/A C A 5 Loud 1

Julia Lomonico Timbercreek C D 23 Low and Loud 1

Bill Trinka Boca Hills B T 5 Low and Loud 1



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  N O I S E  A B A T E M E N T  R E P O R T

O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
 M

O
N

TH
LY

 C
U

M
M

U
LA

TI
V

E 
TO

TA
L 

PE
R 

H
O

U
R

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

T I M E  O F  D A Y

NOISE ABATEMENT REPORT
APRIL 2020

40
TOTAL NIGHT OPERATIONS

15
FLIGHTS

7
FLIGHTS

1
FLIGHTS

1
FLIGHTS 0

FLIGHTS
0

FLIGHTS

3
FLIGHTS

6
FLIGHTS

7
FLIGHTS

Chart 7: A voluntary curfew operation is an operation that occurred during our voluntary night curfew from  
22:00 – 07:00. Chart breaks down the number of operations per hour during the voluntary curfew period in April 2020. 

10PM  ·  11PM  ·  12AM  ·  1AM  ·  2AM  ·  3AM  ·  4AM  ·  5AM  ·  6AM

NOT FOLLOWING VOLUNTARY 

CURFEW PROCEDURES 

 OPER ATIONS

 

 28



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS

APRIL 2020

Charts 8 & 9: Total operations and total passengers during the month of April 2020.

19
FLIGHTS & 

OPERATIONS

68
PASSENGERS



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS

APRIL 2020

Charts 10 & 11: Total operations and and total passengers during the month of April 2020.

0 0
PASSENGERSVESSELS



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS

APRIL 2020

Chart 14: Total flights into BCT mapped by country of origin.

 Bahamas 3 
 Canada 4 

 Argentina 1 

 Country No. of Flights 

 Mexico 3 

 Ecuador 2 

 Bermuda 1 

 El Salvador 1 

 Haiti 1 

 Jamaica 1 
 Panama 1 

 US Virgin Islands 1 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

   

   

   

   

   



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS

APRIL 2020

Chart 15: Total flights into BCT mapped by country of origin.



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

APRIL 2020

Chart 16: Total operations by type of aircraft. 

SM

ALL J
ET (LESS THAN 20K MTOW)

MED
IUM JET (20K - 60K MTOW)

LA

RG
E JET (MORE THAN 60K MTOW)

SIN
GLE ENGINE PISTON

TW
IN ENGINE PISTON

TURBOPROP

4

10

2

1

0

2

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

APRIL 2020

AFTERHOURS CUSTOMS CLEARINGS

 8
 CLEARINGS

DURING VOLUNTARY CURFEW 
 3  OUT  OF  8

Chart 17: An afterhours clearing refers to any aircraft who clears Customs outside of their normal hours of operation. 
 These hours are Thursday - Monday from 10:30 - 18:30. This includes all aircraft who clear on Tuesdays and Wednesdays. 

Voluntary Curfew hours clearings refer to any aircraft who clears customs between the hours of 22:00 – 07:00. 

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS



B O C A  R A T O N  A I R P O R T  -  C U S T O M S  O P E R A T I O N S  R E P O R T

OPERATIONS REPORT
CUSTOMS

APRIL 2020

Chart 18: April 2019 total clearings compared to April 2020.  

176
APRIL 2019

19
APRIL 2020

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

240

260

280

300

May‘19 Jun‘19 Jul‘19 Aug‘19 Sep‘19 Oct‘19 Nov‘19 Dec‘19 Jan‘20 Feb‘20 Mar‘20 Apr‘20

Monthly - Customs Operations 

8
6

1
0

9

7
3

11
8

1
2

1
3

7
3 7
5

7
6

4
57

5

May‘18 Jun‘18 Jul‘18 Aug‘18 Sep‘18 Oct‘18 Nov‘18 Dec‘18 Jan‘19 Feb‘19 Mar‘19 Apr‘19

1
4

8
2

1
0

1
3

5

1
3

8

2
4

9
1

5
8

6
2

2
0

0

1
6

5

1
6

5 2
6

8

1
9

1
7

6



COVID-19 Operations Impact



Daily Operations

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

March and April 2019 Compared to March and April 2020

2020 2019 10 per. Mov. Avg. (2020) 10 per. Mov. Avg. (2019)



AvGas to Operations

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

Ga
llo

ns

Total Gallons of AvGas Received Annually Compared to Annual Operations

AvGas Operations

*Fuel data not 
available prior to 
2005.



Jet A to Operations

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

Ga
llo

ns

Total Annual Gallons of Jet A Received Annually Compared to Annual Operations

Jet A Operations

*Fuel data not 
available prior to 
2005.



Total Fuel Flow to  Operations

10/12/15 5

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

Ga
llo

ns

Total Gallons of Fuel Received Annually Compared to Annual Operations

Total Gallons Operations

*Fuel data not 
available prior to 
2005.



Annual Market Average Price Per Gallon to Fuel Flowage

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

$3.00

$3.50

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Ga
llo

ns

U
SD

Average Annual Market Jet A Price Per Gallon Compared to Gallons of Jet A Received

Average Jet A Market Price Fuel Flowage

U.S. Gulf Coast Kerosene-Type Jet Fuel Spot Price FOB, US$ per gallon
As of: Monday April 2, 2019
Source: US Energy Information Administration



 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Clara Bennett, Executive Director  

Date:  May 20, 2020 

RE: CARES Act Grant Acceptance 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM – IX – B 
 
As announced by the Secretary of Transportation on April 14, 2020, Boca Raton Airport 
is eligible for a one-time grant of $157,000 under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act (CARES Act).  
 
These funds may be used for operational expenses, such as payroll or utility bills. An 
application to use these funds for such eligible expenses was received by Airport 
Management and returned to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) on April 27th. The 
FAA has now offered the grant for BRAA acceptance, subject to all standard federal grant 
assurances. 
 
Airport Management recommends Airport Authority Board approval to accept the grant 
and to execute the FAA grant agreement, in accordance with FAA requirements.  
 
 







































 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Clara Bennett, Executive Director  

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE: Public Transportation Grant Agreement – Landside Beautification and 
Pedestrian Access Improvements 

 
AGENDA ITEM – IX – C  
 
The Florida Department of Transportation has offered a Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement (PTGA) for Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements, 
which are planned as part of the Airport Road improvements project. This element of the 
project includes landscaping and safety improvements to sidewalks and pedestrian 
access areas along Airport Road.  
 
The estimated total cost of this phase of the overall project is $350,000. The PTGA is for 
80% of the eligible project costs not to exceed $280,000.  The Airport Authority’s share 
totaling 20%, or $70,000, was included in the Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvements 
Budget. 
 
Airport Management recommends approval of Resolution Number 05-15-20 authorizing 
a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements 
included in the Airport Road improvements project.  
 



BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 05-15-20 
 

A Resolution of the Boca Raton Airport Authority approving a Public Transportation 
Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for 

Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements 
 

WHEREAS, The Boca Raton Airport Authority Act, Laws of Florida, provides that the Boca 
Raton Airport Authority (the “Authority”) shall have jurisdiction over the operation, maintenance 
of, and improvements to the Boca Raton Airport (the “Airport”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to provide landscaping and pedestrian access improvements 
along Airport Road and tenant access areas; 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with 
the State of Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”) for Financial Project No. 445961-1-
94-01 (the “Agreement”) Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements (the 
“Project”), which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, in order to initiate this project; 
 
WHEREAS, under the Agreement, FDOT’s total participation is limited to $280,000, or up to 
80% of eligible project costs, and the Authority’s participation is limited to $70,000, or up to 20% 
of eligible project costs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
BOCA RATON, FLORIDA, IN PUBLIC MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, THIS 20th DAY OF 
MAY 2020, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as the legislative intent of the 
Authority. 

 
2. The Authority hereby approves the Grant Agreement and authorizes the Chair or 

Vice-Chair to execute the agreement on its behalf.  
 
3. The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director and Airport Legal Counsel 

to do all things necessary or prudent to effectuate the intent of this Resolution 
Number 05-15-20. 

 
4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Boca Raton Airport Authority is hereby authorized 

to execute this Resolution Number 05-15-20. 
 
ADOPTED by the Boca Raton Airport Authority, this 20th day of May 2020. 

ATTEST:      BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY: 

              
James R. Nau                                                           Melvin Pollack                                              
Secretary & Treasurer                                             Chair 



1 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

  
Financial Project Number(s): 
(item-segment-phase-sequence) Fund(s):  DPTO FLAIR Category:  088719   

 445961-1-94-01  Work Activity Code/Function:  215 Object Code:  751000   

       Federal Number/Federal Award 
Identification Number (FAIN) – Transit only: 

 
 N/A 

Org. Code:  55042010429  

       Vendor Number:  VF592205856001   

  Contract Number:      Federal Award Date:  N/A     

  CFDA Number:  N/A Agency DUNS Number:          

  CFDA Title: N/A     

 CSFA Number: 55.004    

 CSFA Title: Aviation Grant Program    

      

 
THIS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into                                                 
_                              __           _, by and between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, 
(“Department”), and Boca Raton Airport Authority, (“Agency”). The Department and the Agency are sometimes 
referred to in this Agreement as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from joint participation on the 

Project, the Parties agree to the following: 

 
1. Authority. The Agency, by Resolution or other form of official authorization, a copy of which is attached 

as Exhibit “D”, Agency Resolution and made a part of this Agreement, has authorized its officers to 
execute this Agreement on its behalf.  The Department has the authority pursuant to Section(s) 332.007, 
Florida Statutes, to enter into this Agreement. 

 
2. Purpose of Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the Department’s participation 

in BCT Landside Beuatification and Pedestrian Access Improvements , as further described in Exhibit 
"A", Project Description and Responsibilities, attached and incorporated into this Agreement 
(“Project”), to provide Department financial assistance to the Agency, state the terms and conditions 
upon which Department funds will be provided, and to set forth the manner in which the Project will be 
undertaken and completed. 

 
3. Program Area. For identification purposes only, this Agreement is implemented as part of the Department 

program area selected below (select all programs that apply): 
 

  X Aviation   
      Seaports     

    Transit 
      Intermodal     
               Rail Crossing Closure 

    Match to Direct Federal Funding (Aviation or Transit) 
            (Note: Section 15 and Exhibit G do not apply to federally matched funding) 
    Other     

 
4. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement: 

 
 X Exhibit A: Project Description and Responsibilities  
 X Exhibit B: Schedule of Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit B1: Deferred Reimbursement Financial Provisions 
     *Exhibit B2: Advance Payment Financial Provisions  
 X *Exhibit C: Terms and Conditions of Construction   
 X Exhibit D: Agency Resolution 
 X Exhibit E: Program Specific Terms and Conditions 
 X Exhibit F: Contract Payment Requirements 
 X *Exhibit G: Audit Requirements for Awards of State Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit H: Audit Requirements for Awards of Federal Financial Assistance  



2 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

     *Additional Exhibit(s):     
 
            *Indicates that the Exhibit is only attached and incorporated if applicable box is selected. 
 
5. Time. Unless specified otherwise, all references to “days” within this Agreement refer to calendar days. 

 
6. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence upon full execution by both Parties (“Effective 

Date”) and continue through December 30, 2022. If the Agency does not complete the Project within this 
time period, this Agreement will expire unless an extension of the time period is requested by the Agency 
and granted in writing by the Department prior to the expiration of this Agreement. Expiration of this 
Agreement will be considered termination of the Project.  The cost of any work performed prior to the 
Effective Date or after the expiration date of this Agreement will not be reimbursed by the Department. 
 

a.      If this box is checked the following provision applies: 
 
Unless terminated earlier, work on the Project shall commence no later than the     day of    ,     
or within     days of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed for the construction phase of the 
Project (if the Project involves construction), whichever date is earlier. The Department shall 
have the option to immediately terminate this Agreement should the Agency fail to meet the 
above-required dates. 

 
7. Amendments, Extensions, and Assignment. This Agreement may be amended or extended upon 

mutual written agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement shall not be renewed. This Agreement shall not 
be assigned, transferred, or otherwise encumbered by the Agency under any circumstances without the 
prior written consent of the Department. 
 

8. Termination or Suspension of Project. The Department may, by written notice to the Agency, suspend 
any or all of the Department’s obligations under this Agreement for the Agency’s failure to comply with 
applicable law or the terms of this Agreement until such time as the event or condition resulting in such 
suspension has ceased or been corrected.  
 

a. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Department intends to terminate 
the Agreement, the Department shall notify the Agency of such termination in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the termination of the Agreement, with instructions to the effective date 
of termination or specify the stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. 

 
b. The Parties to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement when its continuation would not 

produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds. In this event, 
the Parties shall agree upon the termination conditions. 

 
c. If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, the Agency shall be paid 

only for that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. Such payment, 
however, may not exceed the equivalent percentage of the Department’s maximum financial 
assistance. If any portion of the Project is located on the Department’s right-of-way, then all 
work in progress on the Department right-of-way will become the property of the Department 
and will be turned over promptly by the Agency. 

 
d. In the event the Agency fails to perform or honor the requirements and provisions of this 

Agreement, the Agency shall promptly refund in full to the Department within thirty (30) days 
of the termination of the Agreement any funds that were determined by the Department to 
have been expended in violation of the Agreement. 

 
e. The Department reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement for failure by the 

Agency to comply with the Public Records provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 
 
9. Project Cost:  



3 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
a. The estimated total cost of the Project is $350,000. This amount is based upon Exhibit "B", 

Schedule of Financial Assistance. The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated 
amounts between deliverables within a grant phase, as outlined in Exhibit "B", Schedule of 
Financial Assistance, may be modified by mutual written agreement of the Parties and does 
not require execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant Agreement. 
The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated amounts between grant phases 
requires an amendment executed by both Parties in the same form as this Agreement. 
 

b. The Department agrees to participate in the Project cost up to the maximum amount of 
$280,000 and, the Department’s participation in the Project shall not exceed 80.00% of the 
total eligible cost of the Project, and as more fully described in Exhibit “B’’, Schedule of 
Financial Assistance. The Agency agrees to bear all expenses in excess of the amount of 
the Department’s participation and any cost overruns or deficits involved. 

 
10. Compensation and Payment: 
 

a. Eligible Cost. The Department shall reimburse the Agency for allowable costs incurred as 
described in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in 
Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance. 
 

b. Deliverables. The Agency shall provide quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of 
deliverables.  Each deliverable must specify the required minimum level of service to be 
performed and the criteria for evaluating successful completion.  The Project and the 
quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of deliverables are described more fully in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities. Modifications to the deliverables in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities requires a formal written 
amendment. 

 
c. Invoicing. Invoices shall be submitted no more often than monthly by the Agency in detail 

sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit, based on the quantifiable, measurable, and 
verifiable deliverables as established in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities. Deliverables and costs incurred must be received and approved by the 
Department prior to reimbursement. Requests for reimbursement by the Agency shall include 
an invoice, progress report, and supporting documentation for the deliverables being billed 
that are acceptable to the Department. The Agency shall use the format for the invoice and 
progress report that is approved by the Department. 

 
d. Supporting Documentation. Supporting documentation must establish that the deliverables 

were received and accepted in writing by the Agency and must also establish that the required 
minimum standards or level of service to be performed based on the criteria for evaluating 
successful completion as specified in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities has been met. All costs invoiced shall be supported by properly executed 
payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in proper detail the nature 
and propriety of charges as described in Exhibit “F”, Contract Payment Requirements. 

 
e. Travel Expenses. The selected provision below is controlling regarding travel expenses: 

 
X Travel expenses are NOT eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement.  
 
    Travel expenses ARE eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement. Bills for travel 
expenses specifically authorized in this Agreement shall be submitted on the Department’s 
Contractor Travel Form No. 300-000-06 and will be paid in accordance with Section 112.061, 
Florida Statutes, and the most current version of the Department’s Disbursement Handbook 
for Employees and Managers. 

 



4 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

f. Financial Consequences. Payment shall be made only after receipt and approval of 
deliverables and costs incurred unless advance payments are authorized by the Chief 
Financial Officer of the State of Florida under Chapters 215 and 216, Florida Statutes, or the 
Department’s Comptroller under Section 334.044(29), Florida Statutes.  If the Department 
determines that the performance of the Agency is unsatisfactory, the Department shall notify 
the Agency of the deficiency to be corrected, which correction shall be made within a time-
frame to be specified by the Department. The Agency shall, within thirty (30) days after notice 
from the Department, provide the Department with a corrective action plan describing how the 
Agency will address all issues of contract non-performance, unacceptable performance, 
failure to meet the minimum performance levels, deliverable deficiencies, or contract non-
compliance.  If the corrective action plan is unacceptable to the Department, the Agency will 
not be reimbursed.  If the deficiency is subsequently resolved, the Agency may bill the 
Department for the amount that was previously not reimbursed during the next billing period.  If 
the Agency is unable to resolve the deficiency, the funds shall be forfeited at the end of the 
Agreement’s term. 
 

g. Invoice Processing. An Agency receiving financial assistance from the Department should 
be aware of the following time frames.  Inspection or verification and approval of deliverables 
shall take no longer than 20 days from the Department’s receipt of the invoice.  The 
Department has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of 
Financial Services.  The 20 days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is 
received or the deliverables are received, inspected or verified, and approved.  

 
If a payment is not available within 40 days, a separate interest penalty at a rate as established 
pursuant to Section 55.03(1), Florida Statutes, will be due and payable, in addition to the 
invoice amount, to the Agency.  Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be 
enforced unless the Agency requests payment.  Invoices that have to be returned to an Agency 
because of Agency preparation errors will result in a delay in the payment.  The invoice 
payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to the 
Department. 
 
A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services.  
The duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for Agency who may be 
experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor 
Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516. 

 
h. Records Retention. The Agency shall maintain an accounting system or separate accounts 

to ensure funds and projects are tracked separately. Records of costs incurred under the terms 
of this Agreement shall be maintained and made available upon request to the Department at 
all times during the period of this Agreement and for five years after final payment is made.  
Copies of these records shall be furnished to the Department upon request.  Records of costs 
incurred include the Agency's general accounting records and the Project records, together 
with supporting documents and records, of the Contractor and all subcontractors performing 
work on the Project, and all other records of the Contractor and subcontractors considered 
necessary by the Department for a proper audit of costs. 
 

i. Progress Reports. Upon request, the Agency agrees to provide progress reports to the 
Department in the standard format used by the Department and at intervals established by the 
Department. The Department will be entitled at all times to be advised, at its request, as to the 
status of the Project and of details thereof. 

 
j. Submission of Other Documents. The Agency shall submit to the Department such data, 

reports, records, contracts, and other documents relating to the Project as the Department 
may require as listed in Exhibit "E", Program Specific Terms and Conditions attached to 
and incorporated into this Agreement. 

 



5 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

k. Offsets for Claims. If, after Project completion, any claim is made by the Department resulting 
from an audit or for work or services performed pursuant to this Agreement, the Department 
may offset such amount from payments due for work or services done under any agreement 
that it has with the Agency owing such amount if, upon written demand, payment of the amount 
is not made within 60 days to the Department.  Offsetting any amount pursuant to this 
paragraph shall not be considered a breach of contract by the Department. 

 
l. Final Invoice. The Agency must submit the final invoice on the Project to the Department 

within 120 days after the completion of the Project.  Invoices submitted after the 120-day time 
period may not be paid. 
 

m. Department’s Performance and Payment Contingent Upon Annual Appropriation by the 
Legislature. The Department’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature.  If the Department's funding for 
this Project is in multiple fiscal years, a notice of availability of funds from the Department’s 
project manager must be received prior to costs being incurred by the Agency.  See Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance for funding levels by fiscal year.  Project costs 
utilizing any fiscal year funds are not eligible for reimbursement if incurred prior to funds 
approval being received.  The Department will notify the Agency, in writing, when funds are 
available. 

 
n. Limits on Contracts Exceeding $25,000 and Term more than 1 Year. In the event this 

Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period of more than one year, the 
provisions of Section 339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are hereby incorporated:  

 
"The Department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any 
liability, or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure 
of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure 
during such fiscal year.  Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of 
this subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid on such contract.  
The Department shall require a statement from the comptroller of the 
Department that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract 
or other binding commitment of funds.  Nothing herein contained shall prevent 
the making of contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so 
made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or 
agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be 
incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an 
amount in excess of $25,000 and which have a term for a period of more than 
1 year." 

 

o. Agency Obligation to Refund Department. Any Project funds made available by the 
Department pursuant to this Agreement that are determined by the Department to have been 
expended by the Agency in violation of this Agreement or any other applicable law or 
regulation shall be promptly refunded in full to the Department. Acceptance by the Department 
of any documentation or certifications, mandatory or otherwise permitted, that the Agency files 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Department's rights as the funding agency to verify all 
information at a later date by audit or investigation. 

 
p. Non-Eligible Costs. In determining the amount of the payment, the Department will exclude 

all Project costs incurred by the Agency prior to the execution of this Agreement, costs incurred 
after the expiration of the Agreement, costs that are not provided for in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial 
Assistance, costs agreed to be borne by the Agency or its contractors and subcontractors for 
not meeting the Project commencement and final invoice time lines, and costs attributable to 
goods or services received under a contract or other arrangement that has not been approved 



6 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

in writing by the Department. Specific unallowable costs may be listed in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities. 

 
11. General Requirements. The Agency shall complete the Project with all practical dispatch in a sound, 

economical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the provisions in this Agreement and all 
applicable laws.  

 
a. Necessary Permits Certification. The Agency shall certify to the Department that the 

Agency’s design consultant and/or construction contractor has secured the necessary permits.   
 

b. Right-of-Way Certification. If the Project involves construction, then the Agency shall provide 
to the Department certification and a copy of appropriate documentation substantiating that all 
required right-of-way necessary for the Project has been obtained. Certification is required 
prior to authorization for advertisement for or solicitation of bids for construction of the Project, 
even if no right-of-way is required. 
 

c. Notification Requirements When Performing Construction on Department’s Right-of-
Way. In the event the cost of the Project is greater than $250,000.00, and the Project involves 
construction on the Department’s right-of-way, the Agency shall provide the Department with 
written notification of either its intent to: 
 

i. Require the construction work of the Project that is on the Department’s right-of-way 
to be performed by a Department prequalified contractor, or 

 
ii. Construct the Project utilizing existing Agency employees, if the Agency can 

complete said Project within the time frame set forth in this Agreement. 
 

d.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize its own forces and the following 
provision applies: Use of Agency Workforce. In the event the Agency proceeds with any 
phase of the Project utilizing its own forces, the Agency will only be reimbursed for direct costs 
(this excludes general overhead). 
 

e.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize Indirect Costs: 
Reimbursement for Indirect Program Expenses (select one): 
 

i.     Agency has selected to seek reimbursement from the Department for actual indirect 
expenses (no rate).  

 
ii.     Agency has selected to apply a de minimus rate of 10% to modified total direct 

costs.  Note:  The de minimus rate is available only to entities that have never had a 
negotiated indirect cost rate. When selected, the de minimus rate must be used 
consistently for all federal awards until such time the agency chooses to negotiate a 
rate. A cost policy statement and de minimis certification form must be submitted to 
the Department for review and approval.  

 
iii.      Agency has selected to apply a state or federally approved indirect cost rate.  A 

federally approved rate agreement or indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) must be 
submitted annually.    

 
f. Agency Compliance with Laws, Rules, and Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards. The 

Agency shall comply and require its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations 
applicable to this Project. 
 

g. Claims and Requests for Additional Work. The Agency shall have the sole responsibility 
for resolving claims and requests for additional work for the Project. The Agency will make 



7 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

best efforts to obtain the Department’s input in its decisions. The Department is not obligated 
to reimburse for claims or requests for additional work. 

 
12. Contracts of the Agency: 

 
a. Approval of Third Party Contracts. The Department specifically reserves the right to review 

and approve any and all third party contracts with respect to the Project before the Agency 
executes or obligates itself in any manner requiring the disbursement of Department funds, 
including consultant and purchase of commodities contracts, or amendments thereto. If the 
Department chooses to review and approve third party contracts for this Project and the 
Agency fails to obtain such approval, that shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the 
Department. The Department specifically reserves unto itself the right to review the 
qualifications of any consultant or contractor and to approve or disapprove the employment of 
the same. If Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds are used in the Project, the 
Department must exercise the right to third party contract review. 
 

b. Procurement of Commodities or Contractual Services. It is understood and agreed by the 
Parties hereto that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves the purchase of commodities or contractual services where purchases or 
costs exceed the Threshold Amount for CATEGORY TWO per Section 287.017, Florida 
Statutes, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with the provisions of Section 287.057, 
Florida Statutes. The Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department that the 
Agency’s purchase of commodities or contractual services has been accomplished in 
compliance with Section 287.057, Florida Statutes. It shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Agency to ensure that any obligations made in accordance with this Section comply with the 
current threshold limits. Contracts, purchase orders, task orders, construction change orders, 
or any other agreement that would result in exceeding the current budget contained in Exhibit 
"B", Schedule of Financial Assistance, or that is not consistent with the Project description 
and scope of services contained in Exhibit "A", Project Description and Responsibilities 
must be approved by the Department prior to Agency execution. Failure to obtain such 
approval, and subsequent execution of an amendment to the Agreement if required, shall be 
sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department, in accordance with this Agreement. 
 

c. Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act. It is understood and agreed by the Parties to 
this Agreement that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves a consultant contract for professional services, is contingent on the Agency’s 
full compliance with provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes, Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. In all cases, the Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department 
that selection has been accomplished in compliance with the Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. 

 
d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy and Obligation. It is the policy of the 

Department that DBEs, as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended, shall have the 
opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with 
Department funds under this Agreement.  The DBE requirements of applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations apply to this Agreement. The Agency and its contractors agree to 
ensure that DBEs have the opportunity to participate in the performance of this Agreement.  
In this regard, all recipients and contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in 
accordance with   applicable federal and state laws and regulations to ensure that the DBEs 
have the opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.  The Agency and its contractors 
and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in 
the award and performance of contracts, entered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
13. Maintenance Obligations. In the event the Project includes construction or the acquisition of commodities 

then the following provisions are incorporated into this Agreement: 
 



8 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

a. The Agency agrees to accept all future maintenance and other attendant costs occurring after 
completion of the Project for all improvements constructed or commodities acquired as part of 
the Project. The terms of this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

14. Sale, Transfer, or Disposal of Department-funded Property: 
 

a. The Agency will not sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title or other 
interests in real property, facilities, or equipment funded in any part by the Department under 
this Agreement without prior written approval by the Department. 
 

b. If a sale, transfer, or disposal by the Agency of all or a portion of Department-funded real 
property, facilities, or equipment is approved by the Department, the following provisions will 
apply: 
 

i. The Agency shall reimburse the Department a proportional amount of the proceeds 
of the sale of any Department-funded property. 
 

ii. The proportional amount shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the 
Department funding of the development or acquisition of the property multiplied 
against the sale amount, and shall be remitted to the Department within ninety (90) 
days of closing of sale. 
 

iii. Sale of property developed or acquired with Department funds shall be at market 
value as determined by appraisal or public bidding process, and the contract and 
process for sale must be approved in advance by the Department. 
 

iv. If any portion of the proceeds from the sale to the Agency are non-cash 
considerations, reimbursement to the Department shall include a proportional 
amount based on the value of the non-cash considerations. 
 

c. The terms of provisions “a” and “b” above shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  

i. The terms shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of facilities 
developed, equipment acquired, or Project items installed within a facility, but shall 
not exceed twenty (20) years from the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

ii. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms with respect to real property 
acquired with Department funds.  

 
15. Single Audit. The administration of Federal or State resources awarded through the Department to the 

Agency by this Agreement may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department. The following 
requirements do not limit the authority of the Department to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional 
audits or evaluations of Federal awards or State financial assistance or limit the authority of any state 
agency inspector general, the State of Florida Auditor General, or any other state official. The Agency shall 
comply with all audit and audit reporting requirements as specified below. 

 
Federal Funded: 
 

a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements, monitoring procedures may include but not be limited to on-site visits by 
Department staff and/or other procedures, including reviewing any required performance and 
financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective action, and issuing management decisions 
on weaknesses found through audits when those findings pertain to Federal awards provided 
through the Department by this Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency 
agrees to comply and cooperate fully with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed 
appropriate by the Department. The Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any 



9 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Department, State of 
Florida Chief Financial Officer (CFO), or State of Florida Auditor General. 
 

b. The Agency, a non-Federal entity as defined by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, as a subrecipient of a Federal award awarded by the Department through this 
Agreement, is subject to the following requirements: 
 

i. In the event the Agency expends a total amount of Federal awards equal to or in 
excess of the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the Agency must have a Federal single or program-specific audit 
conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F – Audit Requirements. Exhibit “H”, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
Federal Financial Assistance, to this Agreement provides the required Federal 
award identification information needed by the Agency to further comply with the 
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. In determining 
Federal awards expended in a fiscal year, the Agency must consider all sources of 
Federal awards based on when the activity related to the Federal award occurs, 
including the Federal award provided through the Department by this Agreement. The 
determination of amounts of Federal awards expended should be in accordance with 
the guidelines established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. An 
audit conducted by the State of Florida Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, will meet the 
requirements of this part. 
 

ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall fulfill the requirements 
relative to the auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements. 
 

iii. In the event the Agency expends less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, in Federal awards, the Agency is exempt from 
Federal audit requirements for that fiscal year. However, the Agency must provide a 
single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency expends 
less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, in Federal awards in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-Federal resources (i.e., the 
cost of such an audit must be paid from the Agency’s resources obtained from other 
than Federal entities). 
 

iv. The Agency must electronically submit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) at 
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ the audit reporting package as required by 2 
CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, within the earlier of 30 calendar days 
after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
The FAC is the repository of record for audits required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F 
– Audit Requirements. However, the Department requires a copy of the audit reporting 
package also be submitted to FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us within the earlier of 
30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end 
of the audit period as required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. 
 

v. Within six months of acceptance of the audit report by the FAC, the Department will 
review the Agency’s audit reporting package, including corrective action plans and 
management letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and 
appropriate action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the Federal award 
provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails to have an 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


10 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, 
the Department may impose additional conditions to remedy noncompliance. If the 
Department determines that noncompliance cannot be remedied by imposing 
additional conditions, the Department may take appropriate actions to enforce 
compliance, which actions may include but not be limited to the following: 
 

1. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 
the Agency or more severe enforcement action by the Department; 

2. Disallow (deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all 
or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance; 

3. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award; 
4. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 C.F.R. 

Part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations (or in the case of the 
Department, recommend such a proceeding be initiated by the Federal 
awarding agency); 

5. Withhold further Federal awards for the Project or program; 
6. Take other remedies that may be legally available. 

 
vi. As a condition of receiving this Federal award, the Agency shall permit the Department 

or its designee, the CFO, or State of Florida Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, and 
project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals, 
or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is resolved. 
 

vii. The Department’s contact information for requirements under this part is as follows: 
 

Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
605 Suwannee Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 

 
State Funded: 

 
a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, 

monitoring procedures to monitor the Agency’s use of state financial assistance may include 
but not be limited to on-site visits by Department staff and/or other procedures, including 
reviewing any required performance and financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective 
action, and issuing management decisions on weaknesses found through audits when those 
findings pertain to state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this 
Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency agrees to comply and cooperate fully 
with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department. The 
Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, 
or audits deemed necessary by the Department, the Department of Financial Services (DFS), 
or State of Florida Auditor General. 

 
b. The Agency, a “nonstate entity” as defined by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, as a recipient 

of state financial assistance awarded by the Department through this Agreement, is subject to 
the following requirements: 

   
i. In the event the Agency meets the audit threshold requirements established by 

Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency must have a State single or project-
specific audit conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes; applicable rules of the Department of Financial Services; and 
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. Exhibit “G”, Audit Requirements for 
Awards of State Financial Assistance, to this Agreement indicates state financial 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


11 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

assistance awarded through the Department by this Agreement needed by the 
Agency to further comply with the requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. 
In determining the state financial assistance expended in a fiscal year, the Agency 
shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial 
assistance received from the Department by this Agreement, other state agencies, 
and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal direct 
or pass-through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for Federal 
program matching requirements. 

 
ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall ensure that the audit 

complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes 
submission of a financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(e), 
Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 
(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

 
iii. In the event the Agency does not meet the audit threshold requirements established 

by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency is exempt for such fiscal year from 
the state single audit requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. However, the 
Agency must provide a single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency does 
not meet the audit threshold requirements established by Section 215.97, Florida 
Statutes, in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the Agency’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Agency’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

 
iv. In accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 

(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, copies of 
financial reporting packages required by this Agreement shall be submitted to: 

   
  Florida Department of Transportation 
  Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
  605 Suwannee Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0405 
  FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 
   
  And 
 

 State of Florida Auditor General 
 Local Government Audits/342 
 111 West Madison Street, Room 401 
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1450 
 Email: flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us 

 
v. Any copies of financial reporting packages, reports, or other information required to 

be submitted to the Department shall be submitted timely in accordance with Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as 
applicable. 

 
vi. The Agency, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for 

audits done in accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should 
indicate the date the reporting package was delivered to the Agency in 
correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us


12 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
vii. Upon receipt, and within six months, the Department will review the Agency’s 

financial reporting package, including corrective action plans and management 
letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and appropriate 
corrective action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the state financial 
assistance provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails 
to have an audit conducted consistent with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the 
Department may take appropriate corrective action to enforce compliance. 

 
viii. As a condition of receiving state financial assistance, the Agency shall permit the 

Department or its designee, DFS, or the Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, 
and project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, 
appeals, or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is 
resolved. 

 

c. The Agency shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued and shall allow 
the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General access to such 
records upon request. The Agency shall ensure that the audit working papers are made 
available to the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General upon 
request for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in 
writing by the Department. 

 

16. Notices and Approvals. Notices and approvals referenced in this Agreement must be obtained in writing 
from the Parties’ respective Administrators or their designees. 
 

17. Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls and Labor Provisions: 
 

a. Convicted Vendor List. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor 
list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases 
of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not 
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 
287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of 
being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 

b. Discriminatory Vendor List. In accordance with Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, an entity 
or affiliate who has been placed on the Discriminatory Vendor List, kept by the Florida 
Department of Management Services, may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or 
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity. 

 
c. Non-Responsible Contractors. An entity or affiliate who has had its Certificate of 

Qualification suspended, revoked, denied, or have further been determined by the Department 
to be a non-responsible contractor, may not submit a bid or perform work for the construction 
or repair of a public building or public work on a contract with the Agency. 

 



13 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

d. Prohibition on Using Funds for Lobbying. No funds received pursuant to this Agreement 
may be expended for lobbying the Florida Legislature, judicial branch, or any state agency, in 
accordance with Section 216.347, Florida Statutes. 

 
e. Unauthorized Aliens. The Department shall consider the employment by any contractor of 

unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If 
the contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation will be cause for 
unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. 

 
f. Procurement of Construction Services. If the Project is procured pursuant to Chapter 255, 

Florida Statutes, for construction services and at the time of the competitive solicitation for the 
Project, 50 percent or more of the cost of the Project is to be paid from state-appropriated 
funds, then the Agency must comply with the requirements of Section 255.0991, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
g. E-Verify. The Agency shall: 

 

i. Utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the 
contract; and  
 

ii. Expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant 
to the state contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-
Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the 
subcontractor during the contract term. 

 
h. Design Services and Construction Engineering and Inspection Services.  If the Project 

is wholly or partially funded by the Department and administered by a local governmental 
entity, except for a seaport listed in Section 311.09, Florida Statutes, the entity performing 
design and construction engineering and inspection services may not be the same entity.  

 

18. Indemnification and Insurance: 
 

a. It is specifically agreed between the Parties executing this Agreement that it is not intended 
by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member 
thereof, a third party beneficiary under this Agreement, or to authorize anyone not a party to 
this Agreement to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the 
terms or provisions of this Agreement.  The Agency guarantees the payment of all just claims 
for materials, supplies, tools, or labor and other just claims against the Agency or any 
subcontractor, in connection with this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including the 
Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, 
but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, 
recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the Agency and persons employed or 
utilized by the Agency in the performance of this Agreement. This indemnification shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency agrees to include the following 
indemnification in all contracts with contractors/subcontractors and 
consultants/subconsultants who perform work in connection with this Agreement: 
 
“To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Agency’s contractor/consultant shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the Agency and the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including 
the Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and costs, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the 
negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the contractor/consultant and 



14 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

persons employed or utilized by the contractor/consultant in the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
This indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement.” 

 

b. The Agency shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with Florida’s 
Workers’ Compensation law for all employees. If subletting any of the work, ensure that the 
subcontractor(s) and subconsultant(s) have Workers’ Compensation Insurance for their 
employees in accordance with Florida’s Workers’ Compensation law. If using “leased 
employees” or employees obtained through professional employer organizations (“PEO’s”), 
ensure that such employees are covered by Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the 
PEO’s or other leasing entities. Ensure that any equipment rental agreements that include 
operators or other personnel who are employees of independent contractors, sole 
proprietorships, or partners are covered by insurance required under Florida’s Workers' 
Compensation law. 
 

c. If the Agency elects to self-perform the Project, then the Agency may self-insure. If the Agency 
elects to hire a contractor or consultant to perform the Project, then the Agency shall carry, or 
cause its contractor or consultant to carry, Commercial General Liability insurance providing 
continuous coverage for all work or operations performed under this Agreement. Such 
insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the latest occurrence form edition 
of the standard Commercial General Liability Coverage Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed 
for use in the State of Florida. The Agency shall cause, or cause its contractor or consultant 
to cause, the Department to be made an Additional Insured as to such insurance. Such 
coverage shall be on an “occurrence” basis and shall include Products/Completed Operations 
coverage. The coverage afforded to the Department as an Additional Insured shall be primary 
as to any other available insurance and shall not be more restrictive than the coverage 
afforded to the Named Insured. The limits of coverage shall not be less than $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence and not less than a $5,000,000 annual general aggregate, inclusive of 
amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy. The limits of coverage described herein 
shall apply fully to the work or operations performed under the Agreement, and may not be 
shared with or diminished by claims unrelated to the Agreement. The policy/ies and coverage 
described herein may be subject to a deductible and such deductibles shall be paid by the 
Named Insured. No policy/ies or coverage described herein may contain or be subject to a 
Retention or a Self-Insured Retention unless the Agency is a state agency or subdivision of 
the State of Florida that elects to self-perform the Project. Prior to the execution of the 
Agreement, and at all renewal periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, the 
Department shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the 
coverage described herein. The Department shall be notified in writing within ten days of any 
cancellation, notice of cancellation, lapse, renewal, or proposed change to any policy or 
coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any policy/ies, 
coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to procure and 
maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights or defenses the 
Department may have. 
 

d. When the Agreement includes the construction of a railroad grade crossing, railroad overpass 
or underpass structure, or any other work or operations within the limits of the railroad right-
of-way, including any encroachments thereon from work or operations in the vicinity of the 
railroad right-of-way, the Agency shall, or cause its contractor to, in addition to the insurance 
coverage required above, procure and maintain Railroad Protective Liability Coverage (ISO 
Form CG 00 35) where the railroad is the Named Insured and where the limits are not less 
than $2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per 
occurrence, and with an annual aggregate limit of not less than $6,000,000. The railroad shall 
also be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the policy/ies procured 
pursuant to the paragraph above. Prior to the execution of the Agreement, and at all renewal 
periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, both the Department and the railroad 



15 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the coverage 
described herein. The insurance described herein shall be maintained through final 
acceptance of the work. Both the Department and the railroad shall be notified in writing within 
ten days of any cancellation, notice of cancellation, renewal, or proposed change to any policy 
or coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any 
policy/ies, coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to 
procure and maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights the 
Department may have.  
 

e. When the Agreement involves work on or in the vicinity of utility-owned property or facilities, 
the utility shall be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the 
Commercial General Liability policy/ies procured above.  

 
19. Miscellaneous: 

 

a. Environmental Regulations. The Agency will be solely responsible for compliance with all 
applicable environmental regulations and for any liability arising from non-compliance with 
these regulations, and will reimburse the Department for any loss incurred in connection 
therewith.  

 
b. Non-Admission of Liability. In no event shall the making by the Department of any payment 

to the Agency constitute or be construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach of 
covenant or any default which may then exist on the part of the Agency and the making of 
such payment by the Department, while any such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way 
impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department with respect to such breach 
or default.  

 
c. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this 

Agreement shall not be affected.  In such an instance, the remainder would then continue to 
conform to the terms and requirements of applicable law.  

 
d. Agency not an agent of Department. The Agency and the Department agree that the 

Agency, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, and subconsultants are not 
agents of the Department as a result of this Agreement. 

 
e. Bonus or Commission. By execution of the Agreement, the Agency represents that it has 

not paid and, also agrees not to pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining 
an approval of its application for the financing hereunder.  

 
f. Non-Contravention of State Law. Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Agency to 

observe or enforce compliance with any provision or perform any act or do any other thing in 
contravention of any applicable state law. If any of the provisions of the Agreement violate any 
applicable state law, the Agency will at once notify the Department in writing so that 
appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Department and the Agency to 
the end that the Agency may proceed as soon as possible with the Project.  

 
g. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute the same 
Agreement.  A facsimile or electronic transmission of this Agreement with a signature on behalf 
of a party will be legal and binding on such party. 

 
h. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN). If the FAIN is not available prior to execution 

of the Agreement, the Department may unilaterally add the FAIN to the Agreement without 
approval of the Agency and without an amendment to the Agreement. If this occurs, an 



16 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

updated Agreement that includes the FAIN will be provided to the Agency and uploaded to the 
Department of Financial Services’ Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS). 

 
i. Inspector General Cooperation. The Agency agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), 

Florida Statutes, and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 
20.055(5), Florida Statutes.  

 
j. Law, Forum, and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Florida.  In the event of a conflict between any portion of the 
contract and Florida law, the laws of Florida shall prevail.  The Agency agrees to waive forum 
and venue and that the Department shall determine the forum and venue in which any dispute 
under this Agreement is decided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
 
AGENCY  Boca Raton Airport Authority 

  
 
By:  
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
By:  
 
Name:  Steven C Braun, P.E. 
 
Title:   Director of Transportation Development 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Legal Review: 
 
 
      
 
 

 



17 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description and Responsibilities  
 
 
A. Project Description (description of Agency’s project to provide context, description of project components funded 
via this Agreement (if not the entire project)): BCT Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements  
 
B. Project Location (limits, city, county, map): Boca Raton Airport/Boca Raton, FL/Palm Beach 
 
C. Project Scope (allowable costs: describe project components, improvement type/service type, approximate 
timeline, project schedule, project size): Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements.  As required by 
215.971, F.S., this scope of work includes but is not limited to consultant and design fees, survey and geotechnical 
costs, permitting, construction inspection and material testing costs, mobilization and demobilization, maintenance of 
traffic, erosion control, demolition, pavement (curbs, sidewalks), drainage, utilities, marking, lighting and signage, 
landscaping (including outdoor lighting), ground preparation; irrigation improvements, culvert installation; stormwater 
inlet improvements; sodding; seeding, including all materials, equipment, labor, and incidentals required to complete 
the Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements. The Sponsor will comply with Aviation Program 
Assurances. 
 
D. Deliverable(s): Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements 
 
The project scope identifies the ultimate project deliverables. Deliverables for requisition, payment and invoice 
purposes will be the incremental progress made toward completion of project scope elements. Supporting 
documentation will be quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable, to allow for a determination of the amount of 
incremental progress that has been made, and provide evidence that the payment requested is commensurate with 
the accomplished incremental progress and costs incurred by the Agency. 
 
 
E. Unallowable Costs (including but not limited to):     
 
F. Transit Operating Grant Requirements (Transit Only): 
 
Transit Operating Grants billed as an operational subsidy will require an expenditure detail report from the Agency that 
matches the invoice period.  The expenditure detail, along with the progress report, will be the required deliverables for 
Transit Operating Grants. 



18 of 37



19 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Schedule of Financial Assistance 
 
 

FUNDS AWARDED TO THE AGENCY AND REQUIRED MATCHING FUNDS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT 
CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

A. Fund Type and Fiscal Year: 
 

Financial 
Management 

Number 

Fund 
Type 

FLAIR 
Category 

State 
Fiscal 
Year 

Object 
Code 

CSFA/ 
CFDA 

Number 

CSFA/CFDA Title or 
Funding Source 

Description 

Funding 
Amount 

445961-1-94-01 
 

445961-1-94-01 

DPTO 
 

LF 

088719 
 

088719 

2021 
 

2021 

751000 
 

751000 

55.004 
 

55.004 

Aviation Grant Program 
 

Aviation Grant Program 

$280,000 
 

$70,000 

 Total Financial Assistance $350,000 

 
 

B. Estimate of Project Costs by Grant Phase: 
 

Phases* State Local Federal Totals 
State 

% 
Local 

% 
Federal 

% 

Land Acquisition $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Planning $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Environmental/Design/Construction $280,000 $70,000 $0 $350,000 80.00 20.00 0.00 

Capital Equipment  $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Match to Direct Federal Funding $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Mobility Management 
(Transit Only) 

$0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Totals $280,000 $70,000 $0 $350,000    

   *Shifting items between these grant phases requires execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement. 
 
 

 
BUDGET/COST ANALYSIS CERTIFICATION AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 216.3475, FLORIDA STATUTES: 
 
I certify that the cost for each line item budget category (grant phase) has been evaluated and determined to be 
allowable, reasonable, and necessary as required by Section 216.3475, Florida Statutes. Documentation is on file 
evidencing the methodology used and the conclusions reached. 
 
Laurie McDermott  

Department Grant Manager Name  
  

Signature                                     Date 
 

 



20 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

        TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION  
 

1. Design and Construction Standards and Required Approvals. 
 

a. The Agency understands that it is responsible for the preparation and certification of all design 
plans for the Project. The Agency shall hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the 
Project or, if applicable, the Agency shall require their design-build contractor or construction 
management contractor to hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the Project. 

 
b. Execution of this Agreement by both Parties shall be deemed a Notice to Proceed to the 

Agency for the design phase or other non-construction phases of the Project. If the Project 
involves a construction phase, the Agency shall not begin the construction phase of the Project 
until the Department issues a Notice to Proceed for the construction phase. Prior to 
commencing the construction work described in this Agreement, the Agency shall request a 
Notice to Proceed from the Department’s Project Manager,  Laurie McDermott (email: 
laurie.mcdermott@dot.state.fl.us)  or from an appointed designee.   Any construction phase 
work performed prior to the execution of this required Notice to Proceed is not subject to 
reimbursement. 

 
c. The Agency will provide one (1) copy of the final design plans and specifications and final bid 

documents to the Department’s Project Manager prior to bidding or commencing construction 
of the Project.   

 
d. The Agency shall require the Agency’s contractor to post a payment and performance bond 

in accordance with applicable law(s). 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible to ensure that the construction work under this Agreement 
is performed in accordance with the approved construction documents, and that the 
construction work will meet all applicable Agency and Department standards.   

 
f. Upon completion of the work authorized by this Agreement, the Agency shall notify the 

Department in writing of the completion of construction of the Project; and for all design work 
that originally required certification by a Professional Engineer, this notification shall contain 
an Engineer’s Certification of Compliance, signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, the 
form of which is attached to this Exhibit. The certification shall state that work has been 
completed in compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications. If any 
deviations are found from the approved plans or specifications, the certification shall include 
a list of all deviations along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 
deviation. 

 

2. Construction on the Department’s Right of Way. If the Project involves construction on the 
Department’s right-of-way, then the following provisions apply to any and all portions of the Project 
that are constructed on the Department’s right-of-way: 
 

a. The Agency shall hire a qualified contractor using the Agency’s normal bid procedures to 
perform the construction work for the Project. The Agency must certify that the installation of 
the Project is completed by a Contractor prequalified by the Department as required by Section 
2 of the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (2016), as amended, unless 
otherwise approved by the Department in writing or the Contractor exhibits past project 
experience in the last five years that are comparable in scale, composition, and overall quality 
to the site characterized within the scope of services of this Project. 
 



21 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

b. Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) services will be provided by the Agency by hiring a 
Department prequalified consultant firm including one individual that has completed the 
Advanced Maintenance of Traffic Level Training, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department in writing. The CEI staff shall be present on the Project at all times that the 
contractor is working.  Administration of the CEI staff shall be under the responsible charge of 
a State of Florida Licensed Professional Engineer who shall provide the certification that all 
design and construction for the Project meets the minimum construction standards established 
by Department. The Department shall approve all CEI personnel.  The CEI firm shall not be 
the same firm as that of the Engineer of Record for the Project. The Department shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to perform independent assurance testing during the course 
of construction of the Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Department may issue a 
written waiver of the CEI requirement for portions of Projects involving the construction of bus 
shelters, stops, or pads.   
 

c. The Project shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the latest edition of the 
Department’s Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, the Department 
Design Standards, and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). The following 
guidelines shall apply as deemed appropriate by the Department: the Department Structures 
Design Manual, AASHTO Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges, AASHTO 
LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, Florida Design Manual, Manual for Uniform Minimum 
Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and Highways (the “Florida 
Green Book”), and the Department Traffic Engineering Manual. The Agency will be required 
to submit any construction plans required by the Department for review and approval prior to 
any work being commenced. Should any changes to the plans be required during construction 
of the Project, the Agency shall be required to notify the Department of the changes and 
receive approval from the Department prior to the changes being constructed. The Agency 
shall maintain the area of the Project at all times and coordinate any work needs of the 
Department during construction of the Project.  
 

d. The Agency shall notify the Department a minimum of 48 hours before beginning construction 
within Department right-of-way. The Agency shall notify the Department should construction 
be suspended for more than 5 working days.  The Department contact person for construction 
is    . 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible for monitoring construction operations and the maintenance 
of traffic (MOT) throughout the course of the Project in accordance with the latest edition of 
the Department Standard Specifications, section 102. The Agency is responsible for the 
development of a MOT plan and making any changes to that plan as necessary. The MOT 
plan shall be in accordance with the latest version of the Department Design Standards, Index 
600 series. Any MOT plan developed by the Agency that deviates from the Department Design 
Standards must be signed and sealed by a professional engineer. MOT plans will require 
approval by the Department prior to implementation.  
 

f. The Agency shall be responsible for locating all existing utilities, both aerial and underground, 
and for ensuring that all utility locations be accurately documented on the construction plans. 
All utility conflicts shall be fully resolved directly with the applicable utility.  
 

g. The Agency will be responsible for obtaining all permits that may be required by other agencies 
or local governmental entities.  
 

h. It is hereby agreed by the Parties that this Agreement creates a permissive use only and all 
improvements located on the Department’s right-of-way resulting from this Agreement shall 
become the property of the Department. Neither the granting of the permission to use the 
Department right of way nor the placing of facilities upon the Department property shall 
operate to create or vest any property right to or in the Agency, except as may otherwise be 
provided in separate agreements. The Agency shall not acquire any right, title, interest or 



22 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

estate in Department right of way, of any nature or kind whatsoever, by virtue of the execution, 
operation, effect, or performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, the Agency’s 
use, occupancy or possession of Department right of way. The Parties agree that this 
Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant credit for any future transportation 
concurrency requirements pursuant to Chapter 163, F.S.  
 

i. The Agency shall not cause any liens or encumbrances to attach to any portion of the 
Department’s property, including but not limited to, the Department’s right-of-way. 
 

j. The Agency shall perform all required testing associated with the design and construction of 
the Project. Testing results shall be made available to the Department upon request. The 
Department shall have the right to perform its own independent testing during the course of 
the Project.  
 

k. The Agency shall exercise the rights granted herein and shall otherwise perform this 
Agreement in a good and workmanlike manner, with reasonable care, in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state, local, administrative, 
regulatory, safety and environmental laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies, procedures, 
guidelines, standards and permits, as the same may be constituted and amended from time 
to time, including, but not limited to, those of the Department, applicable Water Management 
District, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, the United States Army Corps of Engineers, the United States Coast 
Guard and local governmental entities.  
 

l. If the Department determines a condition exists which threatens the public’s safety, the 
Department may, at its discretion, cause construction operations to cease and immediately 
have any potential hazards removed from its right-of-way at the sole cost, expense, and effort 
of the Agency.  The Agency shall bear all construction delay costs incurred by the Department.  
 

m. The Agency shall be responsible to maintain and restore all features that might require 
relocation within the Department right-of-way.  
 

n. The Agency will be solely responsible for clean up or restoration required to correct any 
environmental or health hazards that may result from construction operations.  
 

o. The acceptance procedure will include a final “walk-through” by Agency and Department 
personnel.  Upon completion of construction, the Agency will be required to submit to the 
Department final as-built plans and an engineering certification that construction was 
completed in accordance to the plans. Submittal of the final as-built plans shall include one 
complete set of the signed and sealed plans on 11" X 17" plan sheets and an electronic copy 
prepared in Portable Document Format (PDF).  Prior to the termination of this Agreement, the 
Agency shall remove its presence, including, but not limited to, all of the Agency’s property, 
machinery, and equipment from Department right-of-way and shall restore those portions of 
Department right of way disturbed or otherwise altered by the Project to substantially the same 
condition that existed immediately prior to the commencement of the Project.  
 

p. If the Department determines that the Project is not completed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, the Department shall deliver written notification of such to the 
Agency. The Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Department’s 
written notice, or such other time as the Agency and the Department mutually agree to in 
writing, to complete the Project and provide the Department with written notice of the same 
(the “Notice of Completion”). If the Agency fails to timely deliver the Notice of Completion, or 
if it is determined that the Project is not properly completed after receipt of the Notice of 
Completion, the Department, within its discretion may: 1) provide the Agency with written 
authorization granting such additional time as the Department deems appropriate to correct 
the deficiency(ies); or 2) correct the deficiency(ies) at the Agency’s sole cost and expense, 



23 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

without Department liability to the Agency for any resulting loss or damage to property, 
including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment. If the Department elects to correct the 
deficiency(ies), the Department shall provide the Agency with an invoice for the costs incurred 
by the Department and the Agency shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of 
the invoice.  
 

q. The Agency shall implement best management practices for erosion and pollution control to 
prevent violation of state water quality standards. The Agency shall be responsible for the 
correction of any erosion, shoaling, or water quality problems that result from the construction 
of the Project. 
 

r. Portable Traffic Monitoring Site (PTMS) or a Telemetry Traffic Monitoring Site (TTMS) may 
exist within the vicinity of your proposed work.  It is the responsibility of the Agency to locate 
and avoid damage to these sites.  If a PTMS or TTMS is encountered during construction, the 
Department must be contacted immediately. 
 

s. During construction, highest priority must be given to pedestrian safety.  If permission is 
granted to temporarily close a sidewalk, it should be done with the express condition that an 
alternate route will be provided, and shall continuously maintain pedestrian features to meet 
Americans Disability Act (ADA) standards. 
 

t. Restricted hours of operation will be as follows, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department’s District Construction Engineer or designee (insert hours and days of the week 
for restricted operation):     
 

u. Lane closures on the state road system must be coordinated with the Public Information Office 
at least two weeks prior to the closure.  The contact information for the Department’s Public 
Information Office is: 
 
Insert District PIO contact info: 

    

 

Note: (Highlighted sections indicate need to confirm information with District Office or 

appropriate DOT person managing the Agreement) 

 
 

3. Engineer’s Certification of Compliance. The Agency shall complete and submit and if applicable 
Engineer’s Certification of Compliance to the Department upon completion of the construction phase 
of the Project. 

 
 

  



24 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
and        

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:    
 
DEPARTMENT CONTRACT NO.:   
 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT NO.:   

 
In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Public Transportation Grant Agreement, the undersigned 

certifies that all work which originally required certification by a Professional Engineer has been completed in 

compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications.  If any deviations have been made from the 

approved plans, a list of all deviations, along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 

deviation, will be attached to this Certification. Also, with submittal of this certification, the Agency shall furnish 

the Department a set of “as-built” plans for construction on the Department’s Right of Way certified by the 

Engineer of Record/CEI.  

 
    By:         , P.E. 
 
SEAL:    Name:        
 
    Date:        
 
 

 

 
 



25 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

AGENCY RESOLUTION 
 

 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 
 



26 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

PROGRAM SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS - AVIATION 
AVIATION PROGRAM ASSURANCES 

 
A. General. 
 

1. The assurances herein shall form an integral part of the Agreement between the Department and the Agency. 
 

2. These assurances delineate the obligations of the Parties to this Agreement to ensure their commitment and 
compliance with specific provisions of Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance, as well as serving to protect public investment in public-use airports 
and the continued viability of the Florida Aviation System. 

 
3. The Agency shall comply with the assurances as specified in this Agreement. 

 
4. The terms and assurances of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of a 

facility developed; equipment acquired; or Project items installed within a facility for an airport development or 
noise compatibility program project, but shall not exceed 20 years from the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
5. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement regarding Exclusive Rights 

and Airport Revenue so long as the property is used as a public airport. 
 

6. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement with respect to real 
property acquired with funds provided by this Agreement. 

 
7. Subject to appropriations, the Department shall continue to comply with its financial commitment to this Project 

under the terms of this Agreement, until such time as the Department may determine that the Agency has failed 
to comply with the terms and assurances of this Agreement. 

 
8. An Agency that has been determined by the Department to have failed to comply with either the terms of these 

Assurances, or the terms of the Agreement, or both, shall be notified, in writing, by the Department, identifying 
the specifics of the non-compliance and any corrective action by the Agency to remedy the failure. 

 
9. Failure by the Agency to satisfactorily remedy the non-compliance shall absolve the Department’s continued 

financial commitment to this Project and immediately require the Agency to repay the Department the full amount 
of funds expended by the Department on this Project. 

 
10. Any history of failure to comply with the terms and assurances of an Agreement will jeopardize the Agency’s 

eligibility for further state funding of airport projects by the Department. 
 
B. Agency Compliance Certification. 
 

1. General Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Project, it will comply, within its 
authority, with all applicable, current laws and rules of the State of Florida and applicable local governments, as 
well as Department policies, guidelines, and requirements, including but not limited to, the following (latest 
version of each document): 
 
a. Florida Statutes (F.S.) 

 Chapter 163, F.S., Intergovernmental Programs 

 Chapter 329, F.S., Aircraft: Title; Liens; Registration; Liens 

 Chapter 330, F.S., Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports 

 Chapter 331, F.S., Aviation and Aerospace Facilities and Commerce 

 Chapter 332, F.S., Airports and Other Air Navigation Facilities 

 Chapter 333, F.S., Airport Zoning 
 



27 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

b. Florida Administrative Code (FAC) 

 Chapter 73C-41, FAC, Community Planning; Governing the Procedure for the Submittal and Review of 
Local Government Comprehensive Plans and Amendments 

 Chapter 14-60, FAC, Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection 

 Section 62-256.300, FAC, Open Burning, Prohibitions 

 Section 62-701.320(13), FAC, Solid Waste Management Facility Permit Requirements, General, Airport 
Safety 
 

c. Local Government Requirements 

 Airport Zoning Ordinance 

 Local Comprehensive Plan 
 

d. Department Requirements 

 Eight Steps of Building a New Airport 

 Florida Airport Revenue Use Guide 

 Florida Aviation Project Handbook 

 Guidebook for Airport Master Planning 

 Airport Compatible Land Use Guidebook 
 

2. Construction Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to a construction-related project, that all 
design plans and specifications will comply with applicable federal, state, local, and professional standards, as 
well as Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Advisory Circulars (AC’s) and FAA issued waivers thereto, 
including but not limited to, the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 FAA AC 70/7460-1, Obstruction Marking and Lighting 

 FAA AC 150/5300-13, Airport Design 

 FAA AC 150/5370-2, Operational Safety on Airports During Construction 

 FAA AC 150/5370-10, Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports 
 

b. Local Government Requirements 

 Local Building Codes 

 Local Zoning Codes 
 

c. Department Requirements 

 Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and 
Highways (Commonly Referred to as the “Florida Green Book”) 

 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

 Section 14-60.007, FAC, Airfield Standards for Licensed Airports 

 Standard Specifications for Construction of General Aviation Airports 

 Design Guidelines & Minimum Standard Requirements for T-Hangar Projects 
 

3. Land Acquisition Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, regarding land acquisition, that it will comply with 
applicable federal and/or state policies, regulations, and laws, including but not limited to the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 

 National Environmental Policy of 1969 

 FAA Order 5050.4, National Environmental Policy Act Implementing Instructions for Airport Projects 

 FAA Order 5100.37B, Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport Projects 
 

b. Florida Requirements 

 Chapter 73, F.S., Eminent Domain (re: Property Acquired Through Condemnation) 

 Chapter 74, F.S., Proceedings Supplemental to Eminent Domain (re: Condemnation) 

 Section 286.23, F.S., Public Business: Miscellaneous Provisions 



28 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 
C. Agency Authority. 
 

1. Legal Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has the legal authority to 
enter into this Agreement and commit to this Project; that a resolution, motion, or similar action has been duly 
adopted or passed as an official act of the airport sponsor’s governing body authorizing this Agreement, including 
assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative 
of the governing body to act on its behalf with respect to this Agreement and to provide any additional information 
as may be required. 
 

2. Financial Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has sufficient funds 
available for that portion of the Project costs which are not paid by the U.S. Government or the State of Florida; 
that it has sufficient funds available to assure future operation and maintenance of items funded by this Project, 
which it will control; and that authority has been granted by the airport sponsor governing body to commit those 
funds to this Project. 

 
D. Agency Responsibilities. The Agency hereby certifies it currently complies with or will comply with the following 
responsibilities: 
 

1. Accounting System. 
 

a. The Agency shall create and maintain a separate account to document all of the financial transactions 
related to the airport as a distinct entity. 
 

b. The accounting records shall be kept by the Agency or its authorized representative in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and in an accounting system that will facilitate an effective audit 
in accordance with the 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and Section 215.97, F.S., Florida Single Audit Act. 
 

c. The Department has the right to audit and inspect all financial records of the Agency upon reasonable notice. 
 

2. Good Title. 
 
a. The Agency holds good title, satisfactory to the Department, to the airport or site thereof, or gives assurance, 

satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 
 
b. For noise compatibility program projects undertaken on the airport sponsor’s property, the Agency holds 

good title, satisfactory to the Department, to that portion of the property upon which state funds will be 
expended, or gives assurance, satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 

 
3. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

 
a. The Agency shall not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and 

powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms and assurances of this Agreement without the written 
approval of the Department. Further, the Agency  shall act promptly to acquire, extinguish, or modify, in a 
manner acceptable to the Department, any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would 
interfere with such performance by the Agency. 
 

b. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any entity or person other than 
the Agency or an employee of the Agency, the Agency shall reserve sufficient rights and authority to ensure 
that the airport will be operated and maintained in accordance with the terms and assurances of this 
Agreement. 

 
4. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 

 



29 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

a. For airport hazards located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall clear and protect terminal 
airspace required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight 
altitudes) by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport 
hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. 
 

b. For airport hazards not located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall work in conjunction with the 
governing public authority or private land owner of the property to clear and protect terminal airspace 
required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) 
by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and 
by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. The Agency may enter into an 
agreement with surrounding property owners or pursue available legal remedies to remove potential hazards 
to air navigation. 

 
5. Airport Compatible Land Use. 

 
a. The Agency assures that appropriate airport zoning ordinances are in place consistent with Section 333.03, 

F.S., or if not in place, that it will take appropriate action necessary to ensure local government adoption of 
an airport zoning ordinance or execution of an interlocal agreement with another local government body 
having an airport zoning ordinance, consistent with the provisions of Section 333.03, F.S. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted alteration or creation of objects, natural 
or man-made, dangerous to navigable airspace or that would adversely affect the current or future levels of 
airport operations. 
 

c. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted change in local land use development 
regulations that would adversely affect the current or future levels of airport operations by creation or 
expansion of airport incompatible land use areas. 

 
6. Consistency with Local Government Plans. 

 
a. The Agency assures the Project is consistent with the currently existing and planned future land use 

development plans approved by the local government having jurisdictional responsibility for the area 
surrounding the airport. 

 
b. The Agency assures that it has given fair consideration to the interest of local communities and has had 

reasonable consultation with those parties affected by the Project. 
 

c. The Agency shall consider and take appropriate actions, if deemed warranted by the Agency, to adopt the 
current, approved Airport Master Plan into the local government comprehensive plan. 

 
7. Consistency with Airport Master Plan and Airport Layout Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that the project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 

with the most current Airport Master Plan. 
 

b. The Agency assures that the Project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 
with the most current, approved Airport Layout Plan (ALP), which shows: 

 
1) The boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries of all 

offsite areas owned or controlled by the Agency for airport purposes and proposed additions thereto; 
2) The location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such as 

runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars, and roads), including all proposed 
extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities; and 

3) The location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas on airport property and of all existing 
improvements thereon. 
 



30 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

c. The Agency assures that it will not make or permit any changes or alterations on the airport or any of its 
facilities that are not consistent with the Airport Master Plan and the Airport Layout Plan, as approved by the 
Department. 
 

d. Original Airport Master Plans and Airport Layout Plans and each amendment, revision, or modification 
thereof, will be subject to the approval of the Department. 

 
8. Airport Financial Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will develop and maintain a cost-feasible Airport financial plan to accomplish 

the projects necessary to achieve the proposed airport improvements identified in the Airport Master Plan 

and depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. The Agency’s Airport financial plan must 

comply with the following conditions: 

 

1) The Airport financial plan will be a part of the Airport Master Plan. 
2) The Airport financial plan will realistically assess project phasing considering availability of state and 

local funding and likelihood of federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 
3) The Airport financial plan will not include Department funding for projects that are inconsistent with 

the local government comprehensive plan. 
 

b. All Project cost estimates contained in the Airport financial plan shall be entered into and kept current in the 
Florida Aviation Database (FAD) Joint Automated Capital Improvement Program (JACIP) website. 

 
9. Airport Revenue. The Agency assures that all revenue generated by the airport will be expended for capital 

improvement or operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned 
or operated by the owner or operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the air 
transportation of passengers or property, or for environmental or noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport. 

 
10. Fee and Rental Structure. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will maintain a fee and rental structure for facilities and services at the airport 

that it will make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular 
airport. 
 

b. If this Agreement results in a facility that will be leased or otherwise produce revenue, the Agency assures 
that the price charged for that facility will be based on the market value. 

 
11. Public-Private Partnership for Aeronautical Uses. 

 
a. If the airport owner or operator and a person or entity that owns an aircraft or an airport tenant or potential 

tenant agree that an aircraft hangar or tenant-specific facility, respectively, is to be constructed on airport 
property for aircraft storage or tenant use at the expense of the aircraft owner or tenant, the airport owner 
or operator may grant to the aircraft owner or tenant of the facility a lease that is subject to such terms and 
conditions on the facility as the airport owner or operator may impose, subject to approval by the Department. 
 

b. The price charged for said lease will be based on market value, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department. 

 
12. Economic Nondiscrimination. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms 

without unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including commercial 
aeronautical activities offering services to the public. 
 

1) The Agency may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be met 

by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the airport. 



31 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) The Agency may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport if 
such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or necessary to serve the civil aviation 
needs of the public. 

 
b. The Agency assures that each airport Fixed-Based Operator (FBO) shall be subject to the same rates, fees, 

rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other FBOs making the same or similar uses of 
such airport and utilizing the same or similar facilities. 
 

13. Air and Water Quality Standards. The Agency assures that all projects involving airport location, major runway 
extension, or runway location will be located, designed, constructed, and operated so as to comply with 
applicable air and water quality standards. 
 

14. Operations and Maintenance. 
 

a. The Agency assures that the airport and all facilities, which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users 
of the airport, shall be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the 
minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable federal and state agencies for 
maintenance and operation, as well as minimum standards established by the Department for State of 
Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 
 

1) The Agency assures that it will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would 
interfere with its use for airport purposes. 

2) Except in emergency situations, any proposal to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical 
purposes must first be approved by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will have arrangements for promptly notifying airmen of any condition 
affecting aeronautical use of the airport. 
 

b. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for aeronautical use 
during temporary periods when adverse weather conditions interfere with safe airport operations. 
 

15. Federal Funding Eligibility. 

 
a. The Agency assures it will take appropriate actions to maintain federal funding eligibility for the airport and 

it will avoid any action that renders the airport ineligible for federal funding. 
 

b. If the Agency becomes ineligible for federal funding of airport projects, such determination will render the 
Agency ineligible for state funding of airport projects. 

 
16. Project Implementation. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will begin making expenditures or incurring obligations pertaining to this Project 

within one year after the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

b. The Agency may request a one-year extension of this one-year time period, subject to approval by the 
Department District Secretary or designee. 

 
c. Failure of the Agency to make expenditures, incur obligations or receive an approved extension may allow 

the Department to terminate this Agreement. 
 

17. Exclusive Rights. The Agency assures that it will not permit any exclusive right for use of the airport by any 
person providing, or intending to provide, aeronautical services to the public. 

 
18. Airfield Access. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access that opens onto or 

crosses the airport runways, taxiways, flight line, passenger facilities, or any area used for emergency 



32 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

equipment, fuel, supplies, passengers, mail and freight, radar, communications, utilities, and landing 
systems, including but not limited to flight operations, ground services, emergency services, terminal 
facilities, maintenance, repair, or storage, except for those normal airport providers responsible for standard 
airport daily services or during special events at the airport open to the public with limited and controlled 
access. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access to any portion of the 
airfield from adjacent real property which is not owned, operated, or otherwise controlled by the Agency 
without prior Department approval. 

 
19. Retention of Rights and Interests.The Agency will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose 

of any part of its title or other interests in the real property shown as airport owned or controlled on the current 
airport layout plan without prior written approval by the Department. It will not sell, lease, encumber, terminate, 
waive, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title, rights, or other interest in existing noise easements 
or avigation easements on any property, airport or non-airport, without prior written approval by the Department. 
These assurances shall not limit the Agency’s right to lease airport property for airport-compatible purposes. 
 

20. Consultant, Contractor, Scope, and Costs. 
 

a. The Department has the right to disapprove the Agency’s employment of consultants, contractors, and 

subcontractors for all or any part of this Project if the specific consultants, contractors, or subcontractors 

have a record of poor project performance with the Department. 

 

b. Further, the Department maintains the right to disapprove the proposed Project scope and cost of 

professional services. 

 
21. Planning Projects. For all planning projects or other aviation studies, the Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Execute the project per the approved project narrative or with approved modifications. 

 
b. Furnish the Department with such periodic project and work activity reports as indicated in the approved 

scope of services. 
 

c. Make such project materials available for public review, unless exempt from public disclosure. 
 

1) Information related to airport security is considered restricted information and is exempt from public 
dissemination per Sections 119.071(3) and 331.22 F.S. 

2) No materials prepared under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or 
any other country. 

 
d. Grant the Department unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise use any of the 

material prepared in connection with this Agreement. 
 

e. If the Project involves developing an Airport Master Plan or an Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto, 
it will be consistent with provisions of the Florida Aviation System Plan, will identify reasonable future growth 
of the airport and the Agency will comply with the Department airport master planning guidebook, including: 

 
1) Provide copies, in electronic and editable format, of final Project materials to the Department, 

including computer-aided drafting (CAD) files of the Airport Layout Plan. 
2) Develop a cost-feasible financial plan, approved by the Department, to accomplish the projects 

described in the Airport Master Plan or depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. 
The cost-feasible financial plan shall realistically assess Project phasing considering availability of 
state and local funding and federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 

3) Enter all projects contained in the cost-feasible plan in the Joint Automated Capital Improvement 
Program (JACIP). 

 



33 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

f. The Agency understands and agrees that Department approval of this Agreement or any planning material 
developed as part of this Agreement does not constitute or imply any assurance or commitment on the part 
of the Department to approve any pending or future application for state aviation funding. 

 
g. The Agency will submit master planning draft and final deliverables for Department and, if required, FAA 

approval prior to submitting any invoices to the Department for payment. 
 

22. Land Acquisition Projects. For the purchase of real property, the Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Laws. Acquire the land in accordance with federal and/or state laws governing such action. 
 

b. Administration. Maintain direct control of Project administration, including: 
 

1) Maintain responsibility for all related contract letting and administrative procedures related to the 
purchase of real property. 

2) Secure written Department approval to execute each agreement for the purchase of real property 
with any third party. 

3) Ensure a qualified, State-certified general appraiser provides all necessary services and 
documentation. 

4) Furnish the Department with a projected schedule of events and a cash flow projection within 20 
calendar days after completion of the review appraisal. 

5) Establish a Project account for the purchase of the land. 
6) Collect and disburse federal, state, and local project funds. 

  
c. Reimbursable Funds. If funding conveyed by this Agreement is reimbursable for land purchase in 

accordance with Chapter 332, F.S., the Agency shall comply with the following requirements: 
 

1) The Agency shall apply for a FAA Airport Improvement Program grant for the land purchase within 
60 days of executing this Agreement. 

2) If federal funds are received for the land purchase, the Agency shall notify the Department, in writing, 
within 14 calendar days of receiving the federal funds and is responsible for reimbursing the 
Department within 30 calendar days to achieve normal project federal, state, and local funding 
shares per Chapter 332, F.S. 

3) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase, the Agency shall reimburse the Department 
within 30 calendar days after the reimbursable funds are due in order to achieve normal project 
state and local funding shares as described in Chapter 332, F.S. 

4) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase and the state share of the purchase is less 
than or equal to normal state and local funding shares per Chapter 332, F.S., when reimbursable 
funds are due, no reimbursement to the Department shall be required. 

 
d. New Airport.  If this Project involves the purchase of real property for the development of a new airport, 

the Agency assures that it will: 
 

1) Apply for federal and state funding to construct a paved runway, associated aircraft parking apron, 
and connecting taxiway within one year of the date of land purchase. 

2) Complete an Airport Master Plan within two years of land purchase. 
3) Complete airport construction for basic operation within 10 years of land purchase. 

 
e. Use of Land. The Agency assures that it shall use the land for aviation purposes in accordance with the 

terms and assurances of this Agreement within 10 years of acquisition. 
 

f. Disposal of Land. For the disposal of real property the Agency assures that it will comply with the following: 
1) For land purchased for airport development or noise compatibility purposes, the Agency shall, when 

the land is no longer needed for such purposes, dispose of such land at fair market value and/or 
make available to the Department an amount equal to the state’s proportionate share of its market 
value. 



34 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) Land will be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if: 
 

a) It serves aeronautical purposes such as a runway protection zone or as a noise buffer. 
b) Revenue from uses of such land contributes to airport financial self-sufficiency.  

 
3) Disposition of land under Sections D.22.f.1. or D.22.f.2. of this Exhibit, above, shall be subject to 

retention or reservation of any interest or right therein needed to ensure such land will only be used 
for purposes compatible with noise levels related to airport operations. 

4) Revenues from the sale of such land must be accounted for as outlined in Section D.1. of this 
Exhibit, and expended as outlined in Section D.9. of this Exhibit.   

 

23. Construction Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Project Certifications. Certify Project compliances, including: 

 
1) Consultant and contractor selection comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 

regulations, and policies. 
2) All design plans and specifications comply with federal, state, and professional standards and 

applicable FAA advisory circulars, as well as the minimum standards established by the Department 
for State of Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 

3) Completed construction complies with all applicable local building codes. 
4) Completed construction complies with the Project plans and specifications with certification of that 

fact by the Project Engineer. 
 

b. Design Development.  For the plans, specifications, construction contract documents, and any and all 
other engineering, construction, and contractual documents produced by the Engineer, which are 
hereinafter collectively referred to as "plans", the Engineer will certify that: 
 

1) The plans shall be developed in accordance with sound engineering and design principles, and with 
generally accepted professional standards. 

2) The plans shall be consistent with the intent of the Project as defined in Exhibit A and Exhibit B of 
this Agreement. 

3) The Project Engineer shall perform a review of the certification requirements listed in Section B.2. 
of this Exhibit, Construction Certification, and make a determination as to their applicability to this 
Project. 

4) Development of the plans shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, zoning and permitting 
requirements, public notice requirements, and other similar regulations. 
 

c. Inspection and Approval.  The Agency assures that: 
 

1) The Agency will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site 
throughout the Project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules 
approved by the Department, as applicable, for the Project. 

2) The Agency assures that it will allow the Department to inspect the work and that it will provide any 
cost and progress reporting, as may be required by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will take the appropriate corrective action necessary, as required by the 
Department, for work which does not conform to the Department standards. 
 

d. Pavement Preventive Maintenance.  The Agency assures that for a project involving replacement or 
reconstruction of runway or taxiway pavement it has implemented an airport pavement maintenance 
management program and that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, 
reconstructed, or repaired with state financial assistance at the airport. 
 
 
 

 



35 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

24. Noise Mitigation Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Government Agreements. For all noise compatibility projects that are carried out by another unit of local 
government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the Agency, the Agency 
shall enter into an agreement with that government body. 
 

1) The local agreement, satisfactory to the Department, shall obligate the unit of local government to 
the same terms and assurances that apply to the Agency. 

2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce the local agreement if there is substantial non-
compliance with the terms of the local agreement. 

 
b. Private Agreements. For noise compatibility projects on privately owned property: 

 
1) The Agency shall enter into an agreement with the owner of that property to exclude future actions 

against the airport. 
2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce such agreement if there is substantial non-

compliance with the terms of the agreement. 
 
 

- End of Exhibit E - 



36 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Contract Payment Requirements 

Florida Department of Financial Services, Reference Guide for State Expenditures  

Cost Reimbursement Contracts 

 

Invoices for cost reimbursement contracts must be supported by an itemized listing of expenditures by category (salary, 

travel, expenses, etc.).  Supporting documentation shall be submitted for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed indicating that the item has been paid.  Documentation for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed must indicate that the item has been paid. Check numbers may be provided in lieu of copies of actual checks. 

Each piece of documentation should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only expenditures for categories in the approved 

agreement budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to 

the services being provided. 

 

Listed below are types and examples of supporting documentation for cost reimbursement agreements: 

 

(1)  Salaries: A payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted. The payroll register should show 

gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and net pay. If an individual for whom reimbursement is 

being claimed is paid by the hour, a document reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be 

acceptable. 

 

(2)  Fringe Benefits: Fringe Benefits should be supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of the 

employee (e.g., insurance premiums paid).  If the contract specifically states that fringe benefits will be based 

on a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe benefits, then the calculation for the fringe benefits 

amount must be shown. 

 

Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies of checks for fringe 

benefits. 

 

(3)  Travel: Reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, which 

includes submission of the claim on the approved State travel voucher or electronic means. 

 

(4)  Other direct costs: Reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts. If nonexpendable property 

is purchased using State funds, the contract should include a provision for the transfer of the property to the 

State when services are terminated.  Documentation must be provided to show compliance with Department of 

Management Services Rule 60A-1.017, Florida Administrative Code, regarding the requirements for contracts 

which include services and that provide for the contractor to purchase tangible personal property as defined in 

Section 273.02, Florida Statutes, for subsequent transfer to the State. 

 

(5)  In-house charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be 

reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged. The rates must be reasonable. 

 

(6)  Indirect costs: If the contract specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the 

calculation should be shown. 

 

Contracts between state agencies, and/or contracts between universities may submit alternative documentation 

to substantiate the reimbursement request that may be in the form of FLAIR reports or other detailed reports.  

 

The Florida Department of Financial Services, online Reference Guide for State Expenditures can be found at this web 

address https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf. 

 

 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


37 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT G 
 

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

 

 THE STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 

 

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:~ 

 

Awarding Agency: Florida Department of Transportation 

State Project Title: Aviation Grant Program 

CSFA Number: 55.004 

*Award Amount: $280,000 

 

*The award amount may change with amendments 
 

Specific project information for CSFA Number 55.004 is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx 

 

 

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS 

AGREEMENT: 

 

State Project Compliance Requirements for CSFA Number 55.004 are provided at: 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx 

 

The State Projects Compliance Supplement is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx  

 

 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx


 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Clara Bennett, Executive Director  

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE: Public Transportation Grant Agreement – Transportation/Access Road 
Development – Phase 2 

 
AGENDA ITEM – IX – D  
 
The Florida Department of Transportation has offered a Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement (PTGA) for Transportation/Access Road Development – Phase 2 of the 
Airport Road improvements project. The scope of work includes planning, programming, 
design, construction and administrative support services associated with the project.  
 
This is a new grant, requested by Airport Management after the start of the new Fiscal 
Year. The estimated total cost of this phase of the overall project is $625,000. The PTGA 
is for 80% if the eligible project costs not to exceed $500,000.  The Airport Authority’s 
share totaling 20% or $125,000 is available in the budget. 
 
Airport Management recommends approval of Resolution Number 05-16-20 authorizing 
a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for Transportation/Access Road Development – Phase 2 of the Airport 
Road improvements project.  
 



BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 05-16-20 
 

A Resolution of the Boca Raton Airport Authority approving a Public Transportation 
Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for 

Transportation/Access Road Development – Phase 2 
 

WHEREAS, The Boca Raton Airport Authority Act, Laws of Florida, provides that the Boca 
Raton Airport Authority (the “Authority”) shall have jurisdiction over the operation, maintenance 
of, and improvements to the Boca Raton Airport (the “Airport”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to provide ground transportation and access improvements to 
various existing facilities throughout the Airport and to construct improvements; 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with 
the State of Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”) for Financial Project No. 423957-3-
94-01 (the “Agreement”) Transportation/Access Road Development – Phase 2 (the “Project”), 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, in order to initiate this project; 
 
WHEREAS, under the Agreement, FDOT’s total participation is limited to $500,000, or up to 
80% of eligible project costs, and the Authority’s participation is limited to $125,000, or up to 
20% of eligible project costs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
BOCA RATON, FLORIDA, IN PUBLIC MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, THIS 20th DAY OF 
MAY 2020, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as the legislative intent of the 
Authority. 

 
2. The Authority hereby approves the Grant Agreement and authorizes the Chair or 

Vice-Chair to execute the agreement on its behalf.  
 
3. The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director and Airport Legal Counsel 

to do all things necessary or prudent to effectuate the intent of this Resolution 
Number 05-16-20. 

 
4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Boca Raton Airport Authority is hereby authorized 

to execute this Resolution Number 05-16-20. 
 
ADOPTED by the Boca Raton Airport Authority, this 20th day of May 2020. 

ATTEST:      BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY: 

              
James R. Nau                                                           Melvin Pollack                                              
Secretary & Treasurer                                             Chair 



1 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

  
Financial Project Number(s): 
(item-segment-phase-sequence) Fund(s):  DPTO FLAIR Category:  088719   

 423957-3-94-01  Work Activity Code/Function:  215 Object Code:  751000   

       Federal Number/Federal Award 
Identification Number (FAIN) – Transit only: 

 
 N/A 

Org. Code:  55042010429  

       Vendor Number:  VF592205856001   

  Contract Number:      Federal Award Date:  N/A     

  CFDA Number:  N/A Agency DUNS Number:          

  CFDA Title: N/A     

 CSFA Number: 55.004    

 CSFA Title: Aviation Grant Program    

      

 
THIS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into                                                 
_                              __           _, by and between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, 
(“Department”), and Boca Raton Airport Authority, (“Agency”). The Department and the Agency are sometimes 
referred to in this Agreement as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from joint participation on the 

Project, the Parties agree to the following: 

 
1. Authority. The Agency, by Resolution or other form of official authorization, a copy of which is attached 

as Exhibit “D”, Agency Resolution and made a part of this Agreement, has authorized its officers to 
execute this Agreement on its behalf.  The Department has the authority pursuant to Section(s) 332.007, 
Florida Statutes, to enter into this Agreement. 

 
2. Purpose of Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the Department’s participation 

in Transportation/Access Road Development - Phase 2 , as further described in Exhibit "A", Project 
Description and Responsibilities, attached and incorporated into this Agreement (“Project”), to provide 
Department financial assistance to the Agency, state the terms and conditions upon which Department 
funds will be provided, and to set forth the manner in which the Project will be undertaken and 
completed. 

 
3. Program Area. For identification purposes only, this Agreement is implemented as part of the Department 

program area selected below (select all programs that apply): 
 

  X Aviation   
      Seaports     

    Transit 
      Intermodal     
               Rail Crossing Closure 

    Match to Direct Federal Funding (Aviation or Transit) 
            (Note: Section 15 and Exhibit G do not apply to federally matched funding) 
    Other     

 
4. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement: 

 
 X Exhibit A: Project Description and Responsibilities  
 X Exhibit B: Schedule of Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit B1: Deferred Reimbursement Financial Provisions 
     *Exhibit B2: Advance Payment Financial Provisions  
 X *Exhibit C: Terms and Conditions of Construction   
 X Exhibit D: Agency Resolution 
 X Exhibit E: Program Specific Terms and Conditions 
 X Exhibit F: Contract Payment Requirements 
 X *Exhibit G: Audit Requirements for Awards of State Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit H: Audit Requirements for Awards of Federal Financial Assistance  



2 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

     *Additional Exhibit(s):     
 
            *Indicates that the Exhibit is only attached and incorporated if applicable box is selected. 
 
5. Time. Unless specified otherwise, all references to “days” within this Agreement refer to calendar days. 

 
6. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence upon full execution by both Parties (“Effective 

Date”) and continue through December 30, 2022. If the Agency does not complete the Project within this 
time period, this Agreement will expire unless an extension of the time period is requested by the Agency 
and granted in writing by the Department prior to the expiration of this Agreement. Expiration of this 
Agreement will be considered termination of the Project.  The cost of any work performed prior to the 
Effective Date or after the expiration date of this Agreement will not be reimbursed by the Department. 
 

a.      If this box is checked the following provision applies: 
 
Unless terminated earlier, work on the Project shall commence no later than the     day of    ,     
or within     days of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed for the construction phase of the 
Project (if the Project involves construction), whichever date is earlier. The Department shall 
have the option to immediately terminate this Agreement should the Agency fail to meet the 
above-required dates. 

 
7. Amendments, Extensions, and Assignment. This Agreement may be amended or extended upon 

mutual written agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement shall not be renewed. This Agreement shall not 
be assigned, transferred, or otherwise encumbered by the Agency under any circumstances without the 
prior written consent of the Department. 
 

8. Termination or Suspension of Project. The Department may, by written notice to the Agency, suspend 
any or all of the Department’s obligations under this Agreement for the Agency’s failure to comply with 
applicable law or the terms of this Agreement until such time as the event or condition resulting in such 
suspension has ceased or been corrected.  
 

a. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Department intends to terminate 
the Agreement, the Department shall notify the Agency of such termination in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the termination of the Agreement, with instructions to the effective date 
of termination or specify the stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. 

 
b. The Parties to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement when its continuation would not 

produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds. In this event, 
the Parties shall agree upon the termination conditions. 

 
c. If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, the Agency shall be paid 

only for that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. Such payment, 
however, may not exceed the equivalent percentage of the Department’s maximum financial 
assistance. If any portion of the Project is located on the Department’s right-of-way, then all 
work in progress on the Department right-of-way will become the property of the Department 
and will be turned over promptly by the Agency. 

 
d. In the event the Agency fails to perform or honor the requirements and provisions of this 

Agreement, the Agency shall promptly refund in full to the Department within thirty (30) days 
of the termination of the Agreement any funds that were determined by the Department to 
have been expended in violation of the Agreement. 

 
e. The Department reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement for failure by the 

Agency to comply with the Public Records provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 
 
9. Project Cost:  



3 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
a. The estimated total cost of the Project is $625,000. This amount is based upon Exhibit "B", 

Schedule of Financial Assistance. The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated 
amounts between deliverables within a grant phase, as outlined in Exhibit "B", Schedule of 
Financial Assistance, may be modified by mutual written agreement of the Parties and does 
not require execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant Agreement. 
The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated amounts between grant phases 
requires an amendment executed by both Parties in the same form as this Agreement. 
 

b. The Department agrees to participate in the Project cost up to the maximum amount of 
$500,000 and, the Department’s participation in the Project shall not exceed 80.00% of the 
total eligible cost of the Project, and as more fully described in Exhibit “B’’, Schedule of 
Financial Assistance. The Agency agrees to bear all expenses in excess of the amount of 
the Department’s participation and any cost overruns or deficits involved. 

 
10. Compensation and Payment: 
 

a. Eligible Cost. The Department shall reimburse the Agency for allowable costs incurred as 
described in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in 
Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance. 
 

b. Deliverables. The Agency shall provide quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of 
deliverables.  Each deliverable must specify the required minimum level of service to be 
performed and the criteria for evaluating successful completion.  The Project and the 
quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of deliverables are described more fully in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities. Modifications to the deliverables in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities requires a formal written 
amendment. 

 
c. Invoicing. Invoices shall be submitted no more often than monthly by the Agency in detail 

sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit, based on the quantifiable, measurable, and 
verifiable deliverables as established in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities. Deliverables and costs incurred must be received and approved by the 
Department prior to reimbursement. Requests for reimbursement by the Agency shall include 
an invoice, progress report, and supporting documentation for the deliverables being billed 
that are acceptable to the Department. The Agency shall use the format for the invoice and 
progress report that is approved by the Department. 

 
d. Supporting Documentation. Supporting documentation must establish that the deliverables 

were received and accepted in writing by the Agency and must also establish that the required 
minimum standards or level of service to be performed based on the criteria for evaluating 
successful completion as specified in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities has been met. All costs invoiced shall be supported by properly executed 
payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in proper detail the nature 
and propriety of charges as described in Exhibit “F”, Contract Payment Requirements. 

 
e. Travel Expenses. The selected provision below is controlling regarding travel expenses: 

 
X Travel expenses are NOT eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement.  
 
    Travel expenses ARE eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement. Bills for travel 
expenses specifically authorized in this Agreement shall be submitted on the Department’s 
Contractor Travel Form No. 300-000-06 and will be paid in accordance with Section 112.061, 
Florida Statutes, and the most current version of the Department’s Disbursement Handbook 
for Employees and Managers. 

 



4 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

f. Financial Consequences. Payment shall be made only after receipt and approval of 
deliverables and costs incurred unless advance payments are authorized by the Chief 
Financial Officer of the State of Florida under Chapters 215 and 216, Florida Statutes, or the 
Department’s Comptroller under Section 334.044(29), Florida Statutes.  If the Department 
determines that the performance of the Agency is unsatisfactory, the Department shall notify 
the Agency of the deficiency to be corrected, which correction shall be made within a time-
frame to be specified by the Department. The Agency shall, within thirty (30) days after notice 
from the Department, provide the Department with a corrective action plan describing how the 
Agency will address all issues of contract non-performance, unacceptable performance, 
failure to meet the minimum performance levels, deliverable deficiencies, or contract non-
compliance.  If the corrective action plan is unacceptable to the Department, the Agency will 
not be reimbursed.  If the deficiency is subsequently resolved, the Agency may bill the 
Department for the amount that was previously not reimbursed during the next billing period.  If 
the Agency is unable to resolve the deficiency, the funds shall be forfeited at the end of the 
Agreement’s term. 
 

g. Invoice Processing. An Agency receiving financial assistance from the Department should 
be aware of the following time frames.  Inspection or verification and approval of deliverables 
shall take no longer than 20 days from the Department’s receipt of the invoice.  The 
Department has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of 
Financial Services.  The 20 days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is 
received or the deliverables are received, inspected or verified, and approved.  

 
If a payment is not available within 40 days, a separate interest penalty at a rate as established 
pursuant to Section 55.03(1), Florida Statutes, will be due and payable, in addition to the 
invoice amount, to the Agency.  Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be 
enforced unless the Agency requests payment.  Invoices that have to be returned to an Agency 
because of Agency preparation errors will result in a delay in the payment.  The invoice 
payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to the 
Department. 
 
A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services.  
The duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for Agency who may be 
experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor 
Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516. 

 
h. Records Retention. The Agency shall maintain an accounting system or separate accounts 

to ensure funds and projects are tracked separately. Records of costs incurred under the terms 
of this Agreement shall be maintained and made available upon request to the Department at 
all times during the period of this Agreement and for five years after final payment is made.  
Copies of these records shall be furnished to the Department upon request.  Records of costs 
incurred include the Agency's general accounting records and the Project records, together 
with supporting documents and records, of the Contractor and all subcontractors performing 
work on the Project, and all other records of the Contractor and subcontractors considered 
necessary by the Department for a proper audit of costs. 
 

i. Progress Reports. Upon request, the Agency agrees to provide progress reports to the 
Department in the standard format used by the Department and at intervals established by the 
Department. The Department will be entitled at all times to be advised, at its request, as to the 
status of the Project and of details thereof. 

 
j. Submission of Other Documents. The Agency shall submit to the Department such data, 

reports, records, contracts, and other documents relating to the Project as the Department 
may require as listed in Exhibit "E", Program Specific Terms and Conditions attached to 
and incorporated into this Agreement. 

 



5 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

k. Offsets for Claims. If, after Project completion, any claim is made by the Department resulting 
from an audit or for work or services performed pursuant to this Agreement, the Department 
may offset such amount from payments due for work or services done under any agreement 
that it has with the Agency owing such amount if, upon written demand, payment of the amount 
is not made within 60 days to the Department.  Offsetting any amount pursuant to this 
paragraph shall not be considered a breach of contract by the Department. 

 
l. Final Invoice. The Agency must submit the final invoice on the Project to the Department 

within 120 days after the completion of the Project.  Invoices submitted after the 120-day time 
period may not be paid. 
 

m. Department’s Performance and Payment Contingent Upon Annual Appropriation by the 
Legislature. The Department’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature.  If the Department's funding for 
this Project is in multiple fiscal years, a notice of availability of funds from the Department’s 
project manager must be received prior to costs being incurred by the Agency.  See Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance for funding levels by fiscal year.  Project costs 
utilizing any fiscal year funds are not eligible for reimbursement if incurred prior to funds 
approval being received.  The Department will notify the Agency, in writing, when funds are 
available. 

 
n. Limits on Contracts Exceeding $25,000 and Term more than 1 Year. In the event this 

Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period of more than one year, the 
provisions of Section 339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are hereby incorporated:  

 
"The Department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any 
liability, or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure 
of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure 
during such fiscal year.  Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of 
this subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid on such contract.  
The Department shall require a statement from the comptroller of the 
Department that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract 
or other binding commitment of funds.  Nothing herein contained shall prevent 
the making of contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so 
made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or 
agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be 
incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an 
amount in excess of $25,000 and which have a term for a period of more than 
1 year." 

 

o. Agency Obligation to Refund Department. Any Project funds made available by the 
Department pursuant to this Agreement that are determined by the Department to have been 
expended by the Agency in violation of this Agreement or any other applicable law or 
regulation shall be promptly refunded in full to the Department. Acceptance by the Department 
of any documentation or certifications, mandatory or otherwise permitted, that the Agency files 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Department's rights as the funding agency to verify all 
information at a later date by audit or investigation. 

 
p. Non-Eligible Costs. In determining the amount of the payment, the Department will exclude 

all Project costs incurred by the Agency prior to the execution of this Agreement, costs incurred 
after the expiration of the Agreement, costs that are not provided for in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial 
Assistance, costs agreed to be borne by the Agency or its contractors and subcontractors for 
not meeting the Project commencement and final invoice time lines, and costs attributable to 
goods or services received under a contract or other arrangement that has not been approved 



6 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

in writing by the Department. Specific unallowable costs may be listed in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities. 

 
11. General Requirements. The Agency shall complete the Project with all practical dispatch in a sound, 

economical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the provisions in this Agreement and all 
applicable laws.  

 
a. Necessary Permits Certification. The Agency shall certify to the Department that the 

Agency’s design consultant and/or construction contractor has secured the necessary permits.   
 

b. Right-of-Way Certification. If the Project involves construction, then the Agency shall provide 
to the Department certification and a copy of appropriate documentation substantiating that all 
required right-of-way necessary for the Project has been obtained. Certification is required 
prior to authorization for advertisement for or solicitation of bids for construction of the Project, 
even if no right-of-way is required. 
 

c. Notification Requirements When Performing Construction on Department’s Right-of-
Way. In the event the cost of the Project is greater than $250,000.00, and the Project involves 
construction on the Department’s right-of-way, the Agency shall provide the Department with 
written notification of either its intent to: 
 

i. Require the construction work of the Project that is on the Department’s right-of-way 
to be performed by a Department prequalified contractor, or 

 
ii. Construct the Project utilizing existing Agency employees, if the Agency can 

complete said Project within the time frame set forth in this Agreement. 
 

d.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize its own forces and the following 
provision applies: Use of Agency Workforce. In the event the Agency proceeds with any 
phase of the Project utilizing its own forces, the Agency will only be reimbursed for direct costs 
(this excludes general overhead). 
 

e.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize Indirect Costs: 
Reimbursement for Indirect Program Expenses (select one): 
 

i.     Agency has selected to seek reimbursement from the Department for actual indirect 
expenses (no rate).  

 
ii.     Agency has selected to apply a de minimus rate of 10% to modified total direct 

costs.  Note:  The de minimus rate is available only to entities that have never had a 
negotiated indirect cost rate. When selected, the de minimus rate must be used 
consistently for all federal awards until such time the agency chooses to negotiate a 
rate. A cost policy statement and de minimis certification form must be submitted to 
the Department for review and approval.  

 
iii.      Agency has selected to apply a state or federally approved indirect cost rate.  A 

federally approved rate agreement or indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) must be 
submitted annually.    

 
f. Agency Compliance with Laws, Rules, and Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards. The 

Agency shall comply and require its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations 
applicable to this Project. 
 

g. Claims and Requests for Additional Work. The Agency shall have the sole responsibility 
for resolving claims and requests for additional work for the Project. The Agency will make 



7 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

best efforts to obtain the Department’s input in its decisions. The Department is not obligated 
to reimburse for claims or requests for additional work. 

 
12. Contracts of the Agency: 

 
a. Approval of Third Party Contracts. The Department specifically reserves the right to review 

and approve any and all third party contracts with respect to the Project before the Agency 
executes or obligates itself in any manner requiring the disbursement of Department funds, 
including consultant and purchase of commodities contracts, or amendments thereto. If the 
Department chooses to review and approve third party contracts for this Project and the 
Agency fails to obtain such approval, that shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the 
Department. The Department specifically reserves unto itself the right to review the 
qualifications of any consultant or contractor and to approve or disapprove the employment of 
the same. If Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds are used in the Project, the 
Department must exercise the right to third party contract review. 
 

b. Procurement of Commodities or Contractual Services. It is understood and agreed by the 
Parties hereto that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves the purchase of commodities or contractual services where purchases or 
costs exceed the Threshold Amount for CATEGORY TWO per Section 287.017, Florida 
Statutes, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with the provisions of Section 287.057, 
Florida Statutes. The Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department that the 
Agency’s purchase of commodities or contractual services has been accomplished in 
compliance with Section 287.057, Florida Statutes. It shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Agency to ensure that any obligations made in accordance with this Section comply with the 
current threshold limits. Contracts, purchase orders, task orders, construction change orders, 
or any other agreement that would result in exceeding the current budget contained in Exhibit 
"B", Schedule of Financial Assistance, or that is not consistent with the Project description 
and scope of services contained in Exhibit "A", Project Description and Responsibilities 
must be approved by the Department prior to Agency execution. Failure to obtain such 
approval, and subsequent execution of an amendment to the Agreement if required, shall be 
sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department, in accordance with this Agreement. 
 

c. Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act. It is understood and agreed by the Parties to 
this Agreement that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves a consultant contract for professional services, is contingent on the Agency’s 
full compliance with provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes, Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. In all cases, the Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department 
that selection has been accomplished in compliance with the Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. 

 
d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy and Obligation. It is the policy of the 

Department that DBEs, as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended, shall have the 
opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with 
Department funds under this Agreement.  The DBE requirements of applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations apply to this Agreement. The Agency and its contractors agree to 
ensure that DBEs have the opportunity to participate in the performance of this Agreement.  
In this regard, all recipients and contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in 
accordance with   applicable federal and state laws and regulations to ensure that the DBEs 
have the opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.  The Agency and its contractors 
and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in 
the award and performance of contracts, entered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
13. Maintenance Obligations. In the event the Project includes construction or the acquisition of commodities 

then the following provisions are incorporated into this Agreement: 
 



8 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

a. The Agency agrees to accept all future maintenance and other attendant costs occurring after 
completion of the Project for all improvements constructed or commodities acquired as part of 
the Project. The terms of this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

14. Sale, Transfer, or Disposal of Department-funded Property: 
 

a. The Agency will not sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title or other 
interests in real property, facilities, or equipment funded in any part by the Department under 
this Agreement without prior written approval by the Department. 
 

b. If a sale, transfer, or disposal by the Agency of all or a portion of Department-funded real 
property, facilities, or equipment is approved by the Department, the following provisions will 
apply: 
 

i. The Agency shall reimburse the Department a proportional amount of the proceeds 
of the sale of any Department-funded property. 
 

ii. The proportional amount shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the 
Department funding of the development or acquisition of the property multiplied 
against the sale amount, and shall be remitted to the Department within ninety (90) 
days of closing of sale. 
 

iii. Sale of property developed or acquired with Department funds shall be at market 
value as determined by appraisal or public bidding process, and the contract and 
process for sale must be approved in advance by the Department. 
 

iv. If any portion of the proceeds from the sale to the Agency are non-cash 
considerations, reimbursement to the Department shall include a proportional 
amount based on the value of the non-cash considerations. 
 

c. The terms of provisions “a” and “b” above shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  

i. The terms shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of facilities 
developed, equipment acquired, or Project items installed within a facility, but shall 
not exceed twenty (20) years from the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

ii. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms with respect to real property 
acquired with Department funds.  

 
15. Single Audit. The administration of Federal or State resources awarded through the Department to the 

Agency by this Agreement may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department. The following 
requirements do not limit the authority of the Department to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional 
audits or evaluations of Federal awards or State financial assistance or limit the authority of any state 
agency inspector general, the State of Florida Auditor General, or any other state official. The Agency shall 
comply with all audit and audit reporting requirements as specified below. 

 
Federal Funded: 
 

a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements, monitoring procedures may include but not be limited to on-site visits by 
Department staff and/or other procedures, including reviewing any required performance and 
financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective action, and issuing management decisions 
on weaknesses found through audits when those findings pertain to Federal awards provided 
through the Department by this Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency 
agrees to comply and cooperate fully with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed 
appropriate by the Department. The Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any 



9 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Department, State of 
Florida Chief Financial Officer (CFO), or State of Florida Auditor General. 
 

b. The Agency, a non-Federal entity as defined by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, as a subrecipient of a Federal award awarded by the Department through this 
Agreement, is subject to the following requirements: 
 

i. In the event the Agency expends a total amount of Federal awards equal to or in 
excess of the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the Agency must have a Federal single or program-specific audit 
conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F – Audit Requirements. Exhibit “H”, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
Federal Financial Assistance, to this Agreement provides the required Federal 
award identification information needed by the Agency to further comply with the 
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. In determining 
Federal awards expended in a fiscal year, the Agency must consider all sources of 
Federal awards based on when the activity related to the Federal award occurs, 
including the Federal award provided through the Department by this Agreement. The 
determination of amounts of Federal awards expended should be in accordance with 
the guidelines established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. An 
audit conducted by the State of Florida Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, will meet the 
requirements of this part. 
 

ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall fulfill the requirements 
relative to the auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements. 
 

iii. In the event the Agency expends less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, in Federal awards, the Agency is exempt from 
Federal audit requirements for that fiscal year. However, the Agency must provide a 
single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency expends 
less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, in Federal awards in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-Federal resources (i.e., the 
cost of such an audit must be paid from the Agency’s resources obtained from other 
than Federal entities). 
 

iv. The Agency must electronically submit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) at 
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ the audit reporting package as required by 2 
CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, within the earlier of 30 calendar days 
after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
The FAC is the repository of record for audits required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F 
– Audit Requirements. However, the Department requires a copy of the audit reporting 
package also be submitted to FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us within the earlier of 
30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end 
of the audit period as required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. 
 

v. Within six months of acceptance of the audit report by the FAC, the Department will 
review the Agency’s audit reporting package, including corrective action plans and 
management letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and 
appropriate action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the Federal award 
provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails to have an 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


10 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, 
the Department may impose additional conditions to remedy noncompliance. If the 
Department determines that noncompliance cannot be remedied by imposing 
additional conditions, the Department may take appropriate actions to enforce 
compliance, which actions may include but not be limited to the following: 
 

1. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 
the Agency or more severe enforcement action by the Department; 

2. Disallow (deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all 
or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance; 

3. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award; 
4. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 C.F.R. 

Part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations (or in the case of the 
Department, recommend such a proceeding be initiated by the Federal 
awarding agency); 

5. Withhold further Federal awards for the Project or program; 
6. Take other remedies that may be legally available. 

 
vi. As a condition of receiving this Federal award, the Agency shall permit the Department 

or its designee, the CFO, or State of Florida Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, and 
project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals, 
or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is resolved. 
 

vii. The Department’s contact information for requirements under this part is as follows: 
 

Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
605 Suwannee Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 

 
State Funded: 

 
a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, 

monitoring procedures to monitor the Agency’s use of state financial assistance may include 
but not be limited to on-site visits by Department staff and/or other procedures, including 
reviewing any required performance and financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective 
action, and issuing management decisions on weaknesses found through audits when those 
findings pertain to state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this 
Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency agrees to comply and cooperate fully 
with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department. The 
Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, 
or audits deemed necessary by the Department, the Department of Financial Services (DFS), 
or State of Florida Auditor General. 

 
b. The Agency, a “nonstate entity” as defined by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, as a recipient 

of state financial assistance awarded by the Department through this Agreement, is subject to 
the following requirements: 

   
i. In the event the Agency meets the audit threshold requirements established by 

Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency must have a State single or project-
specific audit conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes; applicable rules of the Department of Financial Services; and 
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. Exhibit “G”, Audit Requirements for 
Awards of State Financial Assistance, to this Agreement indicates state financial 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


11 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

assistance awarded through the Department by this Agreement needed by the 
Agency to further comply with the requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. 
In determining the state financial assistance expended in a fiscal year, the Agency 
shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial 
assistance received from the Department by this Agreement, other state agencies, 
and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal direct 
or pass-through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for Federal 
program matching requirements. 

 
ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall ensure that the audit 

complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes 
submission of a financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(e), 
Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 
(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

 
iii. In the event the Agency does not meet the audit threshold requirements established 

by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency is exempt for such fiscal year from 
the state single audit requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. However, the 
Agency must provide a single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency does 
not meet the audit threshold requirements established by Section 215.97, Florida 
Statutes, in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the Agency’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Agency’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

 
iv. In accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 

(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, copies of 
financial reporting packages required by this Agreement shall be submitted to: 

   
  Florida Department of Transportation 
  Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
  605 Suwannee Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0405 
  FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 
   
  And 
 

 State of Florida Auditor General 
 Local Government Audits/342 
 111 West Madison Street, Room 401 
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1450 
 Email: flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us 

 
v. Any copies of financial reporting packages, reports, or other information required to 

be submitted to the Department shall be submitted timely in accordance with Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as 
applicable. 

 
vi. The Agency, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for 

audits done in accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should 
indicate the date the reporting package was delivered to the Agency in 
correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us


12 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
vii. Upon receipt, and within six months, the Department will review the Agency’s 

financial reporting package, including corrective action plans and management 
letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and appropriate 
corrective action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the state financial 
assistance provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails 
to have an audit conducted consistent with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the 
Department may take appropriate corrective action to enforce compliance. 

 
viii. As a condition of receiving state financial assistance, the Agency shall permit the 

Department or its designee, DFS, or the Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, 
and project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, 
appeals, or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is 
resolved. 

 

c. The Agency shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued and shall allow 
the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General access to such 
records upon request. The Agency shall ensure that the audit working papers are made 
available to the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General upon 
request for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in 
writing by the Department. 

 

16. Notices and Approvals. Notices and approvals referenced in this Agreement must be obtained in writing 
from the Parties’ respective Administrators or their designees. 
 

17. Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls and Labor Provisions: 
 

a. Convicted Vendor List. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor 
list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases 
of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not 
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 
287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of 
being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 

b. Discriminatory Vendor List. In accordance with Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, an entity 
or affiliate who has been placed on the Discriminatory Vendor List, kept by the Florida 
Department of Management Services, may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or 
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity. 

 
c. Non-Responsible Contractors. An entity or affiliate who has had its Certificate of 

Qualification suspended, revoked, denied, or have further been determined by the Department 
to be a non-responsible contractor, may not submit a bid or perform work for the construction 
or repair of a public building or public work on a contract with the Agency. 

 



13 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

d. Prohibition on Using Funds for Lobbying. No funds received pursuant to this Agreement 
may be expended for lobbying the Florida Legislature, judicial branch, or any state agency, in 
accordance with Section 216.347, Florida Statutes. 

 
e. Unauthorized Aliens. The Department shall consider the employment by any contractor of 

unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If 
the contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation will be cause for 
unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. 

 
f. Procurement of Construction Services. If the Project is procured pursuant to Chapter 255, 

Florida Statutes, for construction services and at the time of the competitive solicitation for the 
Project, 50 percent or more of the cost of the Project is to be paid from state-appropriated 
funds, then the Agency must comply with the requirements of Section 255.0991, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
g. E-Verify. The Agency shall: 

 

i. Utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the 
contract; and  
 

ii. Expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant 
to the state contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-
Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the 
subcontractor during the contract term. 

 
h. Design Services and Construction Engineering and Inspection Services.  If the Project 

is wholly or partially funded by the Department and administered by a local governmental 
entity, except for a seaport listed in Section 311.09, Florida Statutes, the entity performing 
design and construction engineering and inspection services may not be the same entity.  

 

18. Indemnification and Insurance: 
 

a. It is specifically agreed between the Parties executing this Agreement that it is not intended 
by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member 
thereof, a third party beneficiary under this Agreement, or to authorize anyone not a party to 
this Agreement to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the 
terms or provisions of this Agreement.  The Agency guarantees the payment of all just claims 
for materials, supplies, tools, or labor and other just claims against the Agency or any 
subcontractor, in connection with this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including the 
Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, 
but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, 
recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the Agency and persons employed or 
utilized by the Agency in the performance of this Agreement. This indemnification shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency agrees to include the following 
indemnification in all contracts with contractors/subcontractors and 
consultants/subconsultants who perform work in connection with this Agreement: 
 
“To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Agency’s contractor/consultant shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the Agency and the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including 
the Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and costs, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the 
negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the contractor/consultant and 



14 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

persons employed or utilized by the contractor/consultant in the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
This indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement.” 

 

b. The Agency shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with Florida’s 
Workers’ Compensation law for all employees. If subletting any of the work, ensure that the 
subcontractor(s) and subconsultant(s) have Workers’ Compensation Insurance for their 
employees in accordance with Florida’s Workers’ Compensation law. If using “leased 
employees” or employees obtained through professional employer organizations (“PEO’s”), 
ensure that such employees are covered by Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the 
PEO’s or other leasing entities. Ensure that any equipment rental agreements that include 
operators or other personnel who are employees of independent contractors, sole 
proprietorships, or partners are covered by insurance required under Florida’s Workers' 
Compensation law. 
 

c. If the Agency elects to self-perform the Project, then the Agency may self-insure. If the Agency 
elects to hire a contractor or consultant to perform the Project, then the Agency shall carry, or 
cause its contractor or consultant to carry, Commercial General Liability insurance providing 
continuous coverage for all work or operations performed under this Agreement. Such 
insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the latest occurrence form edition 
of the standard Commercial General Liability Coverage Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed 
for use in the State of Florida. The Agency shall cause, or cause its contractor or consultant 
to cause, the Department to be made an Additional Insured as to such insurance. Such 
coverage shall be on an “occurrence” basis and shall include Products/Completed Operations 
coverage. The coverage afforded to the Department as an Additional Insured shall be primary 
as to any other available insurance and shall not be more restrictive than the coverage 
afforded to the Named Insured. The limits of coverage shall not be less than $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence and not less than a $5,000,000 annual general aggregate, inclusive of 
amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy. The limits of coverage described herein 
shall apply fully to the work or operations performed under the Agreement, and may not be 
shared with or diminished by claims unrelated to the Agreement. The policy/ies and coverage 
described herein may be subject to a deductible and such deductibles shall be paid by the 
Named Insured. No policy/ies or coverage described herein may contain or be subject to a 
Retention or a Self-Insured Retention unless the Agency is a state agency or subdivision of 
the State of Florida that elects to self-perform the Project. Prior to the execution of the 
Agreement, and at all renewal periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, the 
Department shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the 
coverage described herein. The Department shall be notified in writing within ten days of any 
cancellation, notice of cancellation, lapse, renewal, or proposed change to any policy or 
coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any policy/ies, 
coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to procure and 
maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights or defenses the 
Department may have. 
 

d. When the Agreement includes the construction of a railroad grade crossing, railroad overpass 
or underpass structure, or any other work or operations within the limits of the railroad right-
of-way, including any encroachments thereon from work or operations in the vicinity of the 
railroad right-of-way, the Agency shall, or cause its contractor to, in addition to the insurance 
coverage required above, procure and maintain Railroad Protective Liability Coverage (ISO 
Form CG 00 35) where the railroad is the Named Insured and where the limits are not less 
than $2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per 
occurrence, and with an annual aggregate limit of not less than $6,000,000. The railroad shall 
also be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the policy/ies procured 
pursuant to the paragraph above. Prior to the execution of the Agreement, and at all renewal 
periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, both the Department and the railroad 



15 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the coverage 
described herein. The insurance described herein shall be maintained through final 
acceptance of the work. Both the Department and the railroad shall be notified in writing within 
ten days of any cancellation, notice of cancellation, renewal, or proposed change to any policy 
or coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any 
policy/ies, coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to 
procure and maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights the 
Department may have.  
 

e. When the Agreement involves work on or in the vicinity of utility-owned property or facilities, 
the utility shall be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the 
Commercial General Liability policy/ies procured above.  

 
19. Miscellaneous: 

 

a. Environmental Regulations. The Agency will be solely responsible for compliance with all 
applicable environmental regulations and for any liability arising from non-compliance with 
these regulations, and will reimburse the Department for any loss incurred in connection 
therewith.  

 
b. Non-Admission of Liability. In no event shall the making by the Department of any payment 

to the Agency constitute or be construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach of 
covenant or any default which may then exist on the part of the Agency and the making of 
such payment by the Department, while any such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way 
impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department with respect to such breach 
or default.  

 
c. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this 

Agreement shall not be affected.  In such an instance, the remainder would then continue to 
conform to the terms and requirements of applicable law.  

 
d. Agency not an agent of Department. The Agency and the Department agree that the 

Agency, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, and subconsultants are not 
agents of the Department as a result of this Agreement. 

 
e. Bonus or Commission. By execution of the Agreement, the Agency represents that it has 

not paid and, also agrees not to pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining 
an approval of its application for the financing hereunder.  

 
f. Non-Contravention of State Law. Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Agency to 

observe or enforce compliance with any provision or perform any act or do any other thing in 
contravention of any applicable state law. If any of the provisions of the Agreement violate any 
applicable state law, the Agency will at once notify the Department in writing so that 
appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Department and the Agency to 
the end that the Agency may proceed as soon as possible with the Project.  

 
g. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute the same 
Agreement.  A facsimile or electronic transmission of this Agreement with a signature on behalf 
of a party will be legal and binding on such party. 

 
h. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN). If the FAIN is not available prior to execution 

of the Agreement, the Department may unilaterally add the FAIN to the Agreement without 
approval of the Agency and without an amendment to the Agreement. If this occurs, an 



16 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

updated Agreement that includes the FAIN will be provided to the Agency and uploaded to the 
Department of Financial Services’ Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS). 

 
i. Inspector General Cooperation. The Agency agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), 

Florida Statutes, and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 
20.055(5), Florida Statutes.  

 
j. Law, Forum, and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Florida.  In the event of a conflict between any portion of the 
contract and Florida law, the laws of Florida shall prevail.  The Agency agrees to waive forum 
and venue and that the Department shall determine the forum and venue in which any dispute 
under this Agreement is decided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
 
AGENCY  Boca Raton Airport Authority 

  
 
By:  
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
By:  
 
Name:  Steven C Braun, P.E. 
 
Title:   Director of Transportation Development 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Legal Review: 
 
 
      
 
 

 



17 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description and Responsibilities  
 
 
A. Project Description (description of Agency’s project to provide context, description of project components funded 
via this Agreement (if not the entire project)): Transportation/Access Road Development - Phase 2  
 
B. Project Location (limits, city, county, map): Boca Raton Airport/Boca Raton, FL/Palm Beach 
 
C. Project Scope (allowable costs: describe project components, improvement type/service type, approximate 
timeline, project schedule, project size): Transportation/Access Road Development - Phase 2.  As required by 
215.971, F.S., this scope of work includes but is not limited to consultant and design fees, survey and geotechnical 
costs, permitting, construction inspection and material testing costs, mobilization and demobilization, maintenance of 
traffic, erosion control, demolition, excavation/embankment, surface preparation, pavement, drainage, markings, 
signage, lighting and communications systems (conduits, fixtures, etc.), landscaping, fencing, access control, and 
security systems, including all materials, equipment, labor, and incidentals required to complete the 
Transportation/Access Road Development project. The Sponsor will comply with Aviation Program Assurances 
 
D. Deliverable(s): Transportation/Access Road Development 
 
The project scope identifies the ultimate project deliverables. Deliverables for requisition, payment and invoice 
purposes will be the incremental progress made toward completion of project scope elements. Supporting 
documentation will be quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable, to allow for a determination of the amount of 
incremental progress that has been made, and provide evidence that the payment requested is commensurate with 
the accomplished incremental progress and costs incurred by the Agency. 
 
 
E. Unallowable Costs (including but not limited to):     
 
F. Transit Operating Grant Requirements (Transit Only): 
 
Transit Operating Grants billed as an operational subsidy will require an expenditure detail report from the Agency that 
matches the invoice period.  The expenditure detail, along with the progress report, will be the required deliverables for 
Transit Operating Grants. 



18 of 37



19 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Schedule of Financial Assistance 
 
 

FUNDS AWARDED TO THE AGENCY AND REQUIRED MATCHING FUNDS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT 
CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

A. Fund Type and Fiscal Year: 
 

Financial 
Management 

Number 

Fund 
Type 

FLAIR 
Category 

State 
Fiscal 
Year 

Object 
Code 

CSFA/ 
CFDA 

Number 

CSFA/CFDA Title or 
Funding Source 

Description 

Funding 
Amount 

423957-3-94-01 
 

423957-3-94-01 

DPTO 
 

LF 

088719 
 

088719 

2021 
 

2021 

751000 
 

751000 

55.004 
 

55.004 

Aviation Grant Program 
 

Aviation Grant Program 

$500,000 
 

$125,000 

 Total Financial Assistance $625,000 

 
 

B. Estimate of Project Costs by Grant Phase: 
 

Phases* State Local Federal Totals 
State 

% 
Local 

% 
Federal 

% 

Land Acquisition $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Planning $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Environmental/Design/Construction $500,000 $125,000 $0 $625,000 80.00 20.00 0.00 

Capital Equipment  $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Match to Direct Federal Funding $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Mobility Management 
(Transit Only) 

$0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Totals $500,000 $125,000 $0 $625,000    

   *Shifting items between these grant phases requires execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement. 
 
 

 
BUDGET/COST ANALYSIS CERTIFICATION AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 216.3475, FLORIDA STATUTES: 
 
I certify that the cost for each line item budget category (grant phase) has been evaluated and determined to be 
allowable, reasonable, and necessary as required by Section 216.3475, Florida Statutes. Documentation is on file 
evidencing the methodology used and the conclusions reached. 
 
Laurie McDermott  

Department Grant Manager Name  
  

Signature                                     Date 
 

 



20 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

        TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION  
 

1. Design and Construction Standards and Required Approvals. 
 

a. The Agency understands that it is responsible for the preparation and certification of all design 
plans for the Project. The Agency shall hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the 
Project or, if applicable, the Agency shall require their design-build contractor or construction 
management contractor to hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the Project. 

 
b. Execution of this Agreement by both Parties shall be deemed a Notice to Proceed to the 

Agency for the design phase or other non-construction phases of the Project. If the Project 
involves a construction phase, the Agency shall not begin the construction phase of the Project 
until the Department issues a Notice to Proceed for the construction phase. Prior to 
commencing the construction work described in this Agreement, the Agency shall request a 
Notice to Proceed from the Department’s Project Manager,  Laurie McDermott (email: 
laurie.mcdermott@dot.state.fl.us)  or from an appointed designee.   Any construction phase 
work performed prior to the execution of this required Notice to Proceed is not subject to 
reimbursement. 

 
c. The Agency will provide one (1) copy of the final design plans and specifications and final bid 

documents to the Department’s Project Manager prior to bidding or commencing construction 
of the Project.   

 
d. The Agency shall require the Agency’s contractor to post a payment and performance bond 

in accordance with applicable law(s). 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible to ensure that the construction work under this Agreement 
is performed in accordance with the approved construction documents, and that the 
construction work will meet all applicable Agency and Department standards.   

 
f. Upon completion of the work authorized by this Agreement, the Agency shall notify the 

Department in writing of the completion of construction of the Project; and for all design work 
that originally required certification by a Professional Engineer, this notification shall contain 
an Engineer’s Certification of Compliance, signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, the 
form of which is attached to this Exhibit. The certification shall state that work has been 
completed in compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications. If any 
deviations are found from the approved plans or specifications, the certification shall include 
a list of all deviations along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 
deviation. 

 

2. Construction on the Department’s Right of Way. If the Project involves construction on the 
Department’s right-of-way, then the following provisions apply to any and all portions of the Project 
that are constructed on the Department’s right-of-way: 
 

a. The Agency shall hire a qualified contractor using the Agency’s normal bid procedures to 
perform the construction work for the Project. The Agency must certify that the installation of 
the Project is completed by a Contractor prequalified by the Department as required by Section 
2 of the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (2016), as amended, unless 
otherwise approved by the Department in writing or the Contractor exhibits past project 
experience in the last five years that are comparable in scale, composition, and overall quality 
to the site characterized within the scope of services of this Project. 
 



21 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

b. Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) services will be provided by the Agency by hiring a 
Department prequalified consultant firm including one individual that has completed the 
Advanced Maintenance of Traffic Level Training, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department in writing. The CEI staff shall be present on the Project at all times that the 
contractor is working.  Administration of the CEI staff shall be under the responsible charge of 
a State of Florida Licensed Professional Engineer who shall provide the certification that all 
design and construction for the Project meets the minimum construction standards established 
by Department. The Department shall approve all CEI personnel.  The CEI firm shall not be 
the same firm as that of the Engineer of Record for the Project. The Department shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to perform independent assurance testing during the course 
of construction of the Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Department may issue a 
written waiver of the CEI requirement for portions of Projects involving the construction of bus 
shelters, stops, or pads.   
 

c. The Project shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the latest edition of the 
Department’s Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, the Department 
Design Standards, and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). The following 
guidelines shall apply as deemed appropriate by the Department: the Department Structures 
Design Manual, AASHTO Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges, AASHTO 
LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, Florida Design Manual, Manual for Uniform Minimum 
Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and Highways (the “Florida 
Green Book”), and the Department Traffic Engineering Manual. The Agency will be required 
to submit any construction plans required by the Department for review and approval prior to 
any work being commenced. Should any changes to the plans be required during construction 
of the Project, the Agency shall be required to notify the Department of the changes and 
receive approval from the Department prior to the changes being constructed. The Agency 
shall maintain the area of the Project at all times and coordinate any work needs of the 
Department during construction of the Project.  
 

d. The Agency shall notify the Department a minimum of 48 hours before beginning construction 
within Department right-of-way. The Agency shall notify the Department should construction 
be suspended for more than 5 working days.  The Department contact person for construction 
is    . 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible for monitoring construction operations and the maintenance 
of traffic (MOT) throughout the course of the Project in accordance with the latest edition of 
the Department Standard Specifications, section 102. The Agency is responsible for the 
development of a MOT plan and making any changes to that plan as necessary. The MOT 
plan shall be in accordance with the latest version of the Department Design Standards, Index 
600 series. Any MOT plan developed by the Agency that deviates from the Department Design 
Standards must be signed and sealed by a professional engineer. MOT plans will require 
approval by the Department prior to implementation.  
 

f. The Agency shall be responsible for locating all existing utilities, both aerial and underground, 
and for ensuring that all utility locations be accurately documented on the construction plans. 
All utility conflicts shall be fully resolved directly with the applicable utility.  
 

g. The Agency will be responsible for obtaining all permits that may be required by other agencies 
or local governmental entities.  
 

h. It is hereby agreed by the Parties that this Agreement creates a permissive use only and all 
improvements located on the Department’s right-of-way resulting from this Agreement shall 
become the property of the Department. Neither the granting of the permission to use the 
Department right of way nor the placing of facilities upon the Department property shall 
operate to create or vest any property right to or in the Agency, except as may otherwise be 
provided in separate agreements. The Agency shall not acquire any right, title, interest or 



22 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

estate in Department right of way, of any nature or kind whatsoever, by virtue of the execution, 
operation, effect, or performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, the Agency’s 
use, occupancy or possession of Department right of way. The Parties agree that this 
Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant credit for any future transportation 
concurrency requirements pursuant to Chapter 163, F.S.  
 

i. The Agency shall not cause any liens or encumbrances to attach to any portion of the 
Department’s property, including but not limited to, the Department’s right-of-way. 
 

j. The Agency shall perform all required testing associated with the design and construction of 
the Project. Testing results shall be made available to the Department upon request. The 
Department shall have the right to perform its own independent testing during the course of 
the Project.  
 

k. The Agency shall exercise the rights granted herein and shall otherwise perform this 
Agreement in a good and workmanlike manner, with reasonable care, in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state, local, administrative, 
regulatory, safety and environmental laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies, procedures, 
guidelines, standards and permits, as the same may be constituted and amended from time 
to time, including, but not limited to, those of the Department, applicable Water Management 
District, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, the United States Army Corps of Engineers, the United States Coast 
Guard and local governmental entities.  
 

l. If the Department determines a condition exists which threatens the public’s safety, the 
Department may, at its discretion, cause construction operations to cease and immediately 
have any potential hazards removed from its right-of-way at the sole cost, expense, and effort 
of the Agency.  The Agency shall bear all construction delay costs incurred by the Department.  
 

m. The Agency shall be responsible to maintain and restore all features that might require 
relocation within the Department right-of-way.  
 

n. The Agency will be solely responsible for clean up or restoration required to correct any 
environmental or health hazards that may result from construction operations.  
 

o. The acceptance procedure will include a final “walk-through” by Agency and Department 
personnel.  Upon completion of construction, the Agency will be required to submit to the 
Department final as-built plans and an engineering certification that construction was 
completed in accordance to the plans. Submittal of the final as-built plans shall include one 
complete set of the signed and sealed plans on 11" X 17" plan sheets and an electronic copy 
prepared in Portable Document Format (PDF).  Prior to the termination of this Agreement, the 
Agency shall remove its presence, including, but not limited to, all of the Agency’s property, 
machinery, and equipment from Department right-of-way and shall restore those portions of 
Department right of way disturbed or otherwise altered by the Project to substantially the same 
condition that existed immediately prior to the commencement of the Project.  
 

p. If the Department determines that the Project is not completed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, the Department shall deliver written notification of such to the 
Agency. The Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Department’s 
written notice, or such other time as the Agency and the Department mutually agree to in 
writing, to complete the Project and provide the Department with written notice of the same 
(the “Notice of Completion”). If the Agency fails to timely deliver the Notice of Completion, or 
if it is determined that the Project is not properly completed after receipt of the Notice of 
Completion, the Department, within its discretion may: 1) provide the Agency with written 
authorization granting such additional time as the Department deems appropriate to correct 
the deficiency(ies); or 2) correct the deficiency(ies) at the Agency’s sole cost and expense, 



23 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

without Department liability to the Agency for any resulting loss or damage to property, 
including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment. If the Department elects to correct the 
deficiency(ies), the Department shall provide the Agency with an invoice for the costs incurred 
by the Department and the Agency shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of 
the invoice.  
 

q. The Agency shall implement best management practices for erosion and pollution control to 
prevent violation of state water quality standards. The Agency shall be responsible for the 
correction of any erosion, shoaling, or water quality problems that result from the construction 
of the Project. 
 

r. Portable Traffic Monitoring Site (PTMS) or a Telemetry Traffic Monitoring Site (TTMS) may 
exist within the vicinity of your proposed work.  It is the responsibility of the Agency to locate 
and avoid damage to these sites.  If a PTMS or TTMS is encountered during construction, the 
Department must be contacted immediately. 
 

s. During construction, highest priority must be given to pedestrian safety.  If permission is 
granted to temporarily close a sidewalk, it should be done with the express condition that an 
alternate route will be provided, and shall continuously maintain pedestrian features to meet 
Americans Disability Act (ADA) standards. 
 

t. Restricted hours of operation will be as follows, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department’s District Construction Engineer or designee (insert hours and days of the week 
for restricted operation):     
 

u. Lane closures on the state road system must be coordinated with the Public Information Office 
at least two weeks prior to the closure.  The contact information for the Department’s Public 
Information Office is: 
 
Insert District PIO contact info: 

    

 

Note: (Highlighted sections indicate need to confirm information with District Office or 

appropriate DOT person managing the Agreement) 

 
 

3. Engineer’s Certification of Compliance. The Agency shall complete and submit and if applicable 
Engineer’s Certification of Compliance to the Department upon completion of the construction phase 
of the Project. 

 
 

  



24 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
and        

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:    
 
DEPARTMENT CONTRACT NO.:   
 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT NO.:   

 
In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Public Transportation Grant Agreement, the undersigned 

certifies that all work which originally required certification by a Professional Engineer has been completed in 

compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications.  If any deviations have been made from the 

approved plans, a list of all deviations, along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 

deviation, will be attached to this Certification. Also, with submittal of this certification, the Agency shall furnish 

the Department a set of “as-built” plans for construction on the Department’s Right of Way certified by the 

Engineer of Record/CEI.  

 
    By:         , P.E. 
 
SEAL:    Name:        
 
    Date:        
 
 

 

 
 



25 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

AGENCY RESOLUTION 
 

 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 
 



26 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

PROGRAM SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS - AVIATION 
AVIATION PROGRAM ASSURANCES 

 
A. General. 
 

1. The assurances herein shall form an integral part of the Agreement between the Department and the Agency. 
 

2. These assurances delineate the obligations of the Parties to this Agreement to ensure their commitment and 
compliance with specific provisions of Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance, as well as serving to protect public investment in public-use airports 
and the continued viability of the Florida Aviation System. 

 
3. The Agency shall comply with the assurances as specified in this Agreement. 

 
4. The terms and assurances of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of a 

facility developed; equipment acquired; or Project items installed within a facility for an airport development or 
noise compatibility program project, but shall not exceed 20 years from the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
5. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement regarding Exclusive Rights 

and Airport Revenue so long as the property is used as a public airport. 
 

6. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement with respect to real 
property acquired with funds provided by this Agreement. 

 
7. Subject to appropriations, the Department shall continue to comply with its financial commitment to this Project 

under the terms of this Agreement, until such time as the Department may determine that the Agency has failed 
to comply with the terms and assurances of this Agreement. 

 
8. An Agency that has been determined by the Department to have failed to comply with either the terms of these 

Assurances, or the terms of the Agreement, or both, shall be notified, in writing, by the Department, identifying 
the specifics of the non-compliance and any corrective action by the Agency to remedy the failure. 

 
9. Failure by the Agency to satisfactorily remedy the non-compliance shall absolve the Department’s continued 

financial commitment to this Project and immediately require the Agency to repay the Department the full amount 
of funds expended by the Department on this Project. 

 
10. Any history of failure to comply with the terms and assurances of an Agreement will jeopardize the Agency’s 

eligibility for further state funding of airport projects by the Department. 
 
B. Agency Compliance Certification. 
 

1. General Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Project, it will comply, within its 
authority, with all applicable, current laws and rules of the State of Florida and applicable local governments, as 
well as Department policies, guidelines, and requirements, including but not limited to, the following (latest 
version of each document): 
 
a. Florida Statutes (F.S.) 

 Chapter 163, F.S., Intergovernmental Programs 

 Chapter 329, F.S., Aircraft: Title; Liens; Registration; Liens 

 Chapter 330, F.S., Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports 

 Chapter 331, F.S., Aviation and Aerospace Facilities and Commerce 

 Chapter 332, F.S., Airports and Other Air Navigation Facilities 

 Chapter 333, F.S., Airport Zoning 
 



27 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

b. Florida Administrative Code (FAC) 

 Chapter 73C-41, FAC, Community Planning; Governing the Procedure for the Submittal and Review of 
Local Government Comprehensive Plans and Amendments 

 Chapter 14-60, FAC, Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection 

 Section 62-256.300, FAC, Open Burning, Prohibitions 

 Section 62-701.320(13), FAC, Solid Waste Management Facility Permit Requirements, General, Airport 
Safety 
 

c. Local Government Requirements 

 Airport Zoning Ordinance 

 Local Comprehensive Plan 
 

d. Department Requirements 

 Eight Steps of Building a New Airport 

 Florida Airport Revenue Use Guide 

 Florida Aviation Project Handbook 

 Guidebook for Airport Master Planning 

 Airport Compatible Land Use Guidebook 
 

2. Construction Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to a construction-related project, that all 
design plans and specifications will comply with applicable federal, state, local, and professional standards, as 
well as Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Advisory Circulars (AC’s) and FAA issued waivers thereto, 
including but not limited to, the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 FAA AC 70/7460-1, Obstruction Marking and Lighting 

 FAA AC 150/5300-13, Airport Design 

 FAA AC 150/5370-2, Operational Safety on Airports During Construction 

 FAA AC 150/5370-10, Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports 
 

b. Local Government Requirements 

 Local Building Codes 

 Local Zoning Codes 
 

c. Department Requirements 

 Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and 
Highways (Commonly Referred to as the “Florida Green Book”) 

 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

 Section 14-60.007, FAC, Airfield Standards for Licensed Airports 

 Standard Specifications for Construction of General Aviation Airports 

 Design Guidelines & Minimum Standard Requirements for T-Hangar Projects 
 

3. Land Acquisition Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, regarding land acquisition, that it will comply with 
applicable federal and/or state policies, regulations, and laws, including but not limited to the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 

 National Environmental Policy of 1969 

 FAA Order 5050.4, National Environmental Policy Act Implementing Instructions for Airport Projects 

 FAA Order 5100.37B, Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport Projects 
 

b. Florida Requirements 

 Chapter 73, F.S., Eminent Domain (re: Property Acquired Through Condemnation) 

 Chapter 74, F.S., Proceedings Supplemental to Eminent Domain (re: Condemnation) 

 Section 286.23, F.S., Public Business: Miscellaneous Provisions 



28 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 
C. Agency Authority. 
 

1. Legal Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has the legal authority to 
enter into this Agreement and commit to this Project; that a resolution, motion, or similar action has been duly 
adopted or passed as an official act of the airport sponsor’s governing body authorizing this Agreement, including 
assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative 
of the governing body to act on its behalf with respect to this Agreement and to provide any additional information 
as may be required. 
 

2. Financial Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has sufficient funds 
available for that portion of the Project costs which are not paid by the U.S. Government or the State of Florida; 
that it has sufficient funds available to assure future operation and maintenance of items funded by this Project, 
which it will control; and that authority has been granted by the airport sponsor governing body to commit those 
funds to this Project. 

 
D. Agency Responsibilities. The Agency hereby certifies it currently complies with or will comply with the following 
responsibilities: 
 

1. Accounting System. 
 

a. The Agency shall create and maintain a separate account to document all of the financial transactions 
related to the airport as a distinct entity. 
 

b. The accounting records shall be kept by the Agency or its authorized representative in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and in an accounting system that will facilitate an effective audit 
in accordance with the 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and Section 215.97, F.S., Florida Single Audit Act. 
 

c. The Department has the right to audit and inspect all financial records of the Agency upon reasonable notice. 
 

2. Good Title. 
 
a. The Agency holds good title, satisfactory to the Department, to the airport or site thereof, or gives assurance, 

satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 
 
b. For noise compatibility program projects undertaken on the airport sponsor’s property, the Agency holds 

good title, satisfactory to the Department, to that portion of the property upon which state funds will be 
expended, or gives assurance, satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 

 
3. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

 
a. The Agency shall not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and 

powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms and assurances of this Agreement without the written 
approval of the Department. Further, the Agency  shall act promptly to acquire, extinguish, or modify, in a 
manner acceptable to the Department, any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would 
interfere with such performance by the Agency. 
 

b. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any entity or person other than 
the Agency or an employee of the Agency, the Agency shall reserve sufficient rights and authority to ensure 
that the airport will be operated and maintained in accordance with the terms and assurances of this 
Agreement. 

 
4. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 

 



29 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

a. For airport hazards located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall clear and protect terminal 
airspace required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight 
altitudes) by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport 
hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. 
 

b. For airport hazards not located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall work in conjunction with the 
governing public authority or private land owner of the property to clear and protect terminal airspace 
required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) 
by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and 
by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. The Agency may enter into an 
agreement with surrounding property owners or pursue available legal remedies to remove potential hazards 
to air navigation. 

 
5. Airport Compatible Land Use. 

 
a. The Agency assures that appropriate airport zoning ordinances are in place consistent with Section 333.03, 

F.S., or if not in place, that it will take appropriate action necessary to ensure local government adoption of 
an airport zoning ordinance or execution of an interlocal agreement with another local government body 
having an airport zoning ordinance, consistent with the provisions of Section 333.03, F.S. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted alteration or creation of objects, natural 
or man-made, dangerous to navigable airspace or that would adversely affect the current or future levels of 
airport operations. 
 

c. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted change in local land use development 
regulations that would adversely affect the current or future levels of airport operations by creation or 
expansion of airport incompatible land use areas. 

 
6. Consistency with Local Government Plans. 

 
a. The Agency assures the Project is consistent with the currently existing and planned future land use 

development plans approved by the local government having jurisdictional responsibility for the area 
surrounding the airport. 

 
b. The Agency assures that it has given fair consideration to the interest of local communities and has had 

reasonable consultation with those parties affected by the Project. 
 

c. The Agency shall consider and take appropriate actions, if deemed warranted by the Agency, to adopt the 
current, approved Airport Master Plan into the local government comprehensive plan. 

 
7. Consistency with Airport Master Plan and Airport Layout Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that the project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 

with the most current Airport Master Plan. 
 

b. The Agency assures that the Project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 
with the most current, approved Airport Layout Plan (ALP), which shows: 

 
1) The boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries of all 

offsite areas owned or controlled by the Agency for airport purposes and proposed additions thereto; 
2) The location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such as 

runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars, and roads), including all proposed 
extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities; and 

3) The location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas on airport property and of all existing 
improvements thereon. 
 



30 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

c. The Agency assures that it will not make or permit any changes or alterations on the airport or any of its 
facilities that are not consistent with the Airport Master Plan and the Airport Layout Plan, as approved by the 
Department. 
 

d. Original Airport Master Plans and Airport Layout Plans and each amendment, revision, or modification 
thereof, will be subject to the approval of the Department. 

 
8. Airport Financial Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will develop and maintain a cost-feasible Airport financial plan to accomplish 

the projects necessary to achieve the proposed airport improvements identified in the Airport Master Plan 

and depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. The Agency’s Airport financial plan must 

comply with the following conditions: 

 

1) The Airport financial plan will be a part of the Airport Master Plan. 
2) The Airport financial plan will realistically assess project phasing considering availability of state and 

local funding and likelihood of federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 
3) The Airport financial plan will not include Department funding for projects that are inconsistent with 

the local government comprehensive plan. 
 

b. All Project cost estimates contained in the Airport financial plan shall be entered into and kept current in the 
Florida Aviation Database (FAD) Joint Automated Capital Improvement Program (JACIP) website. 

 
9. Airport Revenue. The Agency assures that all revenue generated by the airport will be expended for capital 

improvement or operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned 
or operated by the owner or operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the air 
transportation of passengers or property, or for environmental or noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport. 

 
10. Fee and Rental Structure. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will maintain a fee and rental structure for facilities and services at the airport 

that it will make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular 
airport. 
 

b. If this Agreement results in a facility that will be leased or otherwise produce revenue, the Agency assures 
that the price charged for that facility will be based on the market value. 

 
11. Public-Private Partnership for Aeronautical Uses. 

 
a. If the airport owner or operator and a person or entity that owns an aircraft or an airport tenant or potential 

tenant agree that an aircraft hangar or tenant-specific facility, respectively, is to be constructed on airport 
property for aircraft storage or tenant use at the expense of the aircraft owner or tenant, the airport owner 
or operator may grant to the aircraft owner or tenant of the facility a lease that is subject to such terms and 
conditions on the facility as the airport owner or operator may impose, subject to approval by the Department. 
 

b. The price charged for said lease will be based on market value, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department. 

 
12. Economic Nondiscrimination. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms 

without unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including commercial 
aeronautical activities offering services to the public. 
 

1) The Agency may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be met 

by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the airport. 



31 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) The Agency may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport if 
such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or necessary to serve the civil aviation 
needs of the public. 

 
b. The Agency assures that each airport Fixed-Based Operator (FBO) shall be subject to the same rates, fees, 

rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other FBOs making the same or similar uses of 
such airport and utilizing the same or similar facilities. 
 

13. Air and Water Quality Standards. The Agency assures that all projects involving airport location, major runway 
extension, or runway location will be located, designed, constructed, and operated so as to comply with 
applicable air and water quality standards. 
 

14. Operations and Maintenance. 
 

a. The Agency assures that the airport and all facilities, which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users 
of the airport, shall be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the 
minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable federal and state agencies for 
maintenance and operation, as well as minimum standards established by the Department for State of 
Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 
 

1) The Agency assures that it will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would 
interfere with its use for airport purposes. 

2) Except in emergency situations, any proposal to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical 
purposes must first be approved by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will have arrangements for promptly notifying airmen of any condition 
affecting aeronautical use of the airport. 
 

b. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for aeronautical use 
during temporary periods when adverse weather conditions interfere with safe airport operations. 
 

15. Federal Funding Eligibility. 

 
a. The Agency assures it will take appropriate actions to maintain federal funding eligibility for the airport and 

it will avoid any action that renders the airport ineligible for federal funding. 
 

b. If the Agency becomes ineligible for federal funding of airport projects, such determination will render the 
Agency ineligible for state funding of airport projects. 

 
16. Project Implementation. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will begin making expenditures or incurring obligations pertaining to this Project 

within one year after the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

b. The Agency may request a one-year extension of this one-year time period, subject to approval by the 
Department District Secretary or designee. 

 
c. Failure of the Agency to make expenditures, incur obligations or receive an approved extension may allow 

the Department to terminate this Agreement. 
 

17. Exclusive Rights. The Agency assures that it will not permit any exclusive right for use of the airport by any 
person providing, or intending to provide, aeronautical services to the public. 

 
18. Airfield Access. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access that opens onto or 

crosses the airport runways, taxiways, flight line, passenger facilities, or any area used for emergency 



32 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

equipment, fuel, supplies, passengers, mail and freight, radar, communications, utilities, and landing 
systems, including but not limited to flight operations, ground services, emergency services, terminal 
facilities, maintenance, repair, or storage, except for those normal airport providers responsible for standard 
airport daily services or during special events at the airport open to the public with limited and controlled 
access. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access to any portion of the 
airfield from adjacent real property which is not owned, operated, or otherwise controlled by the Agency 
without prior Department approval. 

 
19. Retention of Rights and Interests.The Agency will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose 

of any part of its title or other interests in the real property shown as airport owned or controlled on the current 
airport layout plan without prior written approval by the Department. It will not sell, lease, encumber, terminate, 
waive, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title, rights, or other interest in existing noise easements 
or avigation easements on any property, airport or non-airport, without prior written approval by the Department. 
These assurances shall not limit the Agency’s right to lease airport property for airport-compatible purposes. 
 

20. Consultant, Contractor, Scope, and Costs. 
 

a. The Department has the right to disapprove the Agency’s employment of consultants, contractors, and 

subcontractors for all or any part of this Project if the specific consultants, contractors, or subcontractors 

have a record of poor project performance with the Department. 

 

b. Further, the Department maintains the right to disapprove the proposed Project scope and cost of 

professional services. 

 
21. Planning Projects. For all planning projects or other aviation studies, the Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Execute the project per the approved project narrative or with approved modifications. 

 
b. Furnish the Department with such periodic project and work activity reports as indicated in the approved 

scope of services. 
 

c. Make such project materials available for public review, unless exempt from public disclosure. 
 

1) Information related to airport security is considered restricted information and is exempt from public 
dissemination per Sections 119.071(3) and 331.22 F.S. 

2) No materials prepared under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or 
any other country. 

 
d. Grant the Department unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise use any of the 

material prepared in connection with this Agreement. 
 

e. If the Project involves developing an Airport Master Plan or an Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto, 
it will be consistent with provisions of the Florida Aviation System Plan, will identify reasonable future growth 
of the airport and the Agency will comply with the Department airport master planning guidebook, including: 

 
1) Provide copies, in electronic and editable format, of final Project materials to the Department, 

including computer-aided drafting (CAD) files of the Airport Layout Plan. 
2) Develop a cost-feasible financial plan, approved by the Department, to accomplish the projects 

described in the Airport Master Plan or depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. 
The cost-feasible financial plan shall realistically assess Project phasing considering availability of 
state and local funding and federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 

3) Enter all projects contained in the cost-feasible plan in the Joint Automated Capital Improvement 
Program (JACIP). 

 



33 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

f. The Agency understands and agrees that Department approval of this Agreement or any planning material 
developed as part of this Agreement does not constitute or imply any assurance or commitment on the part 
of the Department to approve any pending or future application for state aviation funding. 

 
g. The Agency will submit master planning draft and final deliverables for Department and, if required, FAA 

approval prior to submitting any invoices to the Department for payment. 
 

22. Land Acquisition Projects. For the purchase of real property, the Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Laws. Acquire the land in accordance with federal and/or state laws governing such action. 
 

b. Administration. Maintain direct control of Project administration, including: 
 

1) Maintain responsibility for all related contract letting and administrative procedures related to the 
purchase of real property. 

2) Secure written Department approval to execute each agreement for the purchase of real property 
with any third party. 

3) Ensure a qualified, State-certified general appraiser provides all necessary services and 
documentation. 

4) Furnish the Department with a projected schedule of events and a cash flow projection within 20 
calendar days after completion of the review appraisal. 

5) Establish a Project account for the purchase of the land. 
6) Collect and disburse federal, state, and local project funds. 

  
c. Reimbursable Funds. If funding conveyed by this Agreement is reimbursable for land purchase in 

accordance with Chapter 332, F.S., the Agency shall comply with the following requirements: 
 

1) The Agency shall apply for a FAA Airport Improvement Program grant for the land purchase within 
60 days of executing this Agreement. 

2) If federal funds are received for the land purchase, the Agency shall notify the Department, in writing, 
within 14 calendar days of receiving the federal funds and is responsible for reimbursing the 
Department within 30 calendar days to achieve normal project federal, state, and local funding 
shares per Chapter 332, F.S. 

3) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase, the Agency shall reimburse the Department 
within 30 calendar days after the reimbursable funds are due in order to achieve normal project 
state and local funding shares as described in Chapter 332, F.S. 

4) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase and the state share of the purchase is less 
than or equal to normal state and local funding shares per Chapter 332, F.S., when reimbursable 
funds are due, no reimbursement to the Department shall be required. 

 
d. New Airport.  If this Project involves the purchase of real property for the development of a new airport, 

the Agency assures that it will: 
 

1) Apply for federal and state funding to construct a paved runway, associated aircraft parking apron, 
and connecting taxiway within one year of the date of land purchase. 

2) Complete an Airport Master Plan within two years of land purchase. 
3) Complete airport construction for basic operation within 10 years of land purchase. 

 
e. Use of Land. The Agency assures that it shall use the land for aviation purposes in accordance with the 

terms and assurances of this Agreement within 10 years of acquisition. 
 

f. Disposal of Land. For the disposal of real property the Agency assures that it will comply with the following: 
1) For land purchased for airport development or noise compatibility purposes, the Agency shall, when 

the land is no longer needed for such purposes, dispose of such land at fair market value and/or 
make available to the Department an amount equal to the state’s proportionate share of its market 
value. 



34 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) Land will be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if: 
 

a) It serves aeronautical purposes such as a runway protection zone or as a noise buffer. 
b) Revenue from uses of such land contributes to airport financial self-sufficiency.  

 
3) Disposition of land under Sections D.22.f.1. or D.22.f.2. of this Exhibit, above, shall be subject to 

retention or reservation of any interest or right therein needed to ensure such land will only be used 
for purposes compatible with noise levels related to airport operations. 

4) Revenues from the sale of such land must be accounted for as outlined in Section D.1. of this 
Exhibit, and expended as outlined in Section D.9. of this Exhibit.   

 

23. Construction Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Project Certifications. Certify Project compliances, including: 

 
1) Consultant and contractor selection comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 

regulations, and policies. 
2) All design plans and specifications comply with federal, state, and professional standards and 

applicable FAA advisory circulars, as well as the minimum standards established by the Department 
for State of Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 

3) Completed construction complies with all applicable local building codes. 
4) Completed construction complies with the Project plans and specifications with certification of that 

fact by the Project Engineer. 
 

b. Design Development.  For the plans, specifications, construction contract documents, and any and all 
other engineering, construction, and contractual documents produced by the Engineer, which are 
hereinafter collectively referred to as "plans", the Engineer will certify that: 
 

1) The plans shall be developed in accordance with sound engineering and design principles, and with 
generally accepted professional standards. 

2) The plans shall be consistent with the intent of the Project as defined in Exhibit A and Exhibit B of 
this Agreement. 

3) The Project Engineer shall perform a review of the certification requirements listed in Section B.2. 
of this Exhibit, Construction Certification, and make a determination as to their applicability to this 
Project. 

4) Development of the plans shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, zoning and permitting 
requirements, public notice requirements, and other similar regulations. 
 

c. Inspection and Approval.  The Agency assures that: 
 

1) The Agency will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site 
throughout the Project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules 
approved by the Department, as applicable, for the Project. 

2) The Agency assures that it will allow the Department to inspect the work and that it will provide any 
cost and progress reporting, as may be required by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will take the appropriate corrective action necessary, as required by the 
Department, for work which does not conform to the Department standards. 
 

d. Pavement Preventive Maintenance.  The Agency assures that for a project involving replacement or 
reconstruction of runway or taxiway pavement it has implemented an airport pavement maintenance 
management program and that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, 
reconstructed, or repaired with state financial assistance at the airport. 
 
 
 

 



35 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

24. Noise Mitigation Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Government Agreements. For all noise compatibility projects that are carried out by another unit of local 
government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the Agency, the Agency 
shall enter into an agreement with that government body. 
 

1) The local agreement, satisfactory to the Department, shall obligate the unit of local government to 
the same terms and assurances that apply to the Agency. 

2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce the local agreement if there is substantial non-
compliance with the terms of the local agreement. 

 
b. Private Agreements. For noise compatibility projects on privately owned property: 

 
1) The Agency shall enter into an agreement with the owner of that property to exclude future actions 

against the airport. 
2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce such agreement if there is substantial non-

compliance with the terms of the agreement. 
 
 

- End of Exhibit E - 



36 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Contract Payment Requirements 

Florida Department of Financial Services, Reference Guide for State Expenditures  

Cost Reimbursement Contracts 

 

Invoices for cost reimbursement contracts must be supported by an itemized listing of expenditures by category (salary, 

travel, expenses, etc.).  Supporting documentation shall be submitted for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed indicating that the item has been paid.  Documentation for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed must indicate that the item has been paid. Check numbers may be provided in lieu of copies of actual checks. 

Each piece of documentation should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only expenditures for categories in the approved 

agreement budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to 

the services being provided. 

 

Listed below are types and examples of supporting documentation for cost reimbursement agreements: 

 

(1)  Salaries: A payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted. The payroll register should show 

gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and net pay. If an individual for whom reimbursement is 

being claimed is paid by the hour, a document reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be 

acceptable. 

 

(2)  Fringe Benefits: Fringe Benefits should be supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of the 

employee (e.g., insurance premiums paid).  If the contract specifically states that fringe benefits will be based 

on a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe benefits, then the calculation for the fringe benefits 

amount must be shown. 

 

Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies of checks for fringe 

benefits. 

 

(3)  Travel: Reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, which 

includes submission of the claim on the approved State travel voucher or electronic means. 

 

(4)  Other direct costs: Reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts. If nonexpendable property 

is purchased using State funds, the contract should include a provision for the transfer of the property to the 

State when services are terminated.  Documentation must be provided to show compliance with Department of 

Management Services Rule 60A-1.017, Florida Administrative Code, regarding the requirements for contracts 

which include services and that provide for the contractor to purchase tangible personal property as defined in 

Section 273.02, Florida Statutes, for subsequent transfer to the State. 

 

(5)  In-house charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be 

reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged. The rates must be reasonable. 

 

(6)  Indirect costs: If the contract specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the 

calculation should be shown. 

 

Contracts between state agencies, and/or contracts between universities may submit alternative documentation 

to substantiate the reimbursement request that may be in the form of FLAIR reports or other detailed reports.  

 

The Florida Department of Financial Services, online Reference Guide for State Expenditures can be found at this web 

address https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf. 

 

 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


37 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT G 
 

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

 

 THE STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 

 

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:~ 

 

Awarding Agency: Florida Department of Transportation 

State Project Title: Aviation Grant Program 

CSFA Number: 55.004 

*Award Amount: $500,000 

 

*The award amount may change with amendments 
 

Specific project information for CSFA Number 55.004 is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx 

 

 

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS 

AGREEMENT: 

 

State Project Compliance Requirements for CSFA Number 55.004 are provided at: 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx 

 

The State Projects Compliance Supplement is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx  

 

 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx


 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Clara Bennett, Executive Director  

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE: Public Transportation Grant Agreement – Expand Airport Road and Utility 
Corridor – Phase 2 

 
AGENDA ITEM – IX – E  
 
The Florida Department of Transportation has offered a Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement (PTGA) for Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor – Phase 2 of the Airport 
Road improvements project.  
 
Representative project elements include the regrading and resurfacing of existing Airport 
Road, construction of new road pavements, and the relocation of the overhead Florida 
Power & Light power lines and streetlights. The scope of work includes planning, 
programming, design, construction and administrative support services associated with 
the project.  
 
This is a new grant, requested by Airport Management after the start of the new Fiscal 
Year. The estimated total cost of this phase of the overall project is $625,000. The PTGA 
is for 80% if the eligible project costs not to exceed $500,000.  The Airport Authority’s 
share totaling 20% or $125,000 is available in the budget. 
 
Airport Management recommends approval of Resolution Number 05-17-20 authorizing 
a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of 
Transportation for Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor – Phase 2 of the Airport Road 
improvements project.  
 



BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 05-17-20 
 

A Resolution of the Boca Raton Airport Authority approving a Public Transportation 
Grant Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to 

Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor – Phase 2 
 

WHEREAS, The Boca Raton Airport Authority Act, Laws of Florida, provides that the Boca 
Raton Airport Authority (the “Authority”) shall have jurisdiction over the operation, maintenance 
of, and improvements to the Boca Raton Airport (the “Airport”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to provide ground transportation and access improvements to 
various existing facilities throughout the Airport and to construct improvements; 
 
WHEREAS, this project will allow for replacement of aged lighting poles, fixtures and signage 
systems to preserve the safe movement of vehicles and pedestrians traversing this area; 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into a Public Transportation Grant Agreement with 
the State of Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”) for Financial Project No. 437978-2-
94-01 (the “Agreement”) to Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor – Phase 2 (the “Project”), 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, in order to initiate this project; 
 
WHEREAS, under the Agreement, FDOT’s total participation is limited to $500,000, or up to 
80% of eligible project costs, and the Authority’s participation is limited to $125,000, or up to 
20% of eligible project costs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
BOCA RATON, FLORIDA, IN PUBLIC MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, THIS 20th DAY OF 
MAY 2020, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as the legislative intent of the 
Authority. 

 
2. The Authority hereby approves the Grant Agreement and authorizes the Chair or 

Vice-Chair to execute the agreement on its behalf.  
 
3. The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director and Airport Legal Counsel 

to do all things necessary or prudent to effectuate the intent of this Resolution 
Number 05-17-20. 

 
4. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Boca Raton Airport Authority is hereby authorized 

to execute this Resolution Number 05-17-20. 
 
ADOPTED by the Boca Raton Airport Authority, this 20th day of May 2020. 

ATTEST:      BOCA RATON AIRPORT AUTHORITY: 

              
James R. Nau                                                           Melvin Pollack  
Secretary & Treasurer                                             Chair 



1 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

  
Financial Project Number(s): 
(item-segment-phase-sequence) Fund(s):  DPTO FLAIR Category:  088719   

 437978-2-94-01  Work Activity Code/Function:  215 Object Code:  751000   

       Federal Number/Federal Award 
Identification Number (FAIN) – Transit only: 

 
 N/A 

Org. Code:  55042010429  

       Vendor Number:  VF592205856001   

  Contract Number:      Federal Award Date:  N/A     

  CFDA Number:  N/A Agency DUNS Number:          

  CFDA Title: N/A     

 CSFA Number: 55.004    

 CSFA Title: Aviation Grant Program    

      

 
THIS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into                                                 
_                              __           _, by and between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, 
(“Department”), and Boca Raton Airport Authority, (“Agency”). The Department and the Agency are sometimes 
referred to in this Agreement as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from joint participation on the 

Project, the Parties agree to the following: 

 
1. Authority. The Agency, by Resolution or other form of official authorization, a copy of which is attached 

as Exhibit “D”, Agency Resolution and made a part of this Agreement, has authorized its officers to 
execute this Agreement on its behalf.  The Department has the authority pursuant to Section(s) 332.007, 
Florida Statutes, to enter into this Agreement. 

 
2. Purpose of Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the Department’s participation 

in Expand Airport Road and Utility Cooridor - Phase 2, as further described in Exhibit "A", Project 
Description and Responsibilities, attached and incorporated into this Agreement (“Project”), to provide 
Department financial assistance to the Agency, state the terms and conditions upon which Department 
funds will be provided, and to set forth the manner in which the Project will be undertaken and 
completed. 

 
3. Program Area. For identification purposes only, this Agreement is implemented as part of the Department 

program area selected below (select all programs that apply): 
 

  X Aviation   
      Seaports     

    Transit 
      Intermodal     
               Rail Crossing Closure 

    Match to Direct Federal Funding (Aviation or Transit) 
            (Note: Section 15 and Exhibit G do not apply to federally matched funding) 
    Other     

 
4. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement: 

 
 X Exhibit A: Project Description and Responsibilities  
 X Exhibit B: Schedule of Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit B1: Deferred Reimbursement Financial Provisions 
     *Exhibit B2: Advance Payment Financial Provisions  
 X *Exhibit C: Terms and Conditions of Construction   
 X Exhibit D: Agency Resolution 
 X Exhibit E: Program Specific Terms and Conditions 
 X Exhibit F: Contract Payment Requirements 
 X *Exhibit G: Audit Requirements for Awards of State Financial Assistance 
     *Exhibit H: Audit Requirements for Awards of Federal Financial Assistance  



2 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

     *Additional Exhibit(s):     
 
            *Indicates that the Exhibit is only attached and incorporated if applicable box is selected. 
 
5. Time. Unless specified otherwise, all references to “days” within this Agreement refer to calendar days. 

 
6. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence upon full execution by both Parties (“Effective 

Date”) and continue through December 30, 2022. If the Agency does not complete the Project within this 
time period, this Agreement will expire unless an extension of the time period is requested by the Agency 
and granted in writing by the Department prior to the expiration of this Agreement. Expiration of this 
Agreement will be considered termination of the Project.  The cost of any work performed prior to the 
Effective Date or after the expiration date of this Agreement will not be reimbursed by the Department. 
 

a.      If this box is checked the following provision applies: 
 
Unless terminated earlier, work on the Project shall commence no later than the     day of    ,     
or within     days of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed for the construction phase of the 
Project (if the Project involves construction), whichever date is earlier. The Department shall 
have the option to immediately terminate this Agreement should the Agency fail to meet the 
above-required dates. 

 
7. Amendments, Extensions, and Assignment. This Agreement may be amended or extended upon 

mutual written agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement shall not be renewed. This Agreement shall not 
be assigned, transferred, or otherwise encumbered by the Agency under any circumstances without the 
prior written consent of the Department. 
 

8. Termination or Suspension of Project. The Department may, by written notice to the Agency, suspend 
any or all of the Department’s obligations under this Agreement for the Agency’s failure to comply with 
applicable law or the terms of this Agreement until such time as the event or condition resulting in such 
suspension has ceased or been corrected.  
 

a. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Department intends to terminate 
the Agreement, the Department shall notify the Agency of such termination in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the termination of the Agreement, with instructions to the effective date 
of termination or specify the stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. 

 
b. The Parties to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement when its continuation would not 

produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds. In this event, 
the Parties shall agree upon the termination conditions. 

 
c. If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, the Agency shall be paid 

only for that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. Such payment, 
however, may not exceed the equivalent percentage of the Department’s maximum financial 
assistance. If any portion of the Project is located on the Department’s right-of-way, then all 
work in progress on the Department right-of-way will become the property of the Department 
and will be turned over promptly by the Agency. 

 
d. In the event the Agency fails to perform or honor the requirements and provisions of this 

Agreement, the Agency shall promptly refund in full to the Department within thirty (30) days 
of the termination of the Agreement any funds that were determined by the Department to 
have been expended in violation of the Agreement. 

 
e. The Department reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement for failure by the 

Agency to comply with the Public Records provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 
 
9. Project Cost:  



3 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
a. The estimated total cost of the Project is $625,000. This amount is based upon Exhibit "B", 

Schedule of Financial Assistance. The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated 
amounts between deliverables within a grant phase, as outlined in Exhibit "B", Schedule of 
Financial Assistance, may be modified by mutual written agreement of the Parties and does 
not require execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant Agreement. 
The timeline for deliverables and distribution of estimated amounts between grant phases 
requires an amendment executed by both Parties in the same form as this Agreement. 
 

b. The Department agrees to participate in the Project cost up to the maximum amount of 
$500,000 and, the Department’s participation in the Project shall not exceed 80.00% of the 
total eligible cost of the Project, and as more fully described in Exhibit “B’’, Schedule of 
Financial Assistance. The Agency agrees to bear all expenses in excess of the amount of 
the Department’s participation and any cost overruns or deficits involved. 

 
10. Compensation and Payment: 
 

a. Eligible Cost. The Department shall reimburse the Agency for allowable costs incurred as 
described in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in 
Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance. 
 

b. Deliverables. The Agency shall provide quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of 
deliverables.  Each deliverable must specify the required minimum level of service to be 
performed and the criteria for evaluating successful completion.  The Project and the 
quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable units of deliverables are described more fully in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities. Modifications to the deliverables in 
Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities requires a formal written 
amendment. 

 
c. Invoicing. Invoices shall be submitted no more often than monthly by the Agency in detail 

sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit, based on the quantifiable, measurable, and 
verifiable deliverables as established in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities. Deliverables and costs incurred must be received and approved by the 
Department prior to reimbursement. Requests for reimbursement by the Agency shall include 
an invoice, progress report, and supporting documentation for the deliverables being billed 
that are acceptable to the Department. The Agency shall use the format for the invoice and 
progress report that is approved by the Department. 

 
d. Supporting Documentation. Supporting documentation must establish that the deliverables 

were received and accepted in writing by the Agency and must also establish that the required 
minimum standards or level of service to be performed based on the criteria for evaluating 
successful completion as specified in Exhibit “A”, Project Description and 
Responsibilities has been met. All costs invoiced shall be supported by properly executed 
payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in proper detail the nature 
and propriety of charges as described in Exhibit “F”, Contract Payment Requirements. 

 
e. Travel Expenses. The selected provision below is controlling regarding travel expenses: 

 
X Travel expenses are NOT eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement.  
 
    Travel expenses ARE eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement. Bills for travel 
expenses specifically authorized in this Agreement shall be submitted on the Department’s 
Contractor Travel Form No. 300-000-06 and will be paid in accordance with Section 112.061, 
Florida Statutes, and the most current version of the Department’s Disbursement Handbook 
for Employees and Managers. 

 



4 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

f. Financial Consequences. Payment shall be made only after receipt and approval of 
deliverables and costs incurred unless advance payments are authorized by the Chief 
Financial Officer of the State of Florida under Chapters 215 and 216, Florida Statutes, or the 
Department’s Comptroller under Section 334.044(29), Florida Statutes.  If the Department 
determines that the performance of the Agency is unsatisfactory, the Department shall notify 
the Agency of the deficiency to be corrected, which correction shall be made within a time-
frame to be specified by the Department. The Agency shall, within thirty (30) days after notice 
from the Department, provide the Department with a corrective action plan describing how the 
Agency will address all issues of contract non-performance, unacceptable performance, 
failure to meet the minimum performance levels, deliverable deficiencies, or contract non-
compliance.  If the corrective action plan is unacceptable to the Department, the Agency will 
not be reimbursed.  If the deficiency is subsequently resolved, the Agency may bill the 
Department for the amount that was previously not reimbursed during the next billing period.  If 
the Agency is unable to resolve the deficiency, the funds shall be forfeited at the end of the 
Agreement’s term. 
 

g. Invoice Processing. An Agency receiving financial assistance from the Department should 
be aware of the following time frames.  Inspection or verification and approval of deliverables 
shall take no longer than 20 days from the Department’s receipt of the invoice.  The 
Department has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of 
Financial Services.  The 20 days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is 
received or the deliverables are received, inspected or verified, and approved.  

 
If a payment is not available within 40 days, a separate interest penalty at a rate as established 
pursuant to Section 55.03(1), Florida Statutes, will be due and payable, in addition to the 
invoice amount, to the Agency.  Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be 
enforced unless the Agency requests payment.  Invoices that have to be returned to an Agency 
because of Agency preparation errors will result in a delay in the payment.  The invoice 
payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to the 
Department. 
 
A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services.  
The duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for Agency who may be 
experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor 
Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516. 

 
h. Records Retention. The Agency shall maintain an accounting system or separate accounts 

to ensure funds and projects are tracked separately. Records of costs incurred under the terms 
of this Agreement shall be maintained and made available upon request to the Department at 
all times during the period of this Agreement and for five years after final payment is made.  
Copies of these records shall be furnished to the Department upon request.  Records of costs 
incurred include the Agency's general accounting records and the Project records, together 
with supporting documents and records, of the Contractor and all subcontractors performing 
work on the Project, and all other records of the Contractor and subcontractors considered 
necessary by the Department for a proper audit of costs. 
 

i. Progress Reports. Upon request, the Agency agrees to provide progress reports to the 
Department in the standard format used by the Department and at intervals established by the 
Department. The Department will be entitled at all times to be advised, at its request, as to the 
status of the Project and of details thereof. 

 
j. Submission of Other Documents. The Agency shall submit to the Department such data, 

reports, records, contracts, and other documents relating to the Project as the Department 
may require as listed in Exhibit "E", Program Specific Terms and Conditions attached to 
and incorporated into this Agreement. 

 



5 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

k. Offsets for Claims. If, after Project completion, any claim is made by the Department resulting 
from an audit or for work or services performed pursuant to this Agreement, the Department 
may offset such amount from payments due for work or services done under any agreement 
that it has with the Agency owing such amount if, upon written demand, payment of the amount 
is not made within 60 days to the Department.  Offsetting any amount pursuant to this 
paragraph shall not be considered a breach of contract by the Department. 

 
l. Final Invoice. The Agency must submit the final invoice on the Project to the Department 

within 120 days after the completion of the Project.  Invoices submitted after the 120-day time 
period may not be paid. 
 

m. Department’s Performance and Payment Contingent Upon Annual Appropriation by the 
Legislature. The Department’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature.  If the Department's funding for 
this Project is in multiple fiscal years, a notice of availability of funds from the Department’s 
project manager must be received prior to costs being incurred by the Agency.  See Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance for funding levels by fiscal year.  Project costs 
utilizing any fiscal year funds are not eligible for reimbursement if incurred prior to funds 
approval being received.  The Department will notify the Agency, in writing, when funds are 
available. 

 
n. Limits on Contracts Exceeding $25,000 and Term more than 1 Year. In the event this 

Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period of more than one year, the 
provisions of Section 339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are hereby incorporated:  

 
"The Department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any 
liability, or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure 
of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure 
during such fiscal year.  Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of 
this subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid on such contract.  
The Department shall require a statement from the comptroller of the 
Department that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract 
or other binding commitment of funds.  Nothing herein contained shall prevent 
the making of contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so 
made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or 
agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be 
incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an 
amount in excess of $25,000 and which have a term for a period of more than 
1 year." 

 

o. Agency Obligation to Refund Department. Any Project funds made available by the 
Department pursuant to this Agreement that are determined by the Department to have been 
expended by the Agency in violation of this Agreement or any other applicable law or 
regulation shall be promptly refunded in full to the Department. Acceptance by the Department 
of any documentation or certifications, mandatory or otherwise permitted, that the Agency files 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Department's rights as the funding agency to verify all 
information at a later date by audit or investigation. 

 
p. Non-Eligible Costs. In determining the amount of the payment, the Department will exclude 

all Project costs incurred by the Agency prior to the execution of this Agreement, costs incurred 
after the expiration of the Agreement, costs that are not provided for in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities, and as set forth in Exhibit “B”, Schedule of Financial 
Assistance, costs agreed to be borne by the Agency or its contractors and subcontractors for 
not meeting the Project commencement and final invoice time lines, and costs attributable to 
goods or services received under a contract or other arrangement that has not been approved 



6 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

in writing by the Department. Specific unallowable costs may be listed in Exhibit “A”, Project 
Description and Responsibilities. 

 
11. General Requirements. The Agency shall complete the Project with all practical dispatch in a sound, 

economical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the provisions in this Agreement and all 
applicable laws.  

 
a. Necessary Permits Certification. The Agency shall certify to the Department that the 

Agency’s design consultant and/or construction contractor has secured the necessary permits.   
 

b. Right-of-Way Certification. If the Project involves construction, then the Agency shall provide 
to the Department certification and a copy of appropriate documentation substantiating that all 
required right-of-way necessary for the Project has been obtained. Certification is required 
prior to authorization for advertisement for or solicitation of bids for construction of the Project, 
even if no right-of-way is required. 
 

c. Notification Requirements When Performing Construction on Department’s Right-of-
Way. In the event the cost of the Project is greater than $250,000.00, and the Project involves 
construction on the Department’s right-of-way, the Agency shall provide the Department with 
written notification of either its intent to: 
 

i. Require the construction work of the Project that is on the Department’s right-of-way 
to be performed by a Department prequalified contractor, or 

 
ii. Construct the Project utilizing existing Agency employees, if the Agency can 

complete said Project within the time frame set forth in this Agreement. 
 

d.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize its own forces and the following 
provision applies: Use of Agency Workforce. In the event the Agency proceeds with any 
phase of the Project utilizing its own forces, the Agency will only be reimbursed for direct costs 
(this excludes general overhead). 
 

e.     If this box is checked, then the Agency is permitted to utilize Indirect Costs: 
Reimbursement for Indirect Program Expenses (select one): 
 

i.     Agency has selected to seek reimbursement from the Department for actual indirect 
expenses (no rate).  

 
ii.     Agency has selected to apply a de minimus rate of 10% to modified total direct 

costs.  Note:  The de minimus rate is available only to entities that have never had a 
negotiated indirect cost rate. When selected, the de minimus rate must be used 
consistently for all federal awards until such time the agency chooses to negotiate a 
rate. A cost policy statement and de minimis certification form must be submitted to 
the Department for review and approval.  

 
iii.      Agency has selected to apply a state or federally approved indirect cost rate.  A 

federally approved rate agreement or indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) must be 
submitted annually.    

 
f. Agency Compliance with Laws, Rules, and Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards. The 

Agency shall comply and require its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations 
applicable to this Project. 
 

g. Claims and Requests for Additional Work. The Agency shall have the sole responsibility 
for resolving claims and requests for additional work for the Project. The Agency will make 



7 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

best efforts to obtain the Department’s input in its decisions. The Department is not obligated 
to reimburse for claims or requests for additional work. 

 
12. Contracts of the Agency: 

 
a. Approval of Third Party Contracts. The Department specifically reserves the right to review 

and approve any and all third party contracts with respect to the Project before the Agency 
executes or obligates itself in any manner requiring the disbursement of Department funds, 
including consultant and purchase of commodities contracts, or amendments thereto. If the 
Department chooses to review and approve third party contracts for this Project and the 
Agency fails to obtain such approval, that shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the 
Department. The Department specifically reserves unto itself the right to review the 
qualifications of any consultant or contractor and to approve or disapprove the employment of 
the same. If Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds are used in the Project, the 
Department must exercise the right to third party contract review. 
 

b. Procurement of Commodities or Contractual Services. It is understood and agreed by the 
Parties hereto that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves the purchase of commodities or contractual services where purchases or 
costs exceed the Threshold Amount for CATEGORY TWO per Section 287.017, Florida 
Statutes, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with the provisions of Section 287.057, 
Florida Statutes. The Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department that the 
Agency’s purchase of commodities or contractual services has been accomplished in 
compliance with Section 287.057, Florida Statutes. It shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Agency to ensure that any obligations made in accordance with this Section comply with the 
current threshold limits. Contracts, purchase orders, task orders, construction change orders, 
or any other agreement that would result in exceeding the current budget contained in Exhibit 
"B", Schedule of Financial Assistance, or that is not consistent with the Project description 
and scope of services contained in Exhibit "A", Project Description and Responsibilities 
must be approved by the Department prior to Agency execution. Failure to obtain such 
approval, and subsequent execution of an amendment to the Agreement if required, shall be 
sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department, in accordance with this Agreement. 
 

c. Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act. It is understood and agreed by the Parties to 
this Agreement that participation by the Department in a project with the Agency, where said 
project involves a consultant contract for professional services, is contingent on the Agency’s 
full compliance with provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes, Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. In all cases, the Agency’s Authorized Official shall certify to the Department 
that selection has been accomplished in compliance with the Consultants’ Competitive 
Negotiation Act. 

 
d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy and Obligation. It is the policy of the 

Department that DBEs, as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended, shall have the 
opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with 
Department funds under this Agreement.  The DBE requirements of applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations apply to this Agreement. The Agency and its contractors agree to 
ensure that DBEs have the opportunity to participate in the performance of this Agreement.  
In this regard, all recipients and contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in 
accordance with   applicable federal and state laws and regulations to ensure that the DBEs 
have the opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.  The Agency and its contractors 
and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in 
the award and performance of contracts, entered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
13. Maintenance Obligations. In the event the Project includes construction or the acquisition of commodities 

then the following provisions are incorporated into this Agreement: 
 



8 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

a. The Agency agrees to accept all future maintenance and other attendant costs occurring after 
completion of the Project for all improvements constructed or commodities acquired as part of 
the Project. The terms of this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

14. Sale, Transfer, or Disposal of Department-funded Property: 
 

a. The Agency will not sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title or other 
interests in real property, facilities, or equipment funded in any part by the Department under 
this Agreement without prior written approval by the Department. 
 

b. If a sale, transfer, or disposal by the Agency of all or a portion of Department-funded real 
property, facilities, or equipment is approved by the Department, the following provisions will 
apply: 
 

i. The Agency shall reimburse the Department a proportional amount of the proceeds 
of the sale of any Department-funded property. 
 

ii. The proportional amount shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the 
Department funding of the development or acquisition of the property multiplied 
against the sale amount, and shall be remitted to the Department within ninety (90) 
days of closing of sale. 
 

iii. Sale of property developed or acquired with Department funds shall be at market 
value as determined by appraisal or public bidding process, and the contract and 
process for sale must be approved in advance by the Department. 
 

iv. If any portion of the proceeds from the sale to the Agency are non-cash 
considerations, reimbursement to the Department shall include a proportional 
amount based on the value of the non-cash considerations. 
 

c. The terms of provisions “a” and “b” above shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  

i. The terms shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of facilities 
developed, equipment acquired, or Project items installed within a facility, but shall 
not exceed twenty (20) years from the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

ii. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms with respect to real property 
acquired with Department funds.  

 
15. Single Audit. The administration of Federal or State resources awarded through the Department to the 

Agency by this Agreement may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department. The following 
requirements do not limit the authority of the Department to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional 
audits or evaluations of Federal awards or State financial assistance or limit the authority of any state 
agency inspector general, the State of Florida Auditor General, or any other state official. The Agency shall 
comply with all audit and audit reporting requirements as specified below. 

 
Federal Funded: 
 

a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements, monitoring procedures may include but not be limited to on-site visits by 
Department staff and/or other procedures, including reviewing any required performance and 
financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective action, and issuing management decisions 
on weaknesses found through audits when those findings pertain to Federal awards provided 
through the Department by this Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency 
agrees to comply and cooperate fully with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed 
appropriate by the Department. The Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any 



9 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Department, State of 
Florida Chief Financial Officer (CFO), or State of Florida Auditor General. 
 

b. The Agency, a non-Federal entity as defined by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, as a subrecipient of a Federal award awarded by the Department through this 
Agreement, is subject to the following requirements: 
 

i. In the event the Agency expends a total amount of Federal awards equal to or in 
excess of the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the Agency must have a Federal single or program-specific audit 
conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F – Audit Requirements. Exhibit “H”, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
Federal Financial Assistance, to this Agreement provides the required Federal 
award identification information needed by the Agency to further comply with the 
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. In determining 
Federal awards expended in a fiscal year, the Agency must consider all sources of 
Federal awards based on when the activity related to the Federal award occurs, 
including the Federal award provided through the Department by this Agreement. The 
determination of amounts of Federal awards expended should be in accordance with 
the guidelines established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. An 
audit conducted by the State of Florida Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, will meet the 
requirements of this part. 
 

ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall fulfill the requirements 
relative to the auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – 
Audit Requirements. 
 

iii. In the event the Agency expends less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, in Federal awards, the Agency is exempt from 
Federal audit requirements for that fiscal year. However, the Agency must provide a 
single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency expends 
less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, in Federal awards in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit 
Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-Federal resources (i.e., the 
cost of such an audit must be paid from the Agency’s resources obtained from other 
than Federal entities). 
 

iv. The Agency must electronically submit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) at 
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ the audit reporting package as required by 2 
CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, within the earlier of 30 calendar days 
after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
The FAC is the repository of record for audits required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F 
– Audit Requirements. However, the Department requires a copy of the audit reporting 
package also be submitted to FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us within the earlier of 
30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end 
of the audit period as required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. 
 

v. Within six months of acceptance of the audit report by the FAC, the Department will 
review the Agency’s audit reporting package, including corrective action plans and 
management letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and 
appropriate action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the Federal award 
provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails to have an 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


10 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements, 
the Department may impose additional conditions to remedy noncompliance. If the 
Department determines that noncompliance cannot be remedied by imposing 
additional conditions, the Department may take appropriate actions to enforce 
compliance, which actions may include but not be limited to the following: 
 

1. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 
the Agency or more severe enforcement action by the Department; 

2. Disallow (deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all 
or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance; 

3. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award; 
4. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 C.F.R. 

Part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations (or in the case of the 
Department, recommend such a proceeding be initiated by the Federal 
awarding agency); 

5. Withhold further Federal awards for the Project or program; 
6. Take other remedies that may be legally available. 

 
vi. As a condition of receiving this Federal award, the Agency shall permit the Department 

or its designee, the CFO, or State of Florida Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, and 
project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals, 
or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is resolved. 
 

vii. The Department’s contact information for requirements under this part is as follows: 
 

Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
605 Suwannee Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 

 
State Funded: 

 
a. In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, 

monitoring procedures to monitor the Agency’s use of state financial assistance may include 
but not be limited to on-site visits by Department staff and/or other procedures, including 
reviewing any required performance and financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective 
action, and issuing management decisions on weaknesses found through audits when those 
findings pertain to state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this 
Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency agrees to comply and cooperate fully 
with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department. The 
Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, 
or audits deemed necessary by the Department, the Department of Financial Services (DFS), 
or State of Florida Auditor General. 

 
b. The Agency, a “nonstate entity” as defined by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, as a recipient 

of state financial assistance awarded by the Department through this Agreement, is subject to 
the following requirements: 

   
i. In the event the Agency meets the audit threshold requirements established by 

Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency must have a State single or project-
specific audit conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes; applicable rules of the Department of Financial Services; and 
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. Exhibit “G”, Audit Requirements for 
Awards of State Financial Assistance, to this Agreement indicates state financial 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us


11 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

assistance awarded through the Department by this Agreement needed by the 
Agency to further comply with the requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. 
In determining the state financial assistance expended in a fiscal year, the Agency 
shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial 
assistance received from the Department by this Agreement, other state agencies, 
and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal direct 
or pass-through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for Federal 
program matching requirements. 

 
ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall ensure that the audit 

complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes 
submission of a financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(e), 
Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 
(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

 
iii. In the event the Agency does not meet the audit threshold requirements established 

by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency is exempt for such fiscal year from 
the state single audit requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. However, the 
Agency must provide a single audit exemption statement to the Department at 
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the 
Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency does 
not meet the audit threshold requirements established by Section 215.97, Florida 
Statutes, in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the Agency’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Agency’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

 
iv. In accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 

(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, copies of 
financial reporting packages required by this Agreement shall be submitted to: 

   
  Florida Department of Transportation 
  Office of Comptroller, MS 24 
  605 Suwannee Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0405 
  FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us 
   
  And 
 

 State of Florida Auditor General 
 Local Government Audits/342 
 111 West Madison Street, Room 401 
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1450 
 Email: flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us 

 
v. Any copies of financial reporting packages, reports, or other information required to 

be submitted to the Department shall be submitted timely in accordance with Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as 
applicable. 

 
vi. The Agency, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for 

audits done in accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should 
indicate the date the reporting package was delivered to the Agency in 
correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us


12 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

 
vii. Upon receipt, and within six months, the Department will review the Agency’s 

financial reporting package, including corrective action plans and management 
letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and appropriate 
corrective action on all deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the state financial 
assistance provided through the Department by this Agreement. If the Agency fails 
to have an audit conducted consistent with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the 
Department may take appropriate corrective action to enforce compliance. 

 
viii. As a condition of receiving state financial assistance, the Agency shall permit the 

Department or its designee, DFS, or the Auditor General access to the Agency’s 
records, including financial statements, the independent auditor’s working papers, 
and project records as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, 
appeals, or litigation shall be retained until the action is complete or the dispute is 
resolved. 

 

c. The Agency shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued and shall allow 
the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General access to such 
records upon request. The Agency shall ensure that the audit working papers are made 
available to the Department or its designee, DFS, or State of Florida Auditor General upon 
request for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in 
writing by the Department. 

 

16. Notices and Approvals. Notices and approvals referenced in this Agreement must be obtained in writing 
from the Parties’ respective Administrators or their designees. 
 

17. Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls and Labor Provisions: 
 

a. Convicted Vendor List. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor 
list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases 
of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not 
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 
287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of 
being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 

b. Discriminatory Vendor List. In accordance with Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, an entity 
or affiliate who has been placed on the Discriminatory Vendor List, kept by the Florida 
Department of Management Services, may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or 
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity. 

 
c. Non-Responsible Contractors. An entity or affiliate who has had its Certificate of 

Qualification suspended, revoked, denied, or have further been determined by the Department 
to be a non-responsible contractor, may not submit a bid or perform work for the construction 
or repair of a public building or public work on a contract with the Agency. 

 



13 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

d. Prohibition on Using Funds for Lobbying. No funds received pursuant to this Agreement 
may be expended for lobbying the Florida Legislature, judicial branch, or any state agency, in 
accordance with Section 216.347, Florida Statutes. 

 
e. Unauthorized Aliens. The Department shall consider the employment by any contractor of 

unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If 
the contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation will be cause for 
unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. 

 
f. Procurement of Construction Services. If the Project is procured pursuant to Chapter 255, 

Florida Statutes, for construction services and at the time of the competitive solicitation for the 
Project, 50 percent or more of the cost of the Project is to be paid from state-appropriated 
funds, then the Agency must comply with the requirements of Section 255.0991, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
g. E-Verify. The Agency shall: 

 

i. Utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the 
contract; and  
 

ii. Expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant 
to the state contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-
Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the 
subcontractor during the contract term. 

 
h. Design Services and Construction Engineering and Inspection Services.  If the Project 

is wholly or partially funded by the Department and administered by a local governmental 
entity, except for a seaport listed in Section 311.09, Florida Statutes, the entity performing 
design and construction engineering and inspection services may not be the same entity.  

 

18. Indemnification and Insurance: 
 

a. It is specifically agreed between the Parties executing this Agreement that it is not intended 
by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member 
thereof, a third party beneficiary under this Agreement, or to authorize anyone not a party to 
this Agreement to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the 
terms or provisions of this Agreement.  The Agency guarantees the payment of all just claims 
for materials, supplies, tools, or labor and other just claims against the Agency or any 
subcontractor, in connection with this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including the 
Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, 
but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, 
recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the Agency and persons employed or 
utilized by the Agency in the performance of this Agreement. This indemnification shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement.  Additionally, the Agency agrees to include the following 
indemnification in all contracts with contractors/subcontractors and 
consultants/subconsultants who perform work in connection with this Agreement: 
 
“To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Agency’s contractor/consultant shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the Agency and the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including 
the Department’s officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and costs, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the 
negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the contractor/consultant and 



14 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

persons employed or utilized by the contractor/consultant in the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
This indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement.” 

 

b. The Agency shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with Florida’s 
Workers’ Compensation law for all employees. If subletting any of the work, ensure that the 
subcontractor(s) and subconsultant(s) have Workers’ Compensation Insurance for their 
employees in accordance with Florida’s Workers’ Compensation law. If using “leased 
employees” or employees obtained through professional employer organizations (“PEO’s”), 
ensure that such employees are covered by Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the 
PEO’s or other leasing entities. Ensure that any equipment rental agreements that include 
operators or other personnel who are employees of independent contractors, sole 
proprietorships, or partners are covered by insurance required under Florida’s Workers' 
Compensation law. 
 

c. If the Agency elects to self-perform the Project, then the Agency may self-insure. If the Agency 
elects to hire a contractor or consultant to perform the Project, then the Agency shall carry, or 
cause its contractor or consultant to carry, Commercial General Liability insurance providing 
continuous coverage for all work or operations performed under this Agreement. Such 
insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the latest occurrence form edition 
of the standard Commercial General Liability Coverage Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed 
for use in the State of Florida. The Agency shall cause, or cause its contractor or consultant 
to cause, the Department to be made an Additional Insured as to such insurance. Such 
coverage shall be on an “occurrence” basis and shall include Products/Completed Operations 
coverage. The coverage afforded to the Department as an Additional Insured shall be primary 
as to any other available insurance and shall not be more restrictive than the coverage 
afforded to the Named Insured. The limits of coverage shall not be less than $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence and not less than a $5,000,000 annual general aggregate, inclusive of 
amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy. The limits of coverage described herein 
shall apply fully to the work or operations performed under the Agreement, and may not be 
shared with or diminished by claims unrelated to the Agreement. The policy/ies and coverage 
described herein may be subject to a deductible and such deductibles shall be paid by the 
Named Insured. No policy/ies or coverage described herein may contain or be subject to a 
Retention or a Self-Insured Retention unless the Agency is a state agency or subdivision of 
the State of Florida that elects to self-perform the Project. Prior to the execution of the 
Agreement, and at all renewal periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, the 
Department shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the 
coverage described herein. The Department shall be notified in writing within ten days of any 
cancellation, notice of cancellation, lapse, renewal, or proposed change to any policy or 
coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any policy/ies, 
coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to procure and 
maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights or defenses the 
Department may have. 
 

d. When the Agreement includes the construction of a railroad grade crossing, railroad overpass 
or underpass structure, or any other work or operations within the limits of the railroad right-
of-way, including any encroachments thereon from work or operations in the vicinity of the 
railroad right-of-way, the Agency shall, or cause its contractor to, in addition to the insurance 
coverage required above, procure and maintain Railroad Protective Liability Coverage (ISO 
Form CG 00 35) where the railroad is the Named Insured and where the limits are not less 
than $2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per 
occurrence, and with an annual aggregate limit of not less than $6,000,000. The railroad shall 
also be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the policy/ies procured 
pursuant to the paragraph above. Prior to the execution of the Agreement, and at all renewal 
periods which occur prior to final acceptance of the work, both the Department and the railroad 



15 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

shall be provided with an ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance reflecting the coverage 
described herein. The insurance described herein shall be maintained through final 
acceptance of the work. Both the Department and the railroad shall be notified in writing within 
ten days of any cancellation, notice of cancellation, renewal, or proposed change to any policy 
or coverage described herein. The Department’s approval or failure to disapprove any 
policy/ies, coverage, or ACORD Certificates shall not relieve or excuse any obligation to 
procure and maintain the insurance required herein, nor serve as a waiver of any rights the 
Department may have.  
 

e. When the Agreement involves work on or in the vicinity of utility-owned property or facilities, 
the utility shall be added along with the Department as an Additional Insured on the 
Commercial General Liability policy/ies procured above.  

 
19. Miscellaneous: 

 

a. Environmental Regulations. The Agency will be solely responsible for compliance with all 
applicable environmental regulations and for any liability arising from non-compliance with 
these regulations, and will reimburse the Department for any loss incurred in connection 
therewith.  

 
b. Non-Admission of Liability. In no event shall the making by the Department of any payment 

to the Agency constitute or be construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach of 
covenant or any default which may then exist on the part of the Agency and the making of 
such payment by the Department, while any such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way 
impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department with respect to such breach 
or default.  

 
c. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this 

Agreement shall not be affected.  In such an instance, the remainder would then continue to 
conform to the terms and requirements of applicable law.  

 
d. Agency not an agent of Department. The Agency and the Department agree that the 

Agency, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, and subconsultants are not 
agents of the Department as a result of this Agreement. 

 
e. Bonus or Commission. By execution of the Agreement, the Agency represents that it has 

not paid and, also agrees not to pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining 
an approval of its application for the financing hereunder.  

 
f. Non-Contravention of State Law. Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Agency to 

observe or enforce compliance with any provision or perform any act or do any other thing in 
contravention of any applicable state law. If any of the provisions of the Agreement violate any 
applicable state law, the Agency will at once notify the Department in writing so that 
appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Department and the Agency to 
the end that the Agency may proceed as soon as possible with the Project.  

 
g. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute the same 
Agreement.  A facsimile or electronic transmission of this Agreement with a signature on behalf 
of a party will be legal and binding on such party. 

 
h. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN). If the FAIN is not available prior to execution 

of the Agreement, the Department may unilaterally add the FAIN to the Agreement without 
approval of the Agency and without an amendment to the Agreement. If this occurs, an 



16 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Form 725-000-01 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

updated Agreement that includes the FAIN will be provided to the Agency and uploaded to the 
Department of Financial Services’ Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS). 

 
i. Inspector General Cooperation. The Agency agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), 

Florida Statutes, and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 
20.055(5), Florida Statutes.  

 
j. Law, Forum, and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Florida.  In the event of a conflict between any portion of the 
contract and Florida law, the laws of Florida shall prevail.  The Agency agrees to waive forum 
and venue and that the Department shall determine the forum and venue in which any dispute 
under this Agreement is decided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
 
AGENCY  Boca Raton Airport Authority 

  
 
By:  
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
By:  
 
Name:  Steven C Braun, P.E. 
 
Title:   Director of Transportation Development 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Legal Review: 
 
 
      
 
 

 



17 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description and Responsibilities  
 
 
A. Project Description (description of Agency’s project to provide context, description of project components funded 
via this Agreement (if not the entire project)): Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor - Phase 2 
 
B. Project Location (limits, city, county, map): Boca Raton Airport/Boca Raton, FL/Palm Beach 
 
C. Project Scope (allowable costs: describe project components, improvement type/service type, approximate 
timeline, project schedule, project size): Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor - Phase 2.  As required by 215.971, 
F.S., this scope of work includes but is not limited to consultant and design fees, survey and geotechnical costs, 
permitting, construction inspection and material testing costs, mobilization and demobilization, maintenance of traffic, 
erosion control, demolition, excavation/embankment, surface preparation, pavement, drainage, markings, signage, 
lighting and communications systems (conduits, fixtures, etc.), landscaping, fencing, access control, and security 
systems, including all materials, equipment, labor, and incidentals required to complete the roadway and utility corridor 
project. The Sponsor will comply with Aviation Program Assurances. 
 
D. Deliverable(s): Airport Road and Utility Corridor  
 
The project scope identifies the ultimate project deliverables. Deliverables for requisition, payment and invoice 
purposes will be the incremental progress made toward completion of project scope elements. Supporting 
documentation will be quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable, to allow for a determination of the amount of 
incremental progress that has been made, and provide evidence that the payment requested is commensurate with 
the accomplished incremental progress and costs incurred by the Agency. 
 
 
E. Unallowable Costs (including but not limited to):     
 
F. Transit Operating Grant Requirements (Transit Only): 
 
Transit Operating Grants billed as an operational subsidy will require an expenditure detail report from the Agency that 
matches the invoice period.  The expenditure detail, along with the progress report, will be the required deliverables for 
Transit Operating Grants. 



18 of 37



19 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Schedule of Financial Assistance 
 
 

FUNDS AWARDED TO THE AGENCY AND REQUIRED MATCHING FUNDS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT 
CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

A. Fund Type and Fiscal Year: 
 

Financial 
Management 

Number 

Fund 
Type 

FLAIR 
Category 

State 
Fiscal 
Year 

Object 
Code 

CSFA/ 
CFDA 

Number 

CSFA/CFDA Title or 
Funding Source 

Description 

Funding 
Amount 

437978-2-94-01 
 

437978-2-94-01 

DPTO 
 

LF 

088719 
 

088719 

2021 
 

2021 

751000 
 

751000 

55.004 
 

55.004 

Aviation Grant Program 
 

Aviation Grant Program 

$500,000 
 

$125,000 

 Total Financial Assistance $625,000 

 
 

B. Estimate of Project Costs by Grant Phase: 
 

Phases* State Local Federal Totals 
State 

% 
Local 

% 
Federal 

% 

Land Acquisition $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Planning $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Environmental/Design/Construction $500,000 $125,000 $0 $625,000 80.00 20.00 0.00 

Capital Equipment  $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Match to Direct Federal Funding $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Mobility Management 
(Transit Only) 

$0 $0 $0 $0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Totals $500,000 $125,000 $0 $625,000    

   *Shifting items between these grant phases requires execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant 
Agreement. 
 
 

 
BUDGET/COST ANALYSIS CERTIFICATION AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 216.3475, FLORIDA STATUTES: 
 
I certify that the cost for each line item budget category (grant phase) has been evaluated and determined to be 
allowable, reasonable, and necessary as required by Section 216.3475, Florida Statutes. Documentation is on file 
evidencing the methodology used and the conclusions reached. 
 
     

Department Grant Manager Name  
  

Signature                                     Date 
 

 



20 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

        TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION  
 

1. Design and Construction Standards and Required Approvals. 
 

a. The Agency understands that it is responsible for the preparation and certification of all design 
plans for the Project. The Agency shall hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the 
Project or, if applicable, the Agency shall require their design-build contractor or construction 
management contractor to hire a qualified consultant for the design phase of the Project. 

 
b. Execution of this Agreement by both Parties shall be deemed a Notice to Proceed to the 

Agency for the design phase or other non-construction phases of the Project. If the Project 
involves a construction phase, the Agency shall not begin the construction phase of the Project 
until the Department issues a Notice to Proceed for the construction phase. Prior to 
commencing the construction work described in this Agreement, the Agency shall request a 
Notice to Proceed from the Department’s Project Manager,      (email:    )  or from an appointed 
designee.   Any construction phase work performed prior to the execution of this required 
Notice to Proceed is not subject to reimbursement. 

 
c. The Agency will provide one (1) copy of the final design plans and specifications and final bid 

documents to the Department’s Project Manager prior to bidding or commencing construction 
of the Project.   

 
d. The Agency shall require the Agency’s contractor to post a payment and performance bond 

in accordance with applicable law(s). 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible to ensure that the construction work under this Agreement 
is performed in accordance with the approved construction documents, and that the 
construction work will meet all applicable Agency and Department standards.   

 
f. Upon completion of the work authorized by this Agreement, the Agency shall notify the 

Department in writing of the completion of construction of the Project; and for all design work 
that originally required certification by a Professional Engineer, this notification shall contain 
an Engineer’s Certification of Compliance, signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, the 
form of which is attached to this Exhibit. The certification shall state that work has been 
completed in compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications. If any 
deviations are found from the approved plans or specifications, the certification shall include 
a list of all deviations along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 
deviation. 

 

2. Construction on the Department’s Right of Way. If the Project involves construction on the 
Department’s right-of-way, then the following provisions apply to any and all portions of the Project 
that are constructed on the Department’s right-of-way: 
 

a. The Agency shall hire a qualified contractor using the Agency’s normal bid procedures to 
perform the construction work for the Project. The Agency must certify that the installation of 
the Project is completed by a Contractor prequalified by the Department as required by Section 
2 of the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (2016), as amended, unless 
otherwise approved by the Department in writing or the Contractor exhibits past project 
experience in the last five years that are comparable in scale, composition, and overall quality 
to the site characterized within the scope of services of this Project. 
 

b. Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) services will be provided by the Agency by hiring a 
Department prequalified consultant firm including one individual that has completed the 



21 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

Advanced Maintenance of Traffic Level Training, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department in writing. The CEI staff shall be present on the Project at all times that the 
contractor is working.  Administration of the CEI staff shall be under the responsible charge of 
a State of Florida Licensed Professional Engineer who shall provide the certification that all 
design and construction for the Project meets the minimum construction standards established 
by Department. The Department shall approve all CEI personnel.  The CEI firm shall not be 
the same firm as that of the Engineer of Record for the Project. The Department shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to perform independent assurance testing during the course 
of construction of the Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Department may issue a 
written waiver of the CEI requirement for portions of Projects involving the construction of bus 
shelters, stops, or pads.   
 

c. The Project shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the latest edition of the 
Department’s Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, the Department 
Design Standards, and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). The following 
guidelines shall apply as deemed appropriate by the Department: the Department Structures 
Design Manual, AASHTO Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges, AASHTO 
LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, Florida Design Manual, Manual for Uniform Minimum 
Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and Highways (the “Florida 
Green Book”), and the Department Traffic Engineering Manual. The Agency will be required 
to submit any construction plans required by the Department for review and approval prior to 
any work being commenced. Should any changes to the plans be required during construction 
of the Project, the Agency shall be required to notify the Department of the changes and 
receive approval from the Department prior to the changes being constructed. The Agency 
shall maintain the area of the Project at all times and coordinate any work needs of the 
Department during construction of the Project.  
 

d. The Agency shall notify the Department a minimum of 48 hours before beginning construction 
within Department right-of-way. The Agency shall notify the Department should construction 
be suspended for more than 5 working days.  The Department contact person for construction 
is    . 
 

e. The Agency shall be responsible for monitoring construction operations and the maintenance 
of traffic (MOT) throughout the course of the Project in accordance with the latest edition of 
the Department Standard Specifications, section 102. The Agency is responsible for the 
development of a MOT plan and making any changes to that plan as necessary. The MOT 
plan shall be in accordance with the latest version of the Department Design Standards, Index 
600 series. Any MOT plan developed by the Agency that deviates from the Department Design 
Standards must be signed and sealed by a professional engineer. MOT plans will require 
approval by the Department prior to implementation.  
 

f. The Agency shall be responsible for locating all existing utilities, both aerial and underground, 
and for ensuring that all utility locations be accurately documented on the construction plans. 
All utility conflicts shall be fully resolved directly with the applicable utility.  
 

g. The Agency will be responsible for obtaining all permits that may be required by other agencies 
or local governmental entities.  
 

h. It is hereby agreed by the Parties that this Agreement creates a permissive use only and all 
improvements located on the Department’s right-of-way resulting from this Agreement shall 
become the property of the Department. Neither the granting of the permission to use the 
Department right of way nor the placing of facilities upon the Department property shall 
operate to create or vest any property right to or in the Agency, except as may otherwise be 
provided in separate agreements. The Agency shall not acquire any right, title, interest or 
estate in Department right of way, of any nature or kind whatsoever, by virtue of the execution, 
operation, effect, or performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, the Agency’s 



22 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

use, occupancy or possession of Department right of way. The Parties agree that this 
Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant credit for any future transportation 
concurrency requirements pursuant to Chapter 163, F.S.  
 

i. The Agency shall not cause any liens or encumbrances to attach to any portion of the 
Department’s property, including but not limited to, the Department’s right-of-way. 
 

j. The Agency shall perform all required testing associated with the design and construction of 
the Project. Testing results shall be made available to the Department upon request. The 
Department shall have the right to perform its own independent testing during the course of 
the Project.  
 

k. The Agency shall exercise the rights granted herein and shall otherwise perform this 
Agreement in a good and workmanlike manner, with reasonable care, in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state, local, administrative, 
regulatory, safety and environmental laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies, procedures, 
guidelines, standards and permits, as the same may be constituted and amended from time 
to time, including, but not limited to, those of the Department, applicable Water Management 
District, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, the United States Army Corps of Engineers, the United States Coast 
Guard and local governmental entities.  
 

l. If the Department determines a condition exists which threatens the public’s safety, the 
Department may, at its discretion, cause construction operations to cease and immediately 
have any potential hazards removed from its right-of-way at the sole cost, expense, and effort 
of the Agency.  The Agency shall bear all construction delay costs incurred by the Department.  
 

m. The Agency shall be responsible to maintain and restore all features that might require 
relocation within the Department right-of-way.  
 

n. The Agency will be solely responsible for clean up or restoration required to correct any 
environmental or health hazards that may result from construction operations.  
 

o. The acceptance procedure will include a final “walk-through” by Agency and Department 
personnel.  Upon completion of construction, the Agency will be required to submit to the 
Department final as-built plans and an engineering certification that construction was 
completed in accordance to the plans. Submittal of the final as-built plans shall include one 
complete set of the signed and sealed plans on 11" X 17" plan sheets and an electronic copy 
prepared in Portable Document Format (PDF).  Prior to the termination of this Agreement, the 
Agency shall remove its presence, including, but not limited to, all of the Agency’s property, 
machinery, and equipment from Department right-of-way and shall restore those portions of 
Department right of way disturbed or otherwise altered by the Project to substantially the same 
condition that existed immediately prior to the commencement of the Project.  
 

p. If the Department determines that the Project is not completed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, the Department shall deliver written notification of such to the 
Agency. The Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Department’s 
written notice, or such other time as the Agency and the Department mutually agree to in 
writing, to complete the Project and provide the Department with written notice of the same 
(the “Notice of Completion”). If the Agency fails to timely deliver the Notice of Completion, or 
if it is determined that the Project is not properly completed after receipt of the Notice of 
Completion, the Department, within its discretion may: 1) provide the Agency with written 
authorization granting such additional time as the Department deems appropriate to correct 
the deficiency(ies); or 2) correct the deficiency(ies) at the Agency’s sole cost and expense, 
without Department liability to the Agency for any resulting loss or damage to property, 
including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment. If the Department elects to correct the 



23 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

deficiency(ies), the Department shall provide the Agency with an invoice for the costs incurred 
by the Department and the Agency shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of 
the invoice.  
 

q. The Agency shall implement best management practices for erosion and pollution control to 
prevent violation of state water quality standards. The Agency shall be responsible for the 
correction of any erosion, shoaling, or water quality problems that result from the construction 
of the Project. 
 

r. Portable Traffic Monitoring Site (PTMS) or a Telemetry Traffic Monitoring Site (TTMS) may 
exist within the vicinity of your proposed work.  It is the responsibility of the Agency to locate 
and avoid damage to these sites.  If a PTMS or TTMS is encountered during construction, the 
Department must be contacted immediately. 
 

s. During construction, highest priority must be given to pedestrian safety.  If permission is 
granted to temporarily close a sidewalk, it should be done with the express condition that an 
alternate route will be provided, and shall continuously maintain pedestrian features to meet 
Americans Disability Act (ADA) standards. 
 

t. Restricted hours of operation will be as follows, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department’s District Construction Engineer or designee (insert hours and days of the week 
for restricted operation):     
 

u. Lane closures on the state road system must be coordinated with the Public Information Office 
at least two weeks prior to the closure.  The contact information for the Department’s Public 
Information Office is: 
 
Insert District PIO contact info: 

    

 

Note: (Highlighted sections indicate need to confirm information with District Office or 

appropriate DOT person managing the Agreement) 

 
 

3. Engineer’s Certification of Compliance. The Agency shall complete and submit and if applicable 
Engineer’s Certification of Compliance to the Department upon completion of the construction phase 
of the Project. 

 
 

  



24 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
and        

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:    
 
DEPARTMENT CONTRACT NO.:   
 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT NO.:   

 
In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Public Transportation Grant Agreement, the undersigned 

certifies that all work which originally required certification by a Professional Engineer has been completed in 

compliance with the Project construction plans and specifications.  If any deviations have been made from the 

approved plans, a list of all deviations, along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each 

deviation, will be attached to this Certification. Also, with submittal of this certification, the Agency shall furnish 

the Department a set of “as-built” plans for construction on the Department’s Right of Way certified by the 

Engineer of Record/CEI.  

 
    By:         , P.E. 
 
SEAL:    Name:        
 
    Date:        
 
 

 

 
 



25 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

AGENCY RESOLUTION 
 

 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 
 



26 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

PROGRAM SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS - AVIATION 
AVIATION PROGRAM ASSURANCES 

 
A. General. 
 

1. The assurances herein shall form an integral part of the Agreement between the Department and the Agency. 
 

2. These assurances delineate the obligations of the Parties to this Agreement to ensure their commitment and 
compliance with specific provisions of Exhibit “A”, Project Description and Responsibilities, and Exhibit 
“B”, Schedule of Financial Assistance, as well as serving to protect public investment in public-use airports 
and the continued viability of the Florida Aviation System. 

 
3. The Agency shall comply with the assurances as specified in this Agreement. 

 
4. The terms and assurances of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of a 

facility developed; equipment acquired; or Project items installed within a facility for an airport development or 
noise compatibility program project, but shall not exceed 20 years from the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
5. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement regarding Exclusive Rights 

and Airport Revenue so long as the property is used as a public airport. 
 

6. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms and assurances of this Agreement with respect to real 
property acquired with funds provided by this Agreement. 

 
7. Subject to appropriations, the Department shall continue to comply with its financial commitment to this Project 

under the terms of this Agreement, until such time as the Department may determine that the Agency has failed 
to comply with the terms and assurances of this Agreement. 

 
8. An Agency that has been determined by the Department to have failed to comply with either the terms of these 

Assurances, or the terms of the Agreement, or both, shall be notified, in writing, by the Department, identifying 
the specifics of the non-compliance and any corrective action by the Agency to remedy the failure. 

 
9. Failure by the Agency to satisfactorily remedy the non-compliance shall absolve the Department’s continued 

financial commitment to this Project and immediately require the Agency to repay the Department the full amount 
of funds expended by the Department on this Project. 

 
10. Any history of failure to comply with the terms and assurances of an Agreement will jeopardize the Agency’s 

eligibility for further state funding of airport projects by the Department. 
 
B. Agency Compliance Certification. 
 

1. General Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Project, it will comply, within its 
authority, with all applicable, current laws and rules of the State of Florida and applicable local governments, as 
well as Department policies, guidelines, and requirements, including but not limited to, the following (latest 
version of each document): 
 
a. Florida Statutes (F.S.) 

 Chapter 163, F.S., Intergovernmental Programs 

 Chapter 329, F.S., Aircraft: Title; Liens; Registration; Liens 

 Chapter 330, F.S., Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports 

 Chapter 331, F.S., Aviation and Aerospace Facilities and Commerce 

 Chapter 332, F.S., Airports and Other Air Navigation Facilities 

 Chapter 333, F.S., Airport Zoning 
 



27 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

b. Florida Administrative Code (FAC) 

 Chapter 73C-41, FAC, Community Planning; Governing the Procedure for the Submittal and Review of 
Local Government Comprehensive Plans and Amendments 

 Chapter 14-60, FAC, Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection 

 Section 62-256.300, FAC, Open Burning, Prohibitions 

 Section 62-701.320(13), FAC, Solid Waste Management Facility Permit Requirements, General, Airport 
Safety 
 

c. Local Government Requirements 

 Airport Zoning Ordinance 

 Local Comprehensive Plan 
 

d. Department Requirements 

 Eight Steps of Building a New Airport 

 Florida Airport Revenue Use Guide 

 Florida Aviation Project Handbook 

 Guidebook for Airport Master Planning 

 Airport Compatible Land Use Guidebook 
 

2. Construction Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to a construction-related project, that all 
design plans and specifications will comply with applicable federal, state, local, and professional standards, as 
well as Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Advisory Circulars (AC’s) and FAA issued waivers thereto, 
including but not limited to, the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 FAA AC 70/7460-1, Obstruction Marking and Lighting 

 FAA AC 150/5300-13, Airport Design 

 FAA AC 150/5370-2, Operational Safety on Airports During Construction 

 FAA AC 150/5370-10, Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports 
 

b. Local Government Requirements 

 Local Building Codes 

 Local Zoning Codes 
 

c. Department Requirements 

 Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and 
Highways (Commonly Referred to as the “Florida Green Book”) 

 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

 Section 14-60.007, FAC, Airfield Standards for Licensed Airports 

 Standard Specifications for Construction of General Aviation Airports 

 Design Guidelines & Minimum Standard Requirements for T-Hangar Projects 
 

3. Land Acquisition Certification.  The Agency hereby certifies, regarding land acquisition, that it will comply with 
applicable federal and/or state policies, regulations, and laws, including but not limited to the following: 
 
a. Federal Requirements 

 Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 

 National Environmental Policy of 1969 

 FAA Order 5050.4, National Environmental Policy Act Implementing Instructions for Airport Projects 

 FAA Order 5100.37B, Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport Projects 
 

b. Florida Requirements 

 Chapter 73, F.S., Eminent Domain (re: Property Acquired Through Condemnation) 

 Chapter 74, F.S., Proceedings Supplemental to Eminent Domain (re: Condemnation) 

 Section 286.23, F.S., Public Business: Miscellaneous Provisions 



28 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

 
C. Agency Authority. 
 

1. Legal Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has the legal authority to 
enter into this Agreement and commit to this Project; that a resolution, motion, or similar action has been duly 
adopted or passed as an official act of the airport sponsor’s governing body authorizing this Agreement, including 
assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative 
of the governing body to act on its behalf with respect to this Agreement and to provide any additional information 
as may be required. 
 

2. Financial Authority.  The Agency hereby certifies, with respect to this Agreement, that it has sufficient funds 
available for that portion of the Project costs which are not paid by the U.S. Government or the State of Florida; 
that it has sufficient funds available to assure future operation and maintenance of items funded by this Project, 
which it will control; and that authority has been granted by the airport sponsor governing body to commit those 
funds to this Project. 

 
D. Agency Responsibilities. The Agency hereby certifies it currently complies with or will comply with the following 
responsibilities: 
 

1. Accounting System. 
 

a. The Agency shall create and maintain a separate account to document all of the financial transactions 
related to the airport as a distinct entity. 
 

b. The accounting records shall be kept by the Agency or its authorized representative in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and in an accounting system that will facilitate an effective audit 
in accordance with the 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and Section 215.97, F.S., Florida Single Audit Act. 
 

c. The Department has the right to audit and inspect all financial records of the Agency upon reasonable notice. 
 

2. Good Title. 
 
a. The Agency holds good title, satisfactory to the Department, to the airport or site thereof, or gives assurance, 

satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 
 
b. For noise compatibility program projects undertaken on the airport sponsor’s property, the Agency holds 

good title, satisfactory to the Department, to that portion of the property upon which state funds will be 
expended, or gives assurance, satisfactory to the Department, that good title will be obtained. 

 
3. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

 
a. The Agency shall not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and 

powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms and assurances of this Agreement without the written 
approval of the Department. Further, the Agency  shall act promptly to acquire, extinguish, or modify, in a 
manner acceptable to the Department, any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would 
interfere with such performance by the Agency. 
 

b. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any entity or person other than 
the Agency or an employee of the Agency, the Agency shall reserve sufficient rights and authority to ensure 
that the airport will be operated and maintained in accordance with the terms and assurances of this 
Agreement. 

 
4. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 

 



29 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

a. For airport hazards located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall clear and protect terminal 
airspace required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight 
altitudes) by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport 
hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. 
 

b. For airport hazards not located on airport controlled property, the Agency shall work in conjunction with the 
governing public authority or private land owner of the property to clear and protect terminal airspace 
required for instrument and visual operations at the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) 
by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and 
by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards. The Agency may enter into an 
agreement with surrounding property owners or pursue available legal remedies to remove potential hazards 
to air navigation. 

 
5. Airport Compatible Land Use. 

 
a. The Agency assures that appropriate airport zoning ordinances are in place consistent with Section 333.03, 

F.S., or if not in place, that it will take appropriate action necessary to ensure local government adoption of 
an airport zoning ordinance or execution of an interlocal agreement with another local government body 
having an airport zoning ordinance, consistent with the provisions of Section 333.03, F.S. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted alteration or creation of objects, natural 
or man-made, dangerous to navigable airspace or that would adversely affect the current or future levels of 
airport operations. 
 

c. The Agency assures that it will disapprove or oppose any attempted change in local land use development 
regulations that would adversely affect the current or future levels of airport operations by creation or 
expansion of airport incompatible land use areas. 

 
6. Consistency with Local Government Plans. 

 
a. The Agency assures the Project is consistent with the currently existing and planned future land use 

development plans approved by the local government having jurisdictional responsibility for the area 
surrounding the airport. 

 
b. The Agency assures that it has given fair consideration to the interest of local communities and has had 

reasonable consultation with those parties affected by the Project. 
 

c. The Agency shall consider and take appropriate actions, if deemed warranted by the Agency, to adopt the 
current, approved Airport Master Plan into the local government comprehensive plan. 

 
7. Consistency with Airport Master Plan and Airport Layout Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that the project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 

with the most current Airport Master Plan. 
 

b. The Agency assures that the Project, covered by the terms and assurances of this Agreement, is consistent 
with the most current, approved Airport Layout Plan (ALP), which shows: 

 
1) The boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries of all 

offsite areas owned or controlled by the Agency for airport purposes and proposed additions thereto; 
2) The location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such as 

runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars, and roads), including all proposed 
extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities; and 

3) The location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas on airport property and of all existing 
improvements thereon. 
 



30 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

c. The Agency assures that it will not make or permit any changes or alterations on the airport or any of its 
facilities that are not consistent with the Airport Master Plan and the Airport Layout Plan, as approved by the 
Department. 
 

d. Original Airport Master Plans and Airport Layout Plans and each amendment, revision, or modification 
thereof, will be subject to the approval of the Department. 

 
8. Airport Financial Plan. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will develop and maintain a cost-feasible Airport financial plan to accomplish 

the projects necessary to achieve the proposed airport improvements identified in the Airport Master Plan 

and depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. The Agency’s Airport financial plan must 

comply with the following conditions: 

 

1) The Airport financial plan will be a part of the Airport Master Plan. 
2) The Airport financial plan will realistically assess project phasing considering availability of state and 

local funding and likelihood of federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 
3) The Airport financial plan will not include Department funding for projects that are inconsistent with 

the local government comprehensive plan. 
 

b. All Project cost estimates contained in the Airport financial plan shall be entered into and kept current in the 
Florida Aviation Database (FAD) Joint Automated Capital Improvement Program (JACIP) website. 

 
9. Airport Revenue. The Agency assures that all revenue generated by the airport will be expended for capital 

improvement or operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned 
or operated by the owner or operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the air 
transportation of passengers or property, or for environmental or noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport. 

 
10. Fee and Rental Structure. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will maintain a fee and rental structure for facilities and services at the airport 

that it will make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular 
airport. 
 

b. If this Agreement results in a facility that will be leased or otherwise produce revenue, the Agency assures 
that the price charged for that facility will be based on the market value. 

 
11. Public-Private Partnership for Aeronautical Uses. 

 
a. If the airport owner or operator and a person or entity that owns an aircraft or an airport tenant or potential 

tenant agree that an aircraft hangar or tenant-specific facility, respectively, is to be constructed on airport 
property for aircraft storage or tenant use at the expense of the aircraft owner or tenant, the airport owner 
or operator may grant to the aircraft owner or tenant of the facility a lease that is subject to such terms and 
conditions on the facility as the airport owner or operator may impose, subject to approval by the Department. 
 

b. The price charged for said lease will be based on market value, unless otherwise approved by the 
Department. 

 
12. Economic Nondiscrimination. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms 

without unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including commercial 
aeronautical activities offering services to the public. 
 

1) The Agency may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be met 

by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the airport. 



31 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) The Agency may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport if 
such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or necessary to serve the civil aviation 
needs of the public. 

 
b. The Agency assures that each airport Fixed-Based Operator (FBO) shall be subject to the same rates, fees, 

rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other FBOs making the same or similar uses of 
such airport and utilizing the same or similar facilities. 
 

13. Air and Water Quality Standards. The Agency assures that all projects involving airport location, major runway 
extension, or runway location will be located, designed, constructed, and operated so as to comply with 
applicable air and water quality standards. 
 

14. Operations and Maintenance. 
 

a. The Agency assures that the airport and all facilities, which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users 
of the airport, shall be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the 
minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable federal and state agencies for 
maintenance and operation, as well as minimum standards established by the Department for State of 
Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 
 

1) The Agency assures that it will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would 
interfere with its use for airport purposes. 

2) Except in emergency situations, any proposal to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical 
purposes must first be approved by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will have arrangements for promptly notifying airmen of any condition 
affecting aeronautical use of the airport. 
 

b. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for aeronautical use 
during temporary periods when adverse weather conditions interfere with safe airport operations. 
 

15. Federal Funding Eligibility. 

 
a. The Agency assures it will take appropriate actions to maintain federal funding eligibility for the airport and 

it will avoid any action that renders the airport ineligible for federal funding. 
 

b. If the Agency becomes ineligible for federal funding of airport projects, such determination will render the 
Agency ineligible for state funding of airport projects. 

 
16. Project Implementation. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will begin making expenditures or incurring obligations pertaining to this Project 

within one year after the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

b. The Agency may request a one-year extension of this one-year time period, subject to approval by the 
Department District Secretary or designee. 

 
c. Failure of the Agency to make expenditures, incur obligations or receive an approved extension may allow 

the Department to terminate this Agreement. 
 

17. Exclusive Rights. The Agency assures that it will not permit any exclusive right for use of the airport by any 
person providing, or intending to provide, aeronautical services to the public. 

 
18. Airfield Access. 

 
a. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access that opens onto or 

crosses the airport runways, taxiways, flight line, passenger facilities, or any area used for emergency 



32 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

equipment, fuel, supplies, passengers, mail and freight, radar, communications, utilities, and landing 
systems, including but not limited to flight operations, ground services, emergency services, terminal 
facilities, maintenance, repair, or storage, except for those normal airport providers responsible for standard 
airport daily services or during special events at the airport open to the public with limited and controlled 
access. 
 

b. The Agency assures that it will not grant or allow general easement or public access to any portion of the 
airfield from adjacent real property which is not owned, operated, or otherwise controlled by the Agency 
without prior Department approval. 

 
19. Retention of Rights and Interests.The Agency will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose 

of any part of its title or other interests in the real property shown as airport owned or controlled on the current 
airport layout plan without prior written approval by the Department. It will not sell, lease, encumber, terminate, 
waive, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title, rights, or other interest in existing noise easements 
or avigation easements on any property, airport or non-airport, without prior written approval by the Department. 
These assurances shall not limit the Agency’s right to lease airport property for airport-compatible purposes. 
 

20. Consultant, Contractor, Scope, and Costs. 
 

a. The Department has the right to disapprove the Agency’s employment of consultants, contractors, and 

subcontractors for all or any part of this Project if the specific consultants, contractors, or subcontractors 

have a record of poor project performance with the Department. 

 

b. Further, the Department maintains the right to disapprove the proposed Project scope and cost of 

professional services. 

 
21. Planning Projects. For all planning projects or other aviation studies, the Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Execute the project per the approved project narrative or with approved modifications. 

 
b. Furnish the Department with such periodic project and work activity reports as indicated in the approved 

scope of services. 
 

c. Make such project materials available for public review, unless exempt from public disclosure. 
 

1) Information related to airport security is considered restricted information and is exempt from public 
dissemination per Sections 119.071(3) and 331.22 F.S. 

2) No materials prepared under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or 
any other country. 

 
d. Grant the Department unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise use any of the 

material prepared in connection with this Agreement. 
 

e. If the Project involves developing an Airport Master Plan or an Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto, 
it will be consistent with provisions of the Florida Aviation System Plan, will identify reasonable future growth 
of the airport and the Agency will comply with the Department airport master planning guidebook, including: 

 
1) Provide copies, in electronic and editable format, of final Project materials to the Department, 

including computer-aided drafting (CAD) files of the Airport Layout Plan. 
2) Develop a cost-feasible financial plan, approved by the Department, to accomplish the projects 

described in the Airport Master Plan or depicted in the Airport Layout Plan, and any updates thereto. 
The cost-feasible financial plan shall realistically assess Project phasing considering availability of 
state and local funding and federal funding under the FAA’s priority system. 

3) Enter all projects contained in the cost-feasible plan in the Joint Automated Capital Improvement 
Program (JACIP). 

 



33 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

f. The Agency understands and agrees that Department approval of this Agreement or any planning material 
developed as part of this Agreement does not constitute or imply any assurance or commitment on the part 
of the Department to approve any pending or future application for state aviation funding. 

 
g. The Agency will submit master planning draft and final deliverables for Department and, if required, FAA 

approval prior to submitting any invoices to the Department for payment. 
 

22. Land Acquisition Projects. For the purchase of real property, the Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Laws. Acquire the land in accordance with federal and/or state laws governing such action. 
 

b. Administration. Maintain direct control of Project administration, including: 
 

1) Maintain responsibility for all related contract letting and administrative procedures related to the 
purchase of real property. 

2) Secure written Department approval to execute each agreement for the purchase of real property 
with any third party. 

3) Ensure a qualified, State-certified general appraiser provides all necessary services and 
documentation. 

4) Furnish the Department with a projected schedule of events and a cash flow projection within 20 
calendar days after completion of the review appraisal. 

5) Establish a Project account for the purchase of the land. 
6) Collect and disburse federal, state, and local project funds. 

  
c. Reimbursable Funds. If funding conveyed by this Agreement is reimbursable for land purchase in 

accordance with Chapter 332, F.S., the Agency shall comply with the following requirements: 
 

1) The Agency shall apply for a FAA Airport Improvement Program grant for the land purchase within 
60 days of executing this Agreement. 

2) If federal funds are received for the land purchase, the Agency shall notify the Department, in writing, 
within 14 calendar days of receiving the federal funds and is responsible for reimbursing the 
Department within 30 calendar days to achieve normal project federal, state, and local funding 
shares per Chapter 332, F.S. 

3) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase, the Agency shall reimburse the Department 
within 30 calendar days after the reimbursable funds are due in order to achieve normal project 
state and local funding shares as described in Chapter 332, F.S. 

4) If federal funds are not received for the land purchase and the state share of the purchase is less 
than or equal to normal state and local funding shares per Chapter 332, F.S., when reimbursable 
funds are due, no reimbursement to the Department shall be required. 

 
d. New Airport.  If this Project involves the purchase of real property for the development of a new airport, 

the Agency assures that it will: 
 

1) Apply for federal and state funding to construct a paved runway, associated aircraft parking apron, 
and connecting taxiway within one year of the date of land purchase. 

2) Complete an Airport Master Plan within two years of land purchase. 
3) Complete airport construction for basic operation within 10 years of land purchase. 

 
e. Use of Land. The Agency assures that it shall use the land for aviation purposes in accordance with the 

terms and assurances of this Agreement within 10 years of acquisition. 
 

f. Disposal of Land. For the disposal of real property the Agency assures that it will comply with the following: 
1) For land purchased for airport development or noise compatibility purposes, the Agency shall, when 

the land is no longer needed for such purposes, dispose of such land at fair market value and/or 
make available to the Department an amount equal to the state’s proportionate share of its market 
value. 



34 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

2) Land will be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if: 
 

a) It serves aeronautical purposes such as a runway protection zone or as a noise buffer. 
b) Revenue from uses of such land contributes to airport financial self-sufficiency.  

 
3) Disposition of land under Sections D.22.f.1. or D.22.f.2. of this Exhibit, above, shall be subject to 

retention or reservation of any interest or right therein needed to ensure such land will only be used 
for purposes compatible with noise levels related to airport operations. 

4) Revenues from the sale of such land must be accounted for as outlined in Section D.1. of this 
Exhibit, and expended as outlined in Section D.9. of this Exhibit.   

 

23. Construction Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 
a. Project Certifications. Certify Project compliances, including: 

 
1) Consultant and contractor selection comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 

regulations, and policies. 
2) All design plans and specifications comply with federal, state, and professional standards and 

applicable FAA advisory circulars, as well as the minimum standards established by the Department 
for State of Florida licensing as a public-use airport. 

3) Completed construction complies with all applicable local building codes. 
4) Completed construction complies with the Project plans and specifications with certification of that 

fact by the Project Engineer. 
 

b. Design Development.  For the plans, specifications, construction contract documents, and any and all 
other engineering, construction, and contractual documents produced by the Engineer, which are 
hereinafter collectively referred to as "plans", the Engineer will certify that: 
 

1) The plans shall be developed in accordance with sound engineering and design principles, and with 
generally accepted professional standards. 

2) The plans shall be consistent with the intent of the Project as defined in Exhibit A and Exhibit B of 
this Agreement. 

3) The Project Engineer shall perform a review of the certification requirements listed in Section B.2. 
of this Exhibit, Construction Certification, and make a determination as to their applicability to this 
Project. 

4) Development of the plans shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, zoning and permitting 
requirements, public notice requirements, and other similar regulations. 
 

c. Inspection and Approval.  The Agency assures that: 
 

1) The Agency will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site 
throughout the Project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules 
approved by the Department, as applicable, for the Project. 

2) The Agency assures that it will allow the Department to inspect the work and that it will provide any 
cost and progress reporting, as may be required by the Department. 

3) The Agency assures that it will take the appropriate corrective action necessary, as required by the 
Department, for work which does not conform to the Department standards. 
 

d. Pavement Preventive Maintenance.  The Agency assures that for a project involving replacement or 
reconstruction of runway or taxiway pavement it has implemented an airport pavement maintenance 
management program and that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, 
reconstructed, or repaired with state financial assistance at the airport. 
 
 
 

 



35 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

24. Noise Mitigation Projects.  The Agency assures that it will: 

 

a. Government Agreements. For all noise compatibility projects that are carried out by another unit of local 
government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the Agency, the Agency 
shall enter into an agreement with that government body. 
 

1) The local agreement, satisfactory to the Department, shall obligate the unit of local government to 
the same terms and assurances that apply to the Agency. 

2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce the local agreement if there is substantial non-
compliance with the terms of the local agreement. 

 
b. Private Agreements. For noise compatibility projects on privately owned property: 

 
1) The Agency shall enter into an agreement with the owner of that property to exclude future actions 

against the airport. 
2) The Agency assures that it will take steps to enforce such agreement if there is substantial non-

compliance with the terms of the agreement. 
 
 

- End of Exhibit E - 



36 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Contract Payment Requirements 

Florida Department of Financial Services, Reference Guide for State Expenditures  

Cost Reimbursement Contracts 

 

Invoices for cost reimbursement contracts must be supported by an itemized listing of expenditures by category (salary, 

travel, expenses, etc.).  Supporting documentation shall be submitted for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed indicating that the item has been paid.  Documentation for each amount for which reimbursement is being 

claimed must indicate that the item has been paid. Check numbers may be provided in lieu of copies of actual checks. 

Each piece of documentation should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only expenditures for categories in the approved 

agreement budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to 

the services being provided. 

 

Listed below are types and examples of supporting documentation for cost reimbursement agreements: 

 

(1)  Salaries: A payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted. The payroll register should show 

gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and net pay. If an individual for whom reimbursement is 

being claimed is paid by the hour, a document reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be 

acceptable. 

 

(2)  Fringe Benefits: Fringe Benefits should be supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of the 

employee (e.g., insurance premiums paid).  If the contract specifically states that fringe benefits will be based 

on a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe benefits, then the calculation for the fringe benefits 

amount must be shown. 

 

Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies of checks for fringe 

benefits. 

 

(3)  Travel: Reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, which 

includes submission of the claim on the approved State travel voucher or electronic means. 

 

(4)  Other direct costs: Reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts. If nonexpendable property 

is purchased using State funds, the contract should include a provision for the transfer of the property to the 

State when services are terminated.  Documentation must be provided to show compliance with Department of 

Management Services Rule 60A-1.017, Florida Administrative Code, regarding the requirements for contracts 

which include services and that provide for the contractor to purchase tangible personal property as defined in 

Section 273.02, Florida Statutes, for subsequent transfer to the State. 

 

(5)  In-house charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be 

reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged. The rates must be reasonable. 

 

(6)  Indirect costs: If the contract specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the 

calculation should be shown. 

 

Contracts between state agencies, and/or contracts between universities may submit alternative documentation 

to substantiate the reimbursement request that may be in the form of FLAIR reports or other detailed reports.  

 

The Florida Department of Financial Services, online Reference Guide for State Expenditures can be found at this web 

address https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf. 

 

 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


37 of 37

 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

Form 725-000-02 
STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
OGC 02/20 

 

 

EXHIBIT G 
 

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

 

 THE STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 

 

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:~ 

 

Awarding Agency: Florida Department of Transportation 

State Project Title: Aviation Grant Program 

CSFA Number: 55.004 

*Award Amount: $500,000 

 

*The award amount may change with amendments 
 

Specific project information for CSFA Number 55.004 is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx 

 

 

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS 

AGREEMENT: 

 

State Project Compliance Requirements for CSFA Number 55.004 are provided at: 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx 

 

The State Projects Compliance Supplement is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx  

 

 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx


 
 

To: Melvin Pollack, Chair and Board Members  

From: Clara Bennett, Executive Director 

Date: May 20, 2020 

RE:  Discussion on Customs and Border Protection Fees 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM – IX – F 
 
Discussion on notification from Customs and Border Protection regarding planned annual 
fee increase. 
 

 






	1. May 20, 2020 BRAA Agenda
	2. April 15, 2020 BRAA Board Meeting Minutes
	3. Memo - Financial Report April
	4. Financial Report April
	Income Stmt Summary
	Revenue Summary
	Expense Summary
	Balance Sheet Summary

	4.1 2020 Financial Scenarios
	2020 Budget Scenarios
	2020 Budget Scenarios
	Base Budget Projection
	Base Budget Projection
	Base Budget Projection
	Worst Case Scenario
	Worst Case Scenario
	Worst Case Scenario
	Moderate Scenario
	Moderate Scenario
	Moderate Scenario
	Management Response
	Slide Number 13

	5. Memo - FY2019 Audit 2
	6. 05-14-20 Resolution adopting FY2019 Financial Report
	7. Grau letter to the Board
	8. Memo - 2020 Investment Report
	9. BRAA 2020 Investment Report
	10. Memo - Ops Report April 2020
	11. Noise Report April 2020
	12. Ops Analysis
	COVID-19 Operations Impact
	Daily Operations
	AvGas to Operations
	Jet A to Operations
	Total Fuel Flow to  Operations
	Annual Market Average Price Per Gallon to Fuel Flowage

	13. Memo - CARES Act Grant Acceptance
	14. CARES Grand Agreement
	15. Memo - PTGA Landside Beautificaton and Pedestrian Access Improvements
	16. 05-15-20 PTGA Landside Beautification and Pedestrian Access Improvements
	17. PTGA Landside Beautifucation
	18. Memo - Transportation Access Road Development - Phase 2
	19. 05-16-20 PTGA Transportation Access Road Development - Phase 2
	20. PTGA Transportation access road developement phase 2
	21. Memo - PTGA Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor  Phase 2
	22. 05-17-20 PTGA Expand Airport Road and Utility Corridor - Ph2 SK Comments
	23. PTGA Explant Airport Road adn Utility Cooridor - Phase 2
	24. Memo - Discuss on CBP Service
	25. Memo received from CBP

